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Final Report

I. INTRODUCTION

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY OF LAFCO
The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, as amended (CKH
Act) (California Government Code §§56000 et seq.), is LAFCO’s governing law and outlines the
requirements for preparing Municipal Service Reviews (MSRs) for periodic Sphere of Influence
(SOI) updates.
MSRs and SOIs are tools created to empower LAFCO to satisfy its legislative charge of
“discouraging urban sprawl, preserving open-space and prime agricultural lands, efficiently
providing government services, and encouraging the orderly formation and development of local
agencies based upon local conditions and circumstances” (§56301).
CKH Act Section 56301 further establishes that “one of the objects of the commission is to
make studies and to obtain and furnish information which will contribute to the logical and
reasonable development of local agencies in each county and to shape the development of
local agencies so as to advantageously provide for the present and future needs of each county
and its communities.”
Based on that legislative charge, LAFCO serves as an arm of the State: preparing and
reviewing studies and analyzing independent data to make informed, quasi-legislative decisions
that guide the physical and economic development of the state (including agricultural uses) and
the efficient, cost-effective, and reliable delivery of services to residents, landowners, and
businesses.
While SOIs are required to be updated every five years, they are not time-bound as planning
tools by the statute, but are meant to address the “probable physical boundaries and service
area of a local agency” (§56076). SOIs, therefore, guide both the near-term and long-term
physical and economic development of local agencies within their broader county area, and
MSRs can provide the near-term and long-term time-relevant data to inform LAFCO’s SOI
determinations.

PURPOSE OF A MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW
As described above, MSRs are designed to equip LAFCO with relevant information and data
necessary for the Commission to make informed decisions on SOIs. The CKH Act, however,
gives LAFCO broad discretion in deciding how to conduct MSRs, including geographic focus,
scope of study, and the identification of alternatives for improving the efficiency, costeffectiveness, accountability, and reliability of public services.
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The purpose of a MSR in general is to provide a comprehensive inventory and analysis of the
services provided by local municipalities, service areas, and special districts. A MSR evaluates
the structure and operation of the local municipalities, service areas, and special districts and
discusses possible areas for improvement and coordination.
A MSR is intended to provide information and analysis to support a sphere of influence update.
A written statement of the study’s determinations must be made in the following areas:
1.
2.
3.

4.
5.
6.
7.

Growth and population projections for the affected area.
The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities
within or contiguous to the sphere of influence.
Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and
infrastructure needs or deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers,
municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection in any disadvantaged,
unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence.
Financial ability of agencies to provide services.
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and
operational efficiencies.
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by
commission policy.

This MSR is organized according to the determinations listed above. Information regarding each
of the above issue areas is provided in this document.

PURPOSE OF A SPHERE OF INFLUENCE
In 1972, LAFCOs were given the power to establish SOIs for all local agencies under their
jurisdiction. As defined by the CKH Act, ”sphere of influence” means “a plan for the probable
physical boundaries and service area of a local agency, as determined by the commission”
(§56076).
SOIs are designed to both proactively guide and respond to the need for the extension of
infrastructure and delivery of municipal services to areas of emerging growth and development.
Likewise, they are also designed to discourage urban sprawl and the premature conversion of
agricultural and open space resources to urbanized uses.
The role of SOIs in guiding the State’s growth and development was validated and strengthened
in 2000 when the Legislature passed Assembly Bill (AB) 2838 (Chapter 761, Statutes of 2000).
The bill was the result of two years of labor by the Commission on Local Governance for the 21st
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Century, whose members and staff traveled up and down the State taking testimony from a
variety of local government stakeholders.
The Commission assembled an extensive set of recommendations to the Legislature to
strengthen the powers and tools of LAFCOs to promote logical and orderly growth and
development and the efficient, cost-effective, and reliable delivery of public services to
California’s residents, businesses, landowners, and visitors.
The requirement for LAFCOs to conduct MSRs was established by AB 2838 as an
acknowledgment of the importance of SOIs and recognition that regular periodic updates of
SOIs should be conducted on a five-year basis (§56425(g)) with the benefit of better information
and data through MSRs (§56430(a)).
Pursuant to Sonoma LAFCO policy, an SOI includes an area adjacent to a jurisdiction where
development might be reasonably expected to occur in the next 20 years. A MSR may
conducted prior to, or in conjunction with, the update of a SOI and can provide the foundation
for updating it. Sonoma LAFCO has adopted a policy that if an agency is not seeking to amend
its sphere or if the Commission determines that no change is needed, the sphere can be
“confirmed” absent the preparation of an MSR.
When establishing, amending, or updating a SOI for any local agency, LAFCO is required to
make five written determinations that address the following (§56425(c)):
1. The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space
lands.
2. The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area.
3. The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency
provides or is authorized to provide.
4. The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the
commission determines that they are relevant to the agency.
5. For an update of an SOI of a city or special district that provides public facilities or
services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection,
the present and probable need for those public facilities and services of any
disadvantaged unincorporated communities within the existing sphere of influence.

ORGANIZATION OF THE MSR
This MSR has been organized in a checklist format to focus the information and discussion on
key issues that may be particularly relevant to the subject agency while making required MSR
and SOI determinations.
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The checklist questions are based on the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act, the LAFCO MSR
Guidelines prepared by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research, and adopted Sonoma
LAFCO local policies and procedures.
This report includes:
•
•
•
•

A description of the subject agency
MSR determinations for public and Commission review
Discussion that supports the MSR determinations
Identification of any other issues that the Commission should consider

The report, in the form of a “public review draft,” will be distributed to affected agencies and
interested parties for comment.

SPECIAL NOTES REGARDING THIS STUDY
The current circumstances of the Palm Drive Health Care District (PDHCD or District) and, in
particular, the operation of the hospital in Sebastopol by the Sonoma West Medical Center
(SWMC), make an analysis of the District challenging. The hospital has only recently reopened
and is being managed by a contracted operator for the first time in the District’s fifteen-year
history.
District representatives have opined that analyzing the operations of the hospital during a start
up phase would not paint a reasonable picture of the ongoing viability of the District’s mission.
Nevertheless, Sonoma LAFCO has concluded that a narrowly-focused study of the District,
which would not attempt to discern the long-term viability of the hospital operation, would be
valuable not only as the Commission adjudicates an application for detachment of Russian
River communities but as a foundation for other potential LAFCO actions. These actions could
include sphere of influence amendments or other organizational changes to the District.
The Commission, over a series of discussions at meetings in 2015, agreed to a scope for this
Municipal Service Review (Attachment 1). Notably, the scope acknowledged that some
components of a typical MSR would have little or no relevance to a study of a health care district
and that to comprehensively study the hospital operation itself is not within the purview of a
LAFCO review.
Staff notes that there may be a plethora of issues that are pertinent to the public’s evaluation of
the Palm Drive Health Care District’s operations and viability, particularly with regard to the
likely sustainability of the hospital operation in Sebastopol. However, this MSR focuses narrowly
on the District.
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Finally, the Sonoma West Medical Center is clearly facing challenges in reopening the hospital
and is beset with staffing changes, staff recruitment and retention challenges, and, above all
else, financial difficulties. SWMC has been almost wholly reliant on financial contributions from a
single donor, to begin and attempt to sustain operations.
With the acknowledgment that the situation at SWMC is very fluid, staff notes that this analysis
of the District’s operations and viability may very well be overtaken by near-term events.
However, this analysis may form a “baseline” from which the Commission can direct further
analysis as needed to support any future LAFCO determinations.
The overarching responsibility for judging the capabilities of the District to meet its stated
mission and the needs of West County communities falls on District constituents and the
directors they elect to represent them on the board. While the Sonoma Local Agency Formation
Commission can make changes to the District’s sphere of influence and otherwise amend its
boundaries or even consider dissolution, more substantive changes can occur only through a
partnership between the District and its public constituency.
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II. AGENCY PROFILE
Palm Drive Hospital was originally established in 1941 as a private, for-profit operation. In 1998,
the then-owner Columbia/HCA decided to close the hospital, and the West County Health Care
Foundation was formed to preserve operations.
The Foundation conducted a fund-raising campaign to allow the community to purchase the
hospital. However, it was not possible to raise sufficient funds to provide for both the operation
and purchase of the building. A limited liability corporation, 35 for Palm Drive (LLC), was formed
to purchase the property.

FORMATION OF THE DISTRICT
In 1999, registered voters in the area submitted a petition to LAFCO to form a health care
district. A petition for the formation of a District needs to comply with the signature requirements
of the principal act. The principal act for the formation of a health care district requires that 12%
of the registered voters residing within the boundary of the proposed district sign the petition.
The Registrar of Voters found that, of a total of 31,083 registered voters residing within the
proposed district, 3,842 verified registered voter signatures were included on the petition,
slightly more than the required 12% (3,730).
The Commission approved the formation of the Palm Drive Health Care District on November 3,
1999, and called for an election (Attachment 2). The special election was held on April 11, 2000,
with a ballot calling for the formation of the District as well as the approval of the bonds
necessary to fund the District.
The District formation measure (Measure F) received 91.1% approval and the bond measure
(Measure G) received 90.7% approval.
Although California Health and Safety Code Section 1250 and Section 32000 et seq. authorize
health care districts to provide a wide variety of services, the District is only authorized to
provide “emergency, acute care and other medical services.”
The appropriations limit, or the amount of funds that the District can spend, was established by
the Commission’s resolution and Measure F to be $500,000. The District has the responsibility
for reviewing and reauthorizing its appropriations limit annually.
The District was officially formed on May 1, 2000, using the boundary lines of nine West County
elementary school districts. School district boundaries were used to provide definite and certain
established boundaries. The District encompasses approximately 200 square miles.

6

Final Report

HISTORY SINCE FORMATION
Measure G, passed in 2000, called for the establishment of a tax levy as follows:
An election will be held in the Palm Drive Health Care District (the "District") on April 11,
2000, to authorize the sale of up to $5,900,000 in general obligation bonds of the District
to finance the acquisition of Palm Drive Hospital, make seismic safety retrofits and
upgrades and the modernization, improvement, construction and renovation of health
care facilities. If such bonds are authorized and sold, the principal thereof and interest
thereon will be payable from the proceeds of tax levies made upon the taxable property
in the District. The following information is provided in compliance with Sections 9400
9404 of the California Elections Code.
A portion of the funds from the sale of the bond was used to purchase the hospital from 35 for
Palm Drive (LLC), at their cost of approximately $2,800,000. The remainder of the funds was
used to purchase a building addition for the CT scan and other capital improvements. The
general obligation bond was backed by ad valorem taxes rather than a direct charge or parcel
fee. The ad valorem tax rate is assessed against property values.
In 2001, the voters of the Palm Drive Health Care District were asked to approve a tax levy with
Measure D:
Shall the Palm Drive Health Care District levy a special tax on each parcel within the
District, not to exceed $60.00 per parcel per year for five (5) years to ensure access to
locally owned and operated community hospital services and to be used for medical
services, including emergency, medical/surgery, intensive care, and outpatient services,
and for no other purpose and correspondingly increase the District’s appropriations limits
by the revenue raised by the tax?
Measure D passed with 82.9% approval.
In 2004, the District issued Series A and Series B Notes in the amount of $1,312,500 and
$1,300,000, respectively.
In 2005, the voters of the Palm Drive Health Care District were asked to consider another tax
levy in Measure W:
To ensure survival of Palm Drive Hospital and access to local emergency, acute care,
medical and physician services, and provide for ongoing expenses, repair and
improvements to equipment and technology, shall Palm Drive Health Care District repeal
its existing tax and levy a special tax up to $155.00 on each taxable parcel in the District
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(excluding low value parcels) while assuring independent fiscal oversight and financial
accountability?
Measure W passed with 69.4% approval (2/3 approval required).
Subsequently, the District issued $9,800,000 in Parcel Tax Revenue Bonds, the proceeds of
which were used in part to pay off the outstanding 2004 notes.
In 2007, the District filed for Chapter 9 bankruptcy protection. During the course of the District’s
bankruptcy proceeding, it continued to make regularly scheduled 2005 bond payments, thereby
avoiding default.
In 2008, the District issued a “2008 Series A” note for $2,905,000 which was purchased by the
Sonoma County Treasury. At that time, the note was secured by the District parcel tax and was
part of a consensual court-approved plan to allow the District to exit Chapter 9 bankruptcy.
These notes have since been repaid in full by the District.
In 2010 the District exited its first bankruptcy, using $11 million in funds raised through
issuance of Certificates of Participation, secured by parcel tax revenues.
On April 7, 2014, the District filed for Chapter 9 bankruptcy protection. In a subsequent action at
its April 28, 2014, meeting, the District Board also voted to close the Palm Drive Health Care
medical facilities.
On April 15, 2014, the District requested that the County provide financial assistance in the
amount of up to $1,800,000 to support the orderly wind-down of its operations. The County
approved the request. The assistance is in the form of two notes purchased by the County
General Fund secured by the District’s parcel tax revenues through a bankruptcy court order.
DISTRICT GOVERNANCE, STAFF, AND FACILITIES
The District is governed by a five-member board, elected on staggered four-year terms. Staff
includes a part-time Executive Director and one administrative position, augmented by
contracted support services (e.g. legal and financial/accounting services).
District offices are located in leased space directly across from the District-owned hospital
facility, located at 501 Petaluma Avenue in Sebastopol.

DISTRICT BOUNDARIES
The District serves western Sonoma County (West County), including the communities of
Sebastopol, Graton, Forestville, Bodega Bay, Carmet, Salmon Creek, Jenner, Duncans Mills,
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Guerneville, Occidental, Freestone, Rio Nido, Monte Rio, Guernewood Park, Summerhome
Park, and Mirabel Heights (Figure 1).
PDHCD’s boundaries were set using the existing boundaries of nine school districts:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Forestville Union School District
Gravenstein Union School District
Guerneville School District
Harmony Union School District
Monte Rio Union School District
Oak Grove Union School District
Sebastopol Union School District
That portion of Shoreline Unified School District within Sonoma County
Twin Hills Union School District

AFFECTED AGENCIES
Per Government Code Section 56427, a public hearing is required to adopt, amend, or revise a
sphere of influence. Notice must be provided at least 21 days in advance and mailed notice is to
be provided to each affected local agency or affected County and to any interested party who
has filed a written request for notice with the executive officer.
Per Government Code Section 56014, an affected local agency means any local agency whose
territory overlaps with any portion of the subject agency boundary or SOI (including proposed
changes to the SOI).
All affected agencies and interested parties were sent a Notice of Preparation of an MSR and,
subsequently, a Notice of Availability of a Public Review Draft. Additionally, copies of the MSR
were mailed to the affected agencies and interested parties and made available on the
Commission’s website.
The affected local agencies for this MSR are:
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County and Cities:
County of Sonoma (various departments)
City of Sebastopol
County Service Areas (CSAs)
CSA No. 40 (Fire Services), representing:
Bodega Volunteer Fire Company
Valley Ford Volunteer Fire Company
Bloomfield Volunteer Fire Company
Camp Meeker Volunteer Fire Company
CSA No. 41 (Multi-Services)
Special Districts:
Cazadero Community Services District
Graton Community Services District
Occidental Community Services District
Green Valley Cemetery District
Bodega Bay Fire Protection District
Forestville Fire Protection District
Gold Ridge Fire Protection District
Graton Fire Protection District
Monte Rio Fire Protection District
Rancho Adobe Fire Protection District
Roseland Fire Protection District
Rincon Valley Fire Protection District
Russian River Fire Protection District
Goldridge Resource Conservation District
Sonoma Resource Conservation District
Bodega Bay Public Utility District
Forestville Water District
Russian River Water District
Sweetwater Springs Water District
Camp Meeker Recreation and Park District
Russian River Recreation and Park District
Monte Rio Recreation and Park District
Multi-County Districts:
Marin-Sonoma Mosquito and Vector Control District
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Figure 1: Palm Drive Health Care District Boundary Map
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III. MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW FACTORS
State law requires LAFCOs review and make determinations on seven factors as part of a
Municipal Service Review. In each of the following factor sub-sections, a checklist notes
whether the factor has relevance. Immediately following the checklist are the determinations
relating to the factor, followed by discussion that supports the determinations.

FACTOR 1 – GROWTH AND POPULATION
Growth and population projections for the affected area
a.

b.

c.

YES

MAYBE

NO

Is the agency’s territory or surrounding area expected to experience any
significant population change or development over the next 5-10 years?

X

Will population changes have an impact on the subject agency’s service
needs and demands?

X

Will projected growth require a change in the agency’s service
boundary?

X

Determinations
•

The growth and population projections for the area served by the District do not
significantly impact the District’s ability to provide health care services through its
traditional model (operation of an acute care hospital with emergency room capabilities).

•

Potential increases in difficult-to-serve and underserved populations (elderly residents,
and under- or uninsured) may impede the ability of the hospital operation to maintain
financial viability and, in turn, the ability of the District to meet its mission through that
service model.

Discussion
The West County region served by the District includes only one incorporated city (Sebastopol),
and both it and the remaining unincorporated areas are expected to have little growth in the
future due to land use restrictions and lack of municipal infrastructure (water and sewer).
Further, population growth has not and is not expected to necessarily drive use of the health
care services at the hospital that the District subsidizes. Over 75% of County residents access
health care services through insurers and major health care providers not aligned with the four
regional hospitals associated with a health care district (Sonoma Valley, Healdsburg, Petaluma,
and SWMC).

12

Final Report
The composition of both existing and future populations in the West County may be more
predictive of the health care service needs that might need to be supported by the District –
notably the proportion of difficult-to-serve and under- or uninsured residents. These populations
require high levels of service, and government-sponsored insurance and grant programs do not
fully cover the costs of providing for these needs.
Rather than population growth resulting in a need for PDHCD to increase its ability to provide
services, the District has determined that attracting business from out-of-area residents is
important to sustain the financial condition of the hospital operation.
The District has no plans to seek an expansion of its territory or sphere of influence due to
projected growth.

FACTOR 2 – DISADVANTAGED UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES
The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated
communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence.
a.

b.

c.

YES

Does the subject agency provide public services related to sewers,
municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection?
Are there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted
Commission policy) within or adjacent to the subject agency’s sphere of
influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or less of the
statewide median household income)?

MAYBE

NO

X

X

If “yes” to both a) and b), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized
such that it can extend service to the disadvantaged unincorporated
community? (If “no” to either a) or b), this question may be skipped.)

Determinations
•

While the District is nominally providing health care services to two disadvantaged
unincorporated communities that are within its service territory, because health care
services are not considered to be “municipal,” the dictates of SB 244 do not apply.

Discussion
Senate Bill (SB) 244 (Chapter 513, Statutes of 2011) made changes to the CKH Act related to
“disadvantaged unincorporated communities” (DUCs). A DUC is inhabited territory containing 12
or more registered voters where the annual median household income is less than 80 percent of
the statewide annual median household income.
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DUCs are recognized as social and economic communities of interest for purposes of
recommending SOI determinations pursuant to Section 56425(c). In particular, SB 244
regulates how municipal services (i.e., water, sewer, emergency services, etc.) are provided to
DUCs.
PDHCD does not provide municipal services that may trigger the provisions of SB 244 and a
subsequent LAFCO determination regarding any disadvantaged unincorporated communities
within or adjacent to the agency’s sphere of influence.
It is otherwise noted that two Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities are located within
the boundary of the District. These communities are Guerneville and Monte Rio. Additionally,
Cazadero, also classified as a DUC, is adjacent to the District’s boundary to the northwest.

FACTOR 3 – CAPACTITY AND ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services,
and infrastructure needs or deficiencies including needs or deficiencies
related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection

YES

MAYBE

NO

in any disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the
sphere of influence.
a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

Are there any deficiencies in agency capacity to meet service needs of
existing development within its existing territory?

X

Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity to meet the
service demand of reasonably foreseeable future growth?

X

Are there any concerns regarding public services provided by the
agency being considered adequate?

X

Are there any significant infrastructure needs or deficiencies to be
addressed?
Are there changes in state regulations on the horizon that will require
significant facility and/or infrastructure upgrades?
Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged
unincorporated communities related to sewers, municipal and industrial
water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous to the agency’s
sphere of influence?

X

X

X

Determinations
•

PDHCD has had difficulty meeting what the District considers its primary mission:
supporting a viable and sustainable hospital with emergency services for the West
County area.
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•

The necessity of providing acute care and emergency care services is tenuous, given
the protocols for patient destination/point of entry issued by the Coastal Valleys
Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Agency and the healthcare services landscape in
the County.

•

The District is advised to at least consider other service models as a contingency
exercise, should the hospital/emergency room focus becomes unsustainable.

•

Options for continued support of West County communities might include other medical
services such as:
Urgent care clinic(s)
Community health clinic(s)
Other community health initiatives
Funding of ambulance or other emergency response services (providing or
subsidizing these services would require exercise of the District’s latent powers,
subject to approval by LAFCO)

Discussion
As discussed in the review of population growth, the capacity of the District to provide acute,
emergency, and other medical services to the West County area is not being driven by
development or population, but rather by demographics and the choices residents and visitors
make regarding where they seek medical services.
The capacity of the District to meet service needs adequately can be evaluated on two criteria:
the District’s selection of which services to offer and in what fashion. In particular, is the
District’s sole focus on supporting a hospital with emergency room functions an appropriate one,
given its financial resources and the policies that drive the use of emergency rooms in the
County?
To be sure, the genesis of the District was driven by very strong community support in 2000 to
reopen Palm Drive Hospital and, in particular, to preserve emergency room capability, and the
District has consistently held that as its primary mission throughout its decade-and-a-half
existence.
Nevertheless, the District has had difficulty in meeting this “primary mission” and, with its
funding resources reduced due to debt obligations and resolution of a pending bankruptcy filing,
it can be asserted that meeting this mission will be more difficult in the near-term (see the
following section).
Emergency Room Services
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There has been discussion within the West County community, both in the Russian River area
and more broadly, regarding the necessity of maintaining an emergency room capability at the
hospital. In part, this discussion has been triggered by the opening of Sutter Regional Hospital
at River Road and Highway 101 and, in part, due to the tenuous financial condition of SWMC.
Some of these discussions have centered on claims regarding which hospital emergency room
(Sutter or SWMC) is closest for a given community, and there is evidence that Sutter is
somewhat closer in travel time than SWMC for portions of the Russian River area communities.
Basing these discussions solely on geographical proximity fails to acknowledge two issues:
•
•

For the vast majority of transports to emergency rooms, the patient chooses the facility
to which he or she is taken.
There are other predictors of emergency response success, including response time and
capabilities of first responders.

Note: At the direction of the Commission, an addendum has been attached to this report
describing the licensing and certification of SWMC’s emergency room operations and how the
availability of services is reported.
Directing Emergency Transports
The Coastal Valleys EMS Agency has the responsibility of assigning and managing emergency
medical response agencies and has adopted the “Patient Destination/Point of Entry” protocol
that describes how patients are transported and directed to local area hospital emergency
rooms.
When a patient’s condition is unstable or life threatening, the protocol indicates that the patient
should be transported to the “closest appropriate hospital.” However, several other factors may
be considered in determining the patient’s destination, including patient or family member
request, or the patient’s physician’s preference or request.
There are also extensive protocols for directing major trauma patients (for half hour or shorter
transports, to Santa Rosa Memorial), pediatric trauma patients (by helicopter to Oakland) and
other types of trauma patients.
In practice, the majority of transports are directed by patients, generally to Sutter, Kaiser, or
Memorial.
SWMC has accepted emergency patients since its reopening in 2015, and having emergency
capabilities is certainly of some benefit to the West County community. However, SWMC’s
emergency capabilities are somewhat limited in that the hospital operates a “Standby” facility,
and has had an intensive care unit that has been open intermittently. (A “Standby” emergency
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room indicates that doctors and other technicians are not staffing the emergency room full time
but are available “on call.”)
Emergency service providers in the coastal areas of West County (notably the Bodega Bay Fire
Protection District) value having the ability to direct patient transports to SWMC because the
patient admitting process can be much shorter than at the three major hospitals (Kaiser,
Memorial, and Sutter), allowing crews to return to the coast to resume coverage more quickly.
PDHCD also notes that the hospital in Sebastopol is the only major medical facility in the
County west of Highway 101 with emergency room capability, perhaps making it critically
important in the event of a region-wide disaster such as a major earthquake.
Fundamentally, patients who have a doctor/health plan/facility relationship with SWMC or have
no health care plan affiliation (i.e., uninsured, or from outside of the region/state/country) are
most likely to access emergency services at SWMC. Otherwise, patients with serious trauma or
who have doctor/health plan/facility relationships with the three major hospitals in the County,
are very unlikely to use SWMC.
With the Coastal Valley EMS Agency protocols in mind, it becomes clear that patient proximity
is only one factor in the decision by patients and emergency response providers to choose to
access emergency services at the hospital in Sebastopol.
Predictors of Emergency Success: Proximity, Availability, and Capability of First Responders
The public generally equates the availability of emergency room access as the most important
factor in predicting the outcome of emergency medical calls. This viewpoint would clearly
indicate that having emergency room services at the hospital in Sebastopol would be of primary
importance.
It should be noted that at least three other important predictors of the success of emergency
services provision are the availability, proximity, and capabilities of first responders.
In simplistic terms, it is perhaps less important how long it takes to get to hospital emergency
services compared to the time it takes for first responders to get to patients in the first place.
First responders often point out that they convert “incidents” into “patients.”
This assertion by no means diminishes the relative importance of having emergency room
services available in the West County, but it may provide a better context for evaluating what
mix of “acute, emergency, and other medical services” PDHCD might consider providing or
subsidizing now and in the future.
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FACTOR 4 – FINANCIAL ABILITY TO PROVIDE SERVICES
Financial ability of agencies to provide services

YES

Does the organization routinely engage in budgeting practices that
may indicate poor financial management, such as overspending its
revenues, failing to conduct commission independent audits, or
adopting its budget late?
Is the organization lacking adequate reserve to protect against
unexpected events or upcoming significant costs?

MAYBE

X

X

Is the organization’s rate/fee schedule insufficient to fund an
adequate level of service, and/or is the fee inconsistent with the
schedules of similar service organizations?

X

Is the organization unable to fund necessary infrastructure
maintenance, replacement and/or any needed expansion?
Is the organization lacking financial policies that ensure its continued
financial accountability and stability?
Is the organization’s debt at an unmanageable level?

NO

X

X
X

Determinations
•

The District has proposed a bankruptcy plan to the court and creditors; if the plan is
approved, the District will pay on the order of $800,000 per year to creditors over the
next seven years, and some debt will be restructured.

•

If the District’s bankruptcy plan is approved, the District will have just over $1 million per
year for the seven-year period to devote to hospital subsidies and community health
programs. If the District continues to consider hospital subsidy payments a priority, it will
likely be unable to support additional expansion of community health services during the
bankruptcy repayment period.

•

In overarching terms, during the bankruptcy repayment period, the District will be
devoting on the order of three quarters of its revenue to debt payments, with only a
quarter available to meet its mission.

•

The District is facing the potential detachment of Russian River area communities.
Although landowners in the detachment area would still pay their portion of the debt
burden of the District if detachment is granted by LAFCO (including bankruptcy plan
payments), the District would experience a decrease of about 40% of revenue that can
be devoted to non-debt purposes (i.e. District operation costs and financial contributions
to the hospital and community health initiatives).
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•

If detachment of the Russian River communities is granted, the District would need to
identify new funding sources, seek additional debt financing, identify expense cuts, or
some combination thereof if it wishes to provide the planned subsidies to the hospital.
The District would otherwise be unable to provide full, planned subsidies beginning as
early as 2018.

•

The District retains the authority to seek additional revenue from the community, to
support hospital subsidies or other public health programs, by proposing a raise in the
parcel tax amount, which would have to be authorized by voters. The District also has
the right to seek additional debt financing, using the hospital facility and/or future tax
revenues as collateral, although loan terms would very likely be quite onerous given the
existing debt burden and the lack of a credit rating for the District.

•

The District should consider preparing capital plans for the hospital facility and for
equipment to better predict the need for subsidies to the existing or future hospital
operator and should consider retaining direct responsibility and oversight of funding
devoted to these expense categories.

Discussion
Financial Ability: Overview
The analyses of the District’s financial circumstances presented here applies a framework of
predicting District income, debt service obligations and District operating expenses, and
subsequently determining what remaining financial resources the District can expect to have to
support the District’s mission.
District financial reports are the foundation of the analysis; in particular, the audited financial
results for the District in 2014 and 2015 and the District’s proposed bankruptcy settlement plan.
Note: The District’s proposed bankruptcy settlement plan has since been withdrawn, and
subsequent negotiations with creditors are taking place. However, for the purposes of this
review, the settlement plan represents a valid proxy for how the bankruptcy payments will affect
District finances, and the other budgetary projections in the plan remain valid.
This section also attempts to identify relevant risks to the financial viability of the District, where
appropriate, to examine alternative scenarios to predict potential outcomes if these risks come
to pass, and to suggest actions the District could take to ameliorate their effects.
District Income: Tax Receipts
The District revenue figures presented later in the financial analysis are taken from District
projections and include a transfer of reserve funds to the revenue account in 2016 of $2.3
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million. Tax revenues are very predictable given that they are parcel tax-based rather than
property tax-based (which would fluctuate based on property value assessments).
If the District identifies that additional revenue is required to meet its mission, with the priorities
that it has decided to pursue, it would be advisable to weigh seeking an increase in the parcel
tax assessment compared to seeking additional debt financing. Seeking a parcel tax increase
has the advantage of allowing District residents to directly indicate their support or lack of same
for the priorities that the District board has chosen.
Pre-Bankruptcy District Debt
The District has three sets of debt obligations:
•

•
•

General obligation bonds that were encumbered in 2000 (to purchase the hospital from a
citizens group that had secured it in hopes of forming a health care district to reopen the
facility)
Parcel tax revenue bonds issued in 2005 (future parcel tax receipts are pledged to pay
the debt service)
Parcel tax “Certificates of Participation” (COPs) issued in 2010 (again, future parcel tax
revenues are pledged to pay the debt service; a portfolio of bonds was issued with
varying maturities and interest rates)

According to the District’s financial audit conducted for 2014 and 2015, the three classes of debt
incurred by the District total $20,800,000. The District also entered into capital leases for
equipment with short-term maturity dates, in the amount of just over $1,800,000. These
obligations are included in the District’s bankruptcy filing.
Figure 2 projects the current debt service obligations of the District through 2035.
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Figure 2: District Debt Obligations by Type
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It should be noted that the debt service payments are structured so as to be very consistent,
with payments of approximately $2,055,000 annually through 2030, followed by payments of
approximately $1,047,000 per year for five years beginning in 2031.
As part of Assembly Bill 582, which passed in June 2014 and was specifically directed at
PDHCD, the District was granted the authority to refinance debt, while at the same time
providing a “statutory lien” against future tax revenue to secure the debts.
The District has not refinanced debts, and, due to reporting lapses, has forfeited a bond rating
that would enable it to do so now. The current bankruptcy also precludes the possibility of
refinancing or restructuring debt.
With debt financing at 7.5% and 5% (depending on issuance) and current bond rates
significantly lower, it is unfortunate that the District did not restructure existing debt, which would
have resulted in lower payments and therefore more funding available to support the District’s
ongoing mission.
Bankruptcy Settlement Plan
The District has filed a bankruptcy settlement plan with the court and is seeking acceptance of
the plan by seven classes of creditors. It is reasonable to conclude that the plan represents the
minimum that the District will be ordered to pay as a settlement; there is some risk that one or
more creditor classes will not accept the plan or that the court may impose a more costly
settlement.
The District’s bankruptcy plan treats each creditor class differently and includes write-offs of
owed amounts, varying payment schedules over a seven-year period, and restructuring of some
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existing debt (including a short-term freeze on payments of some principal and interest and an
extension of debt service payments to “out” years).
For the purposes of the financial analysis prepared for this report, the District’s bankruptcy
settlement plan has been used to project bankruptcy payments as well as payments for
Figure 3 Bankruptcy Plan, Adjusted Debt Obligations
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restructured debt. As noted above, these projections are a “floor” – if there is a risk, it is that the
ordered bankruptcy payments will be higher or that the payment terms would be shorter.
Figure 3 illustrates the District’s debt structure if the bankruptcy plan is approved.
Potential Increase in Debt
The District has not indicated that it is considering issuing new debt that might be secured
against real assets (the hospital facility) or future tax income. A number of residents of the
District are concerned that the District may seek additional debt financing in the future,
encumbering constituents with additional long-term debt payments.
While the current District board cannot be expected to rule out seeking additional debt financing
in the future, or to preclude a future board from doing so, the District might consider adopting a
policy describing potential avenues for seeking additional debt financing and under what
conditions the District might consider that option.
District Operation Costs
District operation costs include administrative staff costs and costs for conducting District
business, including consulting fees for legal and financial services.
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The District has proposed an operational cost budget through 2022 in its bankruptcy settlement
proposal. For the financial analysis presented here, the annual District operation budget of
$350,000 in 2022 has been projected through 2035 with an escalation rate of 3%. This
projection assumes that the District has appropriately budgeted for staffing and administration
costs, including long-term employee obligations such as retirement and health care obligations.
It should be noted that the District’s operation costs through 2020 are quite high due to
projected costs for legal and accounting services support, nominally due to bankruptcy-related
activities. Beginning in 2021, District operation costs return to a nominal level to support
ongoing staff functions.
Health Care Funding
The District has traditionally devoted all remaining financial resources, after debt payments and
District operation costs, to subsidies for the hospital operation but, since 2015, provides a
modest subsidy to a community health program in the Russian River area. The District is also
proposing to fund additional community health programs.
For the financial analysis presented here, the health care funding levels presented in the
District’s bankruptcy settlement plan are used through 2022. Interestingly, the District projects
funding levels of $1 million per year for the hospital through 2020, then $500,000 per year
thereafter. We have conducted financial projections using the District’s projections (reflected in
Figure 4) but also have run an analysis with $1 million per year in hospital subsidies through the
entire study period, reflected in Figure 5.
For funding for community health programs, our analysis uses the District’s projections through
2022, then applies a 3% annual escalation factor for out years.
Summary of District Expenses Analysis
Figure 4 illustrates the totality of projected District expenses through the study period based on
the projections made in the bankruptcy settlement filing, including:
•
•
•
•

Debt servicing and bankruptcy settlement payments
District expenses
Hospital subsidy payments (which decrease from $1 million per year to $500,000 per
year beginning in 2021)
Community health program expenses
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Figure 4 – District Expenses Using District Projections
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Figure 5 simply adjusts these projections by assuming that the District will continue to subsidize
the hospital operation at $1 million per year throughout the study period.

Figure 5: District Expenses Adjusted for Highe,r Long-Term Hospital Subsidies
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Income vs. Expenses and Reserves: District Projections
For the final graphs showing the overall financial projection for the District, we have plotted
District revenue and predicted resultant reserve levels. The definition of “reserve” for this
analysis differs from that typically used by the District. The District considers funds available
after paying District expenses (debt payments, and District operations) to be “reserves,” which
can then be used to supplement hospital operations.
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For this analysis, projected payments to the hospital are considered expenses, and therefore
“reserves” represent amounts left over, if any, after paying for all District expenses. The
reserve figures indicate whether the District is able to “stay ahead” of expenses over time.
Figure 6 shows the revenue and expense comparison and resultant reserve levels based on
unadjusted projections from the District.
Figure 6: Income, Expenses, and Reserves, Unadjusted
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There are several items to note about these resulting projections:
•

•
•

The bankruptcy settlement plan, combined with the transfer of $2.3 million from reserves
made in 2016, enables the District to meet its projected payment stream of $1 million per
year for hospital operations over the next five years (although expenses exceed income
for 2017 through 2020).
District reserves decline to just below $900,000 in 2020, 2021, and 2022.
District reserves then recover significantly and climb at a high rate when debt service
payments drop dramatically beginning in 2031.

Income vs. Expenses and Reserve: Alternate Scenario
Our “alternative” analysis, which simply considers an ongoing subsidy of $1 million to the
hospital throughout the study period, results in the projections shown in Figure 7.
Figure 7: Income, Expenses and Reserves Adjusted for Higher, Long-Term Hospital Subsidies
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The “takeaway” from this set of projections is that the District would have higher expenses than
income beginning next year through 2022; reserves would decline precipitously, falling to
$500,000 or below for an eight-year period beginning in 2021 (and actually going negative in
2022). Reserve levels don’t recover appreciably until 2031.
Impact of Detachment of Russian River Area Communities
Other than the overarching concern regarding the financial stability and viability of the hospital
operation, which is discussed in the following section, the other significant risk to the District is
the potential detachment of Russian River area communities.
An application for detachment of the Monte Rio, Guerneville, and Forestville Union School
District areas from the District has been filed with LAFCO and will be considered beginning in
September 2016.
It should be noted that, if any areas are detached from the District, property owners within those
areas will remain responsible for a portion of the debts incurred by the District prior to the
detachment.
Nevertheless, detachment of any areas from the District will result in a loss of funding that could
be devoted to a hospital subsidy or other expenditures which the District would like to make in
support of its mission.
For our financial analysis of the Russian River area detachment, the income, expense, and
reserve projections are repeated under the two scenarios (one with District projections for
hospital subsidies, the other with a $1 million per year subsidy throughout the projection period).
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It should be noted that we also reduced projected expenses for community health programs to a
nominal level ($25,000 per year throughout the projection period). The District has indicated that
it expects community program expenditures to be directed almost solely to the Russian River
area, and that if that area were to detach from the District, the District would no longer pursue
those initiatives.
The District has offered some funding support for programs in other communities, such as
support for equipment purchases by the Bodega Bay Fire District. Funding for these efforts
doesn’t appear to be accounted for in the District’s expense projections and is not accounted for
in our analyses.
Figure 8: Income, Expenses and Reserve Projections Post-Detachment (District Expense
Projections with Lower Community Health Program Expenses)
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Figure 8 summarizes the projected fiscal conditions for the District if the Russian River area
communities are detached.
The significant reduction in tax receipts that would occur post-detachment would preclude the
District from providing subsidies for hospital operations at the levels projected by the District,
beginning in 2018, when reserves would fall to zero.
During this period the District would have to consider securing additional sources of revenue
(e.g., an increase in the parcel tax assessment or further debt financing) or would have to cut
the projected subsidy level to the hospital.
It should be reiterated that the District would not become insolvent in the event of detachment –
it simply wouldn’t have the resources to devote to hospital subsidies as planned.
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Beginning in 2023, the District would again have sufficient resources to make projected hospital
subsidy payments (at the projected rate of $500,000 per year), on a cash flow basis.
Post-detachment, the District would be unable to sustain continued annual subsidy payments of
$1 million per year but could once again be able to do so in 2031, as shown in Figure 9.
Figure 9: Income, Expenses and Reserve Projections Post-Detachment (Adjusted for Higher,
Long-Term Hospital Subsidies and Lower Community Health Program Expenses)
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Figure 10 shows the availability of funding that could be devoted to hospital operation subsidies,
compared to the District’s projected funding levels, and perhaps better illustrate the preceding
discussion.
The District would be substantially impacted by a detachment of the Russian River area
communities, precluding it from providing subsidies to the hospital at the levels it projects in its
bankruptcy settlement plan, beginning in 2018. The District would remain solvent and could also
identify new revenues, debt financing, reductions in expenses, or some combination thereof,
that would allow it to fund hospital subsidies at higher levels.

28

Final Report

Figure 10: Available Funding for Hospital Subsidies, Post-Detachment
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Is Subsidy of Hospital “Sufficient” to Ensure Sustainability?
The District, historically and as a matter of policy, believes that, to fulfill its mission, it must
support a hospital that provides acute and emergency care in the West County.
Under its Management and Staffing Services Agreement (Agreement or MSA) with SWMC, the
District has committed to augmenting hospital revenue with $1 million per year from annual
District tax revenues, for five years, subject to the availability of funds.
The subsidy funds, according to the MSA, are to be used for repair and maintenance of the
hospital property, purchase and repair of medical equipment, and subsidies for charity care and
programs that benefit the community.
A fundamental question related to the sustainability of the District is whether there is and will be
availability of District tax revenue to fund the agreed-to subsidy. Additionally, if it is agreed that
supporting a hospital that provides acute and emergency care is the primary mission of the
District, will the subsidy result in the sustainable operation of the hospital?
Even with a comprehensive analysis of SWMC’s initial operational and financial circumstances
(which can be gleaned from monthly financial reports that SWMC is obligated to provide to the
District under the terms of the MSA), as well as a critique of SWMC’s Business Plan, it would be
difficult to provide a definitive assessment of the sustainability of the hospital operation under
SWMC (or other operator) management.
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Suffice it to say that SWMC has relied on millions of dollars in donations and/or loans to
underwrite the re-opening of the hospital and continues to experience significant difficulties with
cash flow and outright financial losses that have been as high as $800,000 per month or more.
Sonoma LAFCO has therefore chosen to focus primarily on the first question: Can the District
provide the agreed-to subsidy to the hospital operator? Our financial analysis, based on District
financial reports, provides a basis for answering this question under a variety of scenarios.
Nevertheless, LAFCO staff proposes two recommendations that would help the District evaluate
the “sufficiency” of the subsidy payments: completing a facility capital and expense plan and
developing a medical equipment acquisition and maintenance plan. Prudent assessments of
both of these cost categories might yield a better understanding of whether the annual subsidy
amount will be sufficient to cover these two (of three) cost categories.
Facilities and Equipment Plans, and Authority
A facilities plan is an assessment of the condition of the hospital facility, with projections for
maintenance and replacement activities over a reasonable time horizon (generally at least ten
years).
Assessments of this type would yield an annualized acquisition and maintenance budget, with a
reserve account for anticipated major repairs. Simply stated, the budget would cover regular
ongoing maintenance activities (i.e. utility service payments, maintenance of heating, ventilation,
and air conditioning equipment, etc.) as well as anticipated costs for major repairs (i.e. roof
replacement, mandated seismic upgrades, etc.).
The District undertook an initial assessment of the hospital facility in 2013, with preliminary
results identifying investment requirements of $15.3 million for the first five years and an
additional $5 million in the following three years. However, these estimates were both
preliminary and included many options for selecting capital projects.
It should also be noted that the District (and SWMC) have made some investments in the
hospital facility in order to reopen in late 2015. At present, the District relies on SWMC to
propose capital improvement projects.
The District does not apparently have a medical equipment acquisition and maintenance plan
over a similar timeframe, and also relies on SWMC to propose equipment purchases. Given that
the hospital facility and medical equipment are the District’s sole assets and would conceivably
be offered to another healthcare management operator in the event of failure of SWMC, it would
be prudent for the District to retain sole responsibility for the maintenance and expenditures that
support these assets.
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LAFCO recommends that the District consider renegotiating the MSA with SWMC (or negotiate
a different arrangement if a new hospital operator is engaged), reclaiming authority for property
management and management of medical equipment, rather than ceding this authority per the
current agreement (Article 2.2 f).
Subsidy Comparison to Other Sonoma HCDs
Contextually, LAFCO staff analyzed the other three health care districts in Sonoma County to
determine how much tax revenue support is provided to Healdsburg District Hospital, Sonoma
Valley Hospital, and Petaluma Valley Hospital and how those levels of support compare with the
support Palm Drive Health Care District will nominally provide to SWMC or another hospital
operator. Table 1 summarizes these findings.
Table 1: Comparative Subsidy Rates for Sonoma County Health Care Districts

District

Hospital

Petaluma Health
Care District

Petaluma Valley
Hospital

North Sonoma
County
Healthcare
District

Healdsburg
District Hospital

Sonoma Valley
Healthcare
District

Sonoma Valley
Hospital

Palm Drive
Health Care
District

Sonoma West
Medical Center

Annual Net
Revenue* of
Hospital

Tax Subsidy

Percent

$0

0

$40,210,165

$3,357,254

8.3%

Data from audited
financial
statements, 2015

$51,394,060

$6,034,710

11.7%

Data from audited
financial
statements, 2015

(up to) 3.6%

Revenue from
audited financial
statement of Palm
Drive Hospital,
2013

Unknown

(up to)
$1,000,000

$27,488,000

Notes
District does not
levy taxes and
receives payments
from hospital
operator

*“Net Revenue” is a measure of the actual revenue received from insurers, patients, and other sources, rather than
the amount billed to patients and insurers. Net revenue is typically less than half of billed “revenue.”

Petaluma Health Care District
Petaluma Healthcare District is anomalous, in that the District leases its hospital facilities and
equipment to a healthcare operator and receives annual lease payments. The District does not
assess tax levies of any kind and uses lease payments and other sources of revenue (e.g.,
grants) to fund community health initiatives.
The District may be in a position to maintain this fortuitous arrangement due to the underlying
circumstances of location: residents of Petaluma may use services at Petaluma Valley Hospital
at a somewhat higher rate than the other community hospitals in the County because other
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options are located further away (Santa Rosa, Marin), although Kaiser Permanent offers non
emergency services at its Petaluma facility.
North Sonoma County Healthcare District
North Sonoma County Healthcare District operates Healdsburg District Hospital, and a parcel
tax levied in the District provides over eight percent of the net revenues of the operation.
According to the District’s CEO, Nancy Schmid, the subsidy is crucial to the viability of the
hospital.
A small group of residents in Windsor filed a notice of intent to circulate a petition in Windsor to
support a detachment application in 2015, but that effort has been abandoned.
Sonoma Valley Healthcare District
The District has been running consistent operational deficits in recent years on the order of $4
million annually, and financial reports acknowledge that the District’s tax revenues are crucial for
ongoing viability and sustainability.
Palm Drive Health Care District
The District has been able to provide operating subsidies to the hospital (when operated by the
District) approaching $2 million annually but has now committed to providing SWMC a subsidy
of as much as $1 million per year, subject to the ability of the District to fund that amount. For
this contextual comparison, the net revenue for the hospital uses the audited financial results for
the hospital in 2013, when it was operated by the District. If SWMC or another hospital operator
has similar annual net revenue, the District’s subsidy is proportionally less than half that of North
Sonoma County HCD’s and less than a third of Sonoma Valley HCD’s contributions.
FACTOR 5 – OPPORTUNITIES FOR SHARED SERVICES AND FACILITIES
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.

YES

MAYBE

NO

a. Is the agency currently sharing services or facilities with other
organizations? If so, describe the status of such efforts.

X

b. Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services or
facilities with neighboring or overlapping organizations that are not
currently being utilized?

X

c. Are there any governance options that may produce economies of scale
and/or improve buying power in order to reduce costs?

X

Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.

YES

d. Are there governance options to allow appropriate facilities and/or
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resources to be shared, or making excess capacity available to others,
and avoid construction of extra or unnecessary infrastructure or
eliminate duplicative resources?

Determinations
•

PDHCD has no apparent opportunities for shared services for District operations.

Discussion
Because the District has opted to secure a contracted operator of the hospital, there are no
apparent opportunities for the District proper to seek shared services arrangements.
(The hospital operator may benefit from partnerships with other regional hospitals for shared
services, purchasing programs, or other arrangements to reduce costs, however, perhaps
improving financial viability and thereby reducing the need for subsides from the District. For
example, when PDHCD operated the hospital directly, it initiated a shared services agreement
with Sonoma Valley Hospital for information technology services.)
FACTOR 6 – ACCOUNTABILITY, STRUCTURE AND EFFICIENCIES
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure
and operational efficiencies.

YES

MAYBE

NO

a. Are there any issues with meetings being accessible and well
publicized? Any failures to comply with disclosure laws and the Brown
Act?

X

b. Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining board
members?

X

c. Are there any issues with staff turnover or operational efficiencies?

X

d. Is there a lack of regular audits, adopted budgets and public access to
these documents?

X

e. Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s governance
structure that will increase accountability and efficiency?
f. Are there any governance restructure options to enhance services
and/or eliminate deficiencies or redundancies?
g. Are there any opportunities to eliminate overlapping boundaries that
confuse the public, cause service inefficiencies, unnecessarily increase
the cost of infrastructure, exacerbate rate issues and/or undermine good
planning practices?
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Determinations
•

The District strives to follow requirements to hold publicly-noticed and publiclyaccessible board meetings but has been criticized by constituents for perceived lapses.

•

It is apparent that, for a portion of the District’s constituents, there is a sense that the
District does not operate transparently and is otherwise unresponsive to questions and
concerns raised by citizens.

•

Without prejudice, LAFCO recommends that the District endeavor to exceed the
minimum regulatory standards of disclosure and re-commit to a sense of partnership
with the community it serves; and that the constituents of the District, while fully
exercising their rights to participate in District deliberations, continue to attempt to work
cooperatively with the District board and staff.

•

The District continues to attract candidates for board positions and conducts competitive
elections. Historically, board members have largely come from Sebastopol (and
occasionally from Bodega Bay), and it is only recently that members from the Russian
River area have successfully been elected to Board of Directors. The Commission
recommends that the District consider holding elections by district to ensure geographic
representation on the Board.

•

District board members are in compliance with legal requirements related to reporting of
income and business interests (Fair Political Practices Commission), and have
documented their completion of legally-required training (ethics and Brown Act).

•

District finances are regularly independently audited. Recent audits have found
deficiencies in financial management of the District, and it is unclear whether the District
has responded effectively to the recommendations of their auditors.

•

The governance model employed by the District in partnership with SWMC (or
potentially another hospital operator) should be re-evaluated to address concerns
regarding transparency of decision-making and potential responsibilities for liabilities of
the hospital operator.
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Discussion
Public Meetings
The District strives to appropriately notice and conduct public meetings and maintains a website
to post relevant information in a timely fashion (including meeting agendas and minutes and
other documents, such as financial reports).
The District directors have completed all legislatively-mandated training, (e.g., Ethics for Public
Officials), are current on mandated disclosures (e.g., financial disclosures filed with the
California Fair Political Practices Commission), and have undertaken other appropriate training
(e.g., Brown Act compliance).
District directors have completed all legislatively-mandated training, (e.g., Ethics for Public
Officials), are current on mandated disclosures (e.g., financial disclosures filed with the
California Fair Political Practices Commission), and have undertaken other appropriate
training (e.g., Brown Act compliance).
Critics have alleged that the District does not respond to information requests in a timely
fashion, that board interactions with the public are not inclusive and welcoming, and that
potential violations of the Brown Act have occurred. LAFCO has declined to take a role in
reviewing these allegations in the absence of formal regulatory complaints and responses from
regulatory agencies. (One formal complaint, made to the District Attorney in 2016, resulted
in a finding that no violation of the Brown Act occurred.)
District Directors and staff are sensitive to allegations regarding transparency and
compliance with regulatory requirements and note that District counsel provides advice on
these matters and is present at almost every District meeting.
Without prejudice, LAFCO recommends that the elected directors of the District and staff
redouble their efforts to adjudicate District business matters in an open and transparent
fashion, seeking inclusion of community perspective in their decision-making process.
Similarly, LAFCO recommends that citizens continue to exercise their rights to participate in
District business in a respectful manner, seeking to partner with their elected representatives to
assist the District in meeting its mission.
Board Membership
PDHCD has a five-member board with members elected at large within the District, on
staggered four-year terms. The District has not encountered difficulty in attracting board
candidates, and there have always been more candidates than available seats in past elections,
resulting in contested elections.
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Some residents in the Russian River communities within the District believe that their voting
power is not commensurate with their financial support of the District: while the communities
provide over 40% of District parcel tax revenue, fewer than 20% of the registered voters within
the District reside in the River area.
Because “landowner” districts (districts where landowners elect board members rather than
registered voters) are forbidden by state law (there are “residual” landowner districts in the
state, but new ones cannot be formed unless through legislation), the disparity between voter
registration and financial contribution in the District cannot be addressed in this fashion.
If it is apparent that a particular region within a city or special district is regularly disenfranchised
due to an inability to elect representative board members, a move to elections by district is
generally considered a suitable solution.
In the case of PDHCD, a resident from the Russian River communities has only recently been
elected to the board. (Proportionally, the District should typically have one representative
who resides within the River area.) The District should therefore consider holding elections
by district in order to ensure geographical representation on the board.
Staff Turnover
While PDHCD operated the hospital in Sebastopol directly, there were staff turnover issues
during various periods of financial instability. Now that the District has chosen to contract for
management and operation of the hospital going forward, it is not expected to face turnover
issues for the two staff positions it directly funds.
Financial Transparency
The District has commissioned annual independent financial audits and provides access to the
reports to the public. In addition, the MSA with SMWC requires that monthly hospital operation
financial results are reported to the PDHCD board; these are also publicly available.
The FY 2015 audit identified that the District lacked an identified financial management team for
a significant portion of the year and was therefore unable to record transactions and produce
financial statements. There were transactions, such as disposal of hospital equipment that were
not properly accounted for and recorded. The auditor recommended that the District form a
financial management team and institute appropriate financial controls. The District has not
indicated whether it has acted on this recommendation, and there is no indication that the
District has adopted other fiscal control policies.
Governance Structure
For the first time since formation, the District has opted to select an independent operator for the
hospital. After conducting a search for potential operators, the Sonoma West Medical Center
was granted the “contract” to re-open and operate what was the Palm Drive Medical Center.
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SWMC is comprised of local medical professionals and business representatives who do not
operate any other medical facilities.
The District governs the contract with SWMC through a Management and Staffing Services
Agreement that delineates PDHCD oversight of SWMC, and governs what services SWMC is to
provide to the District.
Ostensibly to shield the District from any potential financial liabilities that might be incurred by
SWMC, but at the same time allow for a level of control and oversight of SWMC’s management,
PDHCD has formed a “subcommittee” of the board named the Hospital Governance Board. The
Governance Board consists of all five members of the PDHCD board, five members of the
public, and two additional members selected by SWMC.
The responsibilities of the board include monitoring SWMC’s performance. The Governing
Board also has the authority to select SWMC’s CEO.
The governance structure that PDHCD has instituted raises several concerns:
•

•

Is PDHCD sufficiently “insulated” from any liabilities that are incurred by SWMC,
particularly given that all five PDHCD board members serve on the Governing Board,
and that the Governing Board has significant direct management oversight of SWMC?
Can the actions taken by the Governing Board, which is a subcommittee of the PDHCD
board, be sufficiently transparent that a member of the public could reasonably be
expected to understand how decisions are being made?

PDHCD asserts that the governing structure is similar to ones in place for other health care
districts and has been reviewed by its legal counsel and found sufficient with regard to the
liability question.
District critics are concerned about the liability issue but also point to confusion regarding where
decision-making authority lies and how to meaningfully participate in District governance.
It is also notable that the governance structure has proven cumbersome in at least one recent
instance, where it was less than clear to SWMC, the Governing Board, and the PDHCD board
what approval process was needed to select and approve a new CEO for SWMC.
Given the gravity of the question of whether liabilities incurred by SWMC might very well be
transferable to PDHCD given the current governance structure and the concerns of District
constituents about clear lines of authority, transparency, and opportunities for citizen
participation in decision-making, the District might consider re-evaluating the governance
structure, even if that results in a need for renegotiation of the MSA.
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FACTOR 7 – COMMISSION POLICY CONSIDERATIONS
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery,
as required by commission policy.
Are there any other service delivery issues that can be
resolved by the MSR/SOI process?

YES

MAYBE

NO
X

Determinations
None
Discussion
There are no other issues that have been identified related to effective or efficient service
delivery and therefore no MSR determinations in this category.
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IV. SPHERE OF INFLUENCE
Sonoma LAFCO has several options for addressing the sphere of influence of the Palm Drive
Health Care District, including:
1. Re-affirming the existing sphere of influence, indicating that the District is not expected to
serve new territory or detach existing territory.
2. Expanding the sphere of influence to recognize additional territory that the District might
annex.
3. Reducing the existing sphere to indicate territory that the District or the Commission may
consider detaching.
4. Setting a “zero sphere;” an indication that the District should at some point be dissolved.
On the basis of this Municipal Service Review, LAFCO staff does not recommend an
amendment to the Palm Drive Health Care District sphere of influence at this time. Please
note that this recommendation does not pertain to Sonoma LAFCO’s adjudication of an
application for detachment from the District of communities in the Russian River area, which is
pending.
Given that there is a pending citizen-led petition for detachment, LAFCO staff recommends that
the Commission consider a sphere amendment should the detachment be approved,
recognizing that the District would be very unlikely to secure approval from the detached
communities to rejoin the District through annexation at a later date.
As mentioned in the Agency Profile section of this report, the Palm Drive Health Care District
continues to experience changing circumstances, particularly with regard to the ability of the
hospital to operate sustainably. If circumstances change for the hospital operation, that may call
into question the appropriate role for PDHCD to take in order to fulfill its mission.
Therefore, again depending on circumstances that are impossible to predict accurately, Sonoma
LAFCO should be prepared to update this report as needed and to reconsider a sphere
amendment or a change of organization for the District at a later time.
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ADDENDUM 1

Municipal Service Review And Sphere of Influence Study
For the Palm Drive Health Care District
Sonoma Local Agency Formation Commission
September 26, 2016
Supplemental Discussion for Factor 3 – Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and
Services
Emergency Services Certification and Status Reporting
PDHCD has considered operation of the hospital in Sebastopol as the key activity to
support its mission of providing “emergency, acute care and other medical services”.
The current operators of the hospital, Sonoma West Medical Center, have obtained
certification of emergency room services from the California Department of Public
Health, but have not been reporting their day-to-day operational status to the Coastal
Valleys EMS agency.
Certification
The California Department of Public Health operates a Licensing and Certification
division that categorizes health care facilities and evaluates what types of services they
provide.
Sonoma West Medical Center is classified as a “General Acute Care” hospital, with a
“Standby Emergency Medical Services” approval. (The Dept. of Public Health relies on
accreditation agencies to determine if a facility can be classified as a hospital.)
“Standby Emergency Medical Services” indicates the provision of emergency medical
care in a specifically designated area of the hospital that is equipped and maintained at
all times to receive patients with emergency medical problems and is capable of
providing physician service within a reasonable time (per the Emergency Medical
Service Authority).
Healdsburg Hospital, operated by the North Sonoma Health Care District, has the same
emergency services classification as SWMC. The other five major hospitals (Kaiser,
Sutter, Memorial, Petaluma, and Sonoma Valley) are classified as “Basic Emergency
Medical Services” providers. “Basic Emergency Medical Services” indicates that these
facilities provide emergency medical care in a specifically defined area of the hospital

that is equipped at all times to provide prompt care for any patient presenting urgent
medical problems.
The District has indicated that SWMC has essentially been offering emergency care
services at the “Basic” level, and that SWMC intends to apply for certification at that
level with the California Department of Public Health.
Status Reporting
The Coastal Valleys EMS Agency (CVEMSA) operates under the statutory authority
established in the California Health and Safety Code and acts as the regulator of
emergency medical services in Sonoma County (and, under contract, Mendocino
County). The primary mission of CVEMSA is to plan, implement, and evaluate the local
EMS system, including licensing ambulance provider companies, coordination of air and
ground ambulances, certification of EMTs and paramedics, and other activities.
CVEMSA gathers information from the seven hospitals in Sonoma County to identify the
specific services and level of care offered; this information is used to review destination
policies that guide the distribution of patients within the EMS system (i.e. directing
ambulance providers to take patients to specified hospitals).
CVEMSA uses a notification system called ImageTrend to allow hospitals to report a
general or specific lack of a defined capability in real time. For example, a hospital that
cannot provide emergency care services to certain types of patients because of an
imaging equipment failure would use ImageTrend to report that lack of capability, and
patients needing those services would be directed to other facilities.
Since reopening, SWMC has not participated in the ImageTrend reporting system, so
CVEMSA declines to state whether they have been made aware of all instances when
SWMC may have had service, capability, or capacity deficiencies. However, as of
September 9th, 2016, CVEMSA reports that SWMC has engaged with the Agency and is
intent on reporting emergency care status in the future.
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V. ATTACHMENTS

1.

Sonoma LAFCO: Scope of MSR for Palm Drive Health Care District

2.

Sonoma LAFCO: Formation Resolution for Palm Drive Health Care District

3.

Palm Drive Health Care District, Financial Audit 2014/15,

4.

Palm Drive Health Care District, Proposed Bankruptcy Settlement Plan

5.

Coastal Valleys EMS Agency: Patient Destination/Point of Entry Policy 7007

6.

Sonoma LAFCO: Financial Analysis of PDHCD (Annotated Excel Spreadsheet)

7.

North Sonoma County Healthcare District: Letter Dated May 11, 2016, Regarding
Financial Information

8.

Sonoma LAFCO Request for Information to the District and District Response.

9.

MSA between the District and Sonoma West Medical Center
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ATTACHMENT 1
SONOMA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
575 ADMINISTRATION DRIVE, ROOM 104A, SANTA ROSA, CA 95403
(707) 565-2577 FAX (707) 565-3778
www.sonomalafco.org

Service Review Scope for
Palm Drive Health Care District
April 28, 2016

The Sonoma Local Agency Formation Commission will be conducting a service review
of the Palm Drive Health Care District (District or PDHCD).
The Commission is conducting the study to support several potential activities,
including:
•
•
•

Evaluation and adjudication of an application filed by community members to
detach from the District.
A Commission-initiated amendment to the Sphere of Influence of the District.
A Commission or District-initiated dissolution of the District (although, at this time,
this is not considered a likely outcome).

In order to provide the appropriate level of investigation and guidance to the
Commission and to support adjudication of any of the actions noted above, LAFCO staff
is recommending that a study meet the determinations required for Municipal Service
Reviews in the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000,
Government Code §56430 (Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg).
Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg mandates that a Municipal Service Review (which is required
to prepare and update the Sphere of Influence of a District) prepare written
determinations with regard to each of the following:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Growth and population projections for the affected area;
The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated
communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence;
Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public
services, and infrastructure needs or deficiencies;
Financial ability of agencies to provide services;
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities;
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental
structure and operational efficiencies;
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as
required by Commission policy.

For each of these study areas, staff has prepared discussion points, specific questions
related to PDHCD, and general study factors with notes as appropriate.
Scope of Study

1.

Population Projections
For this District, population growth projections might be marginally useful in
understanding the projected need for health care services in the region, although
an understanding of health care provision trends might be more useful (i.e., what
proportion of District residents seek health care services from other providers,
and is this proportion likely to change over time?)
With regard to the District's ability to fund health care services, population
projections are not meaningful because the District relies on a parcel tax levy for
revenue, which is wholly independent of population (or of property value).
Staff believes, then, that population growth projections would be marginally
informative, and that a determination could simply indicate same.

2.

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities (DUCs)
Under current definitions, the District serves two of seven Disadvantaged
Unincorporated Communities in Sonoma County (Guerneville and Monte Rio)
and borders one (Cazadero).
Discussion of the provision of services to DUCs, while potentially pertinent, might
be better understood within a broader analysis of what services the District does
or should be providing to meet the needs of District residents in the next section.

3.

Adequacy of Public Services
Staff believes that this area warrants particular coverage in a study, including an
evaluation of what types of services are needed by the communities and
residents throughout the District and how best to provide them, given the health
care landscape in the County now and into the future.
Specific Questions
What are the types of services that the District is authorized to provide, according
to formation documents?
If the Sonoma West Medical Center (SWMC, the newly formed entity that the
District has contracted with to operate the hospital) is unable to continue
operations at some time in the future, what is the District's plan to continue
providing medical services? What services might these include?
What, if any, medical services are the District planning to provide or financially
support beyond the services provided by SWMC? Will any of these services be
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directed to Russian River Corridor communities or other outlying communities
that are within the District boundary (i.e., coastal areas)?
What have been the historical annual admission rates for Palm Drive Hospital by
broad service category (emergency care, critical care, general admissions)? Can
this information indicate what proportion of hospital users have come from
Russian River Corridor communities?
The parcel tax assessments supporting the District have no expiration date, nor
do they feature a mechanism for indexing them to increases in District
operational costs. Does the District expect to have increasing costs in the future,
and if so, how would it plan to address increasing costs for the provision and
support of hospital and medical services?
4.

Financial Ability to Provide Services
Staff believes that this portion of the study be narrowly defined with regards to an
evaluation of the District's financial picture, rather than a critique of the business
plan for the Sonoma West Medical Center: i.e., can the District afford to provide
the agreed-to subsidy to the SWMC in order to secure sustainable emergency,
acute care, and other medical services now and in the future?
Specific Questions
What authority does the District have to issue new bonds, pledging future tax
revenue to pay for them? Does the District have to seek voter approval for
issuing new bonds?
What is the status of the District's bankruptcy proceedings? What is the expected
range of financial obligations that the District may face as a result of the current
bankruptcy proceedings? Does the District plan to issue bonds to pay for the
settlement?
Is there a mechanism for limiting the District's liability for the SWMC debt and
potential litigation? Can there be a firewall established between the two entities?
If communities in the Russian River Corridor are detached from the District, what
would be the implications for the District's "general fund" revenues?
If the District needed to make up for that reduction by raising parcel tax
assessments in the remaining District area, what increase would be needed?
(Note: the District would have to hold an election seeking approval of a parcel tax
assessment increase.)
What is the District's ability to obtain financing? What is their bond rating?
3

Does the District have any plans to pay down existing debts early using existing
revenue?
If the District were dissolved, how would debts be discharged?
Are services provided by PDHCD needed in the current health care service
environment of Sonoma County, or should a different set of services be
considered?
Is the District providing services to all constituents and communities within its
service area?
Should Sonoma LAFCO consider amending the District's Sphere of Influence?
Describe the District's accounting practices, including an evaluation of
contingency reserves, auditing practices, and written budget, debt servicing,
accounting, and investment practices.

5.

Shared Services
Staff believes that this subject area has little import for the evaluation of the
District. The District itself likely has little opportunity for sharing services with
other agencies; while SWMC may have opportunities to partner with other
regional facilities (e.g., for purchasing supplies or renting equipment), these
opportunities would have no discernible impact on the District itself.

6.

Accountability for Community Service Needs
Study of this area typically focuses on the ability of a District to attract and retain
candidates for board service and on the question of whether the board
adequately represents the varied interests of the population and communities
which the District serves.
Staff believes that the former question is relatively easy to address in an
objective fashion but that the latter is very much a subjective one.
Specific Questions:
Is the District in compliance with the Brown Act and state disclosure laws?
Does the District seek and obtain public participation through publicly noticed and
accessible meetings?
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Have members of the District Board of Directors been elected from
representative communities within the District's service area?
Describe the District's public outreach activities.
Are financial and operational documents accessible to constituents of the
District?

7.

Effective Service Delivery, Per District Policy
Specific Questions
The District has entered into an agreement with SWMC pledging to provide "up
to $1 million" in annual funding to support hospital operations. Are there clauses
in the agreement that allow adjustments in this funding level?
What are some of the operational factors that face SWMC that might necessitate
a request for additional financial support from the District?

5

ATTACHMENT 2
Resolution No. 2345
57 5 Administration Drive
Santa Rosa, CA 95403
January 5, 2000

RESOLUTION OF LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF THE
COUNTY OF SONOMA RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 2341, MAKING
DETERMINATIONS, AND APPROVING THE PROPOSED DISTRICT
FORMATION, DESIGNATED AS: FORMATION OF PALM DRIVE HEALTH
CARE DISTRICT AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A SPHERE OF INFLUENCE
FOR THE DISTRICT

RESOLVED, by the Local Agency Formation Commission of the County of
Sonoma, State of California, that:
WHEREAS, a petition for formation of the Palm Drive Health Care District was
heretofore filed by 12% of the registered voters residing within the boundaries of the
proposed district and accepted for filing by the Executive Officer of this Commission
pursuant to the Cortese-Knox Local Government Reorganization Act of 1985,
commencing with Section 56000 et seq. of the Government Code, the Local Health
Care District Law, commencing with Section 32000 of the California Health and Safety
Code, and the District Organization Act, commencing with Section 58000 of the
California Government Code; and
WHEREAS, the Executive Officer, pursuant to Government Code Section 56828,
set November 3, 1999, as the hearing date on the proposal and gave the required
notice of hearing; and
WHEREAS, an initial study was conducted for the proposal pursuant to the
California Environmental Quality Act, and, based on the initial study's finding that the
proposal would not have a significant effect on the environment, a negative declaration
has been prepared; and
WHEREAS, the Executive Officer, pursuant to Government Code Section 56833,
has reviewed the proposal and prepared a report including her recommendations
thereon, and has furnished a copy of this report to each person entitled to a copy; and
WHEREAS, this Commission called the proposal and proposed negative
declaration for public hearing on November 3, 1999, heard from the interested parties,
considered the proposal and the report of the Executive Officer, a11.d all pertinent
documents and considered the factors determined by the Commission to be relevant to
the proposal including, but not limited to, the factors specified in Government Code
Section 56841; and

WHEREAS, this Commission adopted Resolution No. 2341 on November 3,
1999, making determinations and approving formation of the proposed district and
establishing a sphere of influence for the proposed district; and
WHEREAS, certain inadvertent mistakes have been discovered in Resolution
No. 2341 and the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors, as conducting authority, has
requested this Commission to correct those mistakes before it completes proceedings
on formation of the proposed district; and
WHEREAS, this Commission desires to correct the mistakes in Resolution No.
2341 by rescinding Resolution No. 2341 and adopting this resolution making
determinations and approving formation of the proposed district and establishing a
sphere of influence for the proposed district;
NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of the County of
Sonoma does hereby resolve, determine, and order as follows:
Section 1. The foregoing findings and determinations are true and correct, are
supported by substantial evidence in the record, and are adopted as
hereinabove set forth.
Section 2. Resolution 2341 is hereby rescinded in its entirety.
Section 3. Notice as required by law was given.
Section 4. All persons desiring to be heard regarding the proposal have been
given the opportunity to be heard and all persons requesting to be
heard have been heard.
Section 5. The Commission mal{eS the following findings:
a. The formation of the proposed district is in direct response to
petitions filed in support of the district formation.
b. The territory of the proposed district with 31,083 registered
voters is inhabited as defined in Government Code Section
56046.
c. The purpose of the proposed district is to ensure local access to
emergency, acute care and other medical services to residents
and visitors of the district area.
d. The proposed district intends to purchase the real property,
buildings, and building improvements known as Palm Drive
Hospital and lease the hospital to a qualified operator.
e. According to the Financial Analysis prepared by proponents of
the proposal initial financing of the district will be accomplished
through the proceeds of a bond measure which requires two

2

thirds voter approval. The general obligation bond is projected to
be $5.9 million dollars.

f.

The approval of the proposal will not have a significant adverse
impact on the environment.

Section 6. The formation of the proposed district is approved, subject to the
following terms and conditions:
a. The name of the proposed district shall be the Palm Drive Health
Care District.
b. The proposed district's board of directors shall consist of five (5)
members, each of whom shall be a registered voter residing
within the proposed district and whose term shall be four years
with the exception of the first board. The first board of directors
shall be appointed, upon formation of the proposed district, by
the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors. Upon appointment,
the first board of directors shall, by lot, designate two members
who shall leave office when their successors take office pursuant
to Section 10554 of the Elections ·code, and three members shall
leave office two years thereafter. All subsequent boards of
directors shall be elected at large from throughout the proposed
district.
c. Formation of the proposed district shall occur only if the
question submitted in the election called with respect to such
formation includes, with the matters set forth in Section
57133(k), Section 57134 and Section 57135(a) of the
Government Code, a statement of the condition on the formation
that the proposed district must be authorized to issue bonds to
provide adequate funding for the proposed district's acquisition
of the real property, buildings, and building improvements
known as Palm Drive Hospital by two-thirds voter approval at
the same election, it being understood that Section 57127 of the
Government Code authorizes the conducting authority to call a
special election as to such a bond issue in lieu of the board of
directors of the proposed district, as contemplated under Section
32301 and Section 32302 of the Health aJ.1.d Safety Code.
d. The effective date for formation of the proposed district shall be
the date of execution of the certificate of completion by the
Executive Officer.
e. The appropriations limit for the proposed district shall be
$500,000.00.
f.

The conducting authority shall call a special election on the
question of whether the proposed district be authorized to issue
bonds to provide adequate initial funding for the purchase of real

,.,
.J

property, buildings, and building improvements proposed
(projected to be $5.9 million), to be held simultaneously with the
election on the formation of the proposed district.
Section 7. In accordance with Government Code section 56425, the
Commission makes the following determinations relative to
establishment of the proposed district's sphere of influence:
a. Present and planned land uses in the area, including agriculture
and open space lands: The proposed district has no authority
over land use and its functions.are not growth-inducing. Any
change in land use of district property would require approval
and environmental review by the appropriate land use agency.
b. Present and probable need for public facilities and services in
the area: Formation of the proposed district is for the purpose of
funding the purchase of an existing hospital: Public facilities and
services currently exist to serve the hospital. Retention of the
hospital in the west county maintains levels of service for
emergency services especially with respect to transport of
patients.
c. Present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public
services which the agency provides or is authorized to provide:
Retention of the hospital by the proposed district would
maintain public facilities and adequate delivery of public
services. Hospital closing would negatively affect provision of
service because this is the only such facility in the west county.
d. The existence of any social or economic communities of interest
in the area: The formation of the proposed district is in direct
response to petitions from registered voters in the subject
territory. A poll in the area indicated strong support for proposed
district formation. In addition, the bond measure to fund the
district requires voter appr~)Val.
Section 8. The Commission hereby determines that the proposed district's
sphere of influence shall be coterminous with the proposed district's
approved boundaries.
Section 9. The boundaries of the proposed district are hereby approved as
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto.
Section 10. The regular county assessment roll will be utilized.
Section 11. The distinctive short form for the proposal shall be: "Formation of
Palm Drive Health Care District".
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Section 12. Approval of the proposal will have no effect on maintaining the
physical and economic integrity of any agricultural preserve that might
be considered within the sphere of influence of the proposed district.
Section 13. The Commission hereby adopts a negative declaration with the
finding that approval of the proposal will have no significant effect
on the environment.
Section 14. The Sonoma County Board of Supervisors is designated as the
conducting authority and is hereby directed to proceed with notice
and hearing, and, pursuant to Section 57127 of the Government
Code, to call any special elections required on behalf of the
proposed district.
Section 15. The Corn.mission hereby approves the impartial analysis pursuant to
Section 56859 of the Government Code, as provided in Exhibit "B"
attached hereto, ai1.d pursuant to Sections 56843 and 56844 of the
Government Code, the Tax Rate Statement required by Section 9401
of the Elections Code, as provided in Exhibit "C" attached hereto.
Section 16. The Executive Officer is hereby authorized and directed to mail
certified copies of this resolution in the manner provided by law.
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of this Local
Agency Formation Commission on the fifth day of January, 2000 and ordered adopted
by the following vote:
Harvey: Aye
Brunton: Aye

Commissioners:

Ayes: 6

Noes: 0

Cullinen: Aye
Smith: Absent
Boyett: Aye
Cale: Aye

Massey: Aye

Absent or not voting: 1

WHEREUPON, the Chair declared the foregoing resolution adopted and
SO ORDERED
ATIEST:

The within instrument is a correct copy of the original on file in this office.
ATIEST:

BY:

-~~~ClAh-""'----T-0)~M.IJ,!Vv~
Clerk

()

U
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.EKHIBIT A

Palm Drive Health Care District
District Boundaries

The area- of The Palm Drive Health Care District includes the following elementary school
districts within Sonoma County:

_. Oak -Grove Union School ·District, as -formed by the Board of Education,

•

•

•
e

-·e

·•

•
"

December 7, 1951, with present boundaries as set March 6, 1969 by
Resolution No. 121. Excepting therefrom five parcels annexed into the
City of Santa Rosa. Annexation 9-84, parcels 9-12. Annexation 1-98,
parcels.
·
Sebastopol Union School District, as -fo~ed by -the Board of Education,
July 1, 1919, with-present boundaries as set August 27, 1963. Excepting
therefrom ten-parcels annexed into the-City of Santa-Rcsa. Annexation 9
84; par-eels 1-7. Annexation.J-98; par.cels.-1-4.
Gravenstein -Union -School Bistrict, as formed ·-by -the -Board of Education,
June 7, 19-65, with present boundaries as- set June 8, 1965, excepting
therefr0m all -that portion -of the -Petaluma -Heath· Care District which lies
within this-district.. Excepting-ther-efr.om-four parcels-annexed into the City
·of Santa Rosa. Annexation -9-84, -parcels 1 and 8. -South Santa Rosa
Almexation-No. 7, parcelS--1-and 2.
Twin -Hills Union School District, as formed by the Board of Education,
July-1-, 1955, with-present-boundaries.aS-setAugust.27, 1963.
Also, all that portion of the -Shoreline -Unified -School -District which lies
within S('.moma County (Joint Sonoma County and Marin ·County· School
District}
-Harmony-Union School-District, as formed-by the Board-ofEducation, July
1, 1951, with present-boundarieS-as-set October: 15, 1-963.
Monte ··Rio -Union School -District, as ·formed-by the -Board of Education,
October 3-; 1-968, effective for all purposes July 1, 1969, with present
·boundaries-as set.October 3, 19-(58-.
Guemeville School-District, as-formect-9y the Board of Education, August
6, 1897, with-present-boundaries as-set December 1, 1966.
Forestville Union School District, as formed . by the Board of Education,
July 1, 1939,.with present·boundaries as set March 6, 1962 by Resolution
No. 121.

The boundary· of the ·Palm Drive Health ·Care District is conterminous with the exterior
boundary of the above described area. The District is more particularly described on
Attachment I below.

1-11-00
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ATTACHMENT 3

Report of Independent Auditors and
Financial Statements with
Supplementary Information

Palm Drive Health Care District
Year Ended June 30, 2015

MANAGEMENT'S '

PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2015 and 2014

Introduction - The management's discussion and analysis of the financial performance of Palm Drive Health Care District (the
"District") provides an overview of the District's financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. It
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements and footnotes of the District.
During fiscal year 2014 the District was under significant economic stress. This was caused by a significant decline in patient
volumes and specifically commercial patient volumes and the irregular postings of projected accounts receivable.;
decision was
spital and the
made in March and April of 2014 to seek relief under Chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy code, and to close
emergency room.
From April of 2014 through the 2015 fiscal year the hospital remained closed. The District remained J1J)~hapter 9 B . uptcy and
,4J-:!I.~.~&'
"'"1rnr.~;·
through l•ebruary of 2016 has not submitted a plan to the Bankruptcy court for approval. This ~~~rrs that there arEi'tl£\:J:Patient
services revenues being generated during 2015, though there are changes in prior estimates w 'foll effecY::tI1e period. 11rhe are
1
also significantly less staffing costs as the District operated for most of fiscal year 2015 with ei
'"' ti;ployees. There were
significant legal costs incurred in the bankruptcy process.
..

~4'~he District fulfill its
During the 2015 fiscal year the District solicited and considered plans from several ~t:~~~B8£1.~
mission of providing healthcare to its constituents. In May of 2015 it entered a Manag~;'µenf'S~@tc,~~,,Agreement with Sonoma
If,~~
/""''"';'·'"'<:;"':;·>liloO.oY'J'~
West Medical Center Inc. (SWMC), whereby SWMC would re-open the hospital, retain an , J~y''staffj1'~nd provide management
''ened on October 30, 2015.
services for the hospital. The hospital was renamed Sonoma West Medical Ce
In addition, the District did not !mow how to structure the bankruptc~~L
going to open. The new entity was confident it would open by summer ',
SWMC is a separate 501(c)(3) organization which has not bee.rnii,ficll.(
ended June 30, 2015, but will be included as of July 1, 2015, ~llenciea

porting entity of the District for the fiscal year
unit of the District.

Financial Highlights
Year Ended June 30, 2015

•

Total assets decreased by approxi.

•
•

proxi,,y $390,000 from June 2014.
Patient accounts receivab ,

•

"fuately $770,000 from June 2014.
$1,442,000 from June 2014, while current liabilities decreased by

•

"eel by approximately $1,767,000 from June 2014, while long-term debt increased by

'""'' , ·:pg that same period.
-~,,.

e increase in
-~~~~~~;~
edfupe 30, 2Q:l4.

eficit was approximately $4·18,000 for the year ended June 30, 2014.

>

:t,l;P~·

'<~~

ta! assets decreased by approximately $5,910,000 from June 2013.
f);,

•

T t,i1hc.ash and equivalents decreased by approximately $319,000 from June 2013.
~~};,

Patient accounts receivable decreased by approximately $3,150,000 from June 2013.
•

Current assets decreased by approximately $4,229,000 from June 2013, while current liabilities increased by
approximately $3,503,000 during that same period.

•

Long-term capital assets increased by approximately $675,000 from June 2013, while long-term debt decreased by
approximately $122,000 during that same period.

•

The increase in net deficit was approximately $8,3 05,000 for the year ended June 30, 2014.
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2015 and 2014

Overview of Palm Drive Health Care District's Financial Statements
This annual report consists of the audited financial statements and the notes to the financial statements which reflect the District's
financial position and operating results for the year ended June 30, 2015. The audited financial statements include the report of
the independent auditors, statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, and statement of cash fl ws. They also
include notes to the financial statements.
•

The statements of net position includes all of the District's assets and liabilities based on
accounting for the year ended June 30, 2015 and 2014.
The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position present the operatin
the year ended June 30, 2015.

•

I method of

during

The statements of cash flows reports the net cash provided by operating activities as we
cash from various District financial activities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the District's cash and cash equiw:K
approximately, $710,000 at June 2014. At June 30, 2015, days of operatinwa's'h
7.9 at June 2014. The majority of the District's cash is deposited with .~~'!' I ba
funds.

ximately $320,000 compared to
proximately 37.0 as compared to
.orms of cash and cash equivalent

Current Assets and Liabilities
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, current assets de
ate
3,205,000 with decreases in patient accounts
receivable of approximately $770,000 and a decrease in cas
lents of approximately $390,000. Current liabilities
decreased by approximately $1,252,000 due mainly to a dee ,,!iiis,,,,of a
ximately $776,000 in accounts payable and accrued
expenses, and a decrease of approximately $112,000 in accrued pa·y··,·L··~·~t"~'Sl~~u·related liabilities.
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, curgtJpt assets decreased by approximately $4,229,000 with decreases in patient accounts
receivable of approximately $3,150,000 ancf'.ljJ;(Jg,crease in cash and cash equivalents of approximately $319,000. Current liabilities
increased by approximately $3,503,000 due rrii''· to an i1ic.:f!3ase of approximately $2,505,000 in accounts payable and accrued
'"ct"'payroll and related liabilities.
expenses and a decrease of approx· ·ate! $77,00

Capital Assets
During the fiscal y ·
equipment as co1
However, the''.!" ·
constrain

.·.•··· the District divested assets of approximately $715,000 through the return of leased
ending June 2014, where the District recorded impairment for Equipment of $715,000.
year June 30, 2015, did not lower capital lease obligations due to bankruptcy court

DuriI
I year ending June 30, 2015, the District stopped making payments on most capital leases in effect at July 20, 2014,
which ··=
in one Jessee physically removing some equipment. Again, the Jong-term debt during fiscal year ending June 30,
2015, wa5'1@:c:banged due to bankruptcy court constraints, which makes it significantly lower than the decrease in Jong-term debt
during fiscar~[i'ar 2014. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the total tax collections from the District totaled $4,132,780 as
compared to $4,085,234· in 2014. These collections service the debt obligations for bond issues totaling $21,550,000 and
$22,265,000 in principal as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Volumes
There were no patient days reported for the year ended June 30, 2015, as compared to 2,514 for the year ended June 30, 2014-.
There were no ER visits for the year ended June 30, 2015, as compared to 4-,358 for the year ended June 30, 2014.
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2015 and 2014

Gross Patient Charges
The District charges all its patients equally based on its established pricing structure for the services rendered. However, the
District did not provide services to patients during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. The reported revenues represent
collections on accounts receivable of approximately $221,000 that had been written off in previous years, payments by the
Department of Health Care Services ("DHCS") of approximately $66,500 and Partnership Health Plan of approxinfiftely $315,000
the DHCS of
for uncompensated care provided in fiscal year 2014 under the Assembly Bill 915 program, and payme
approximately $182,000 for Meclicaicl safety net care provided in fiscal year 2014 under the Assembly Bill
Transfer program.

~11-~

These results contrast dramatically with inpatient gross service charges of approximately $32,895,>.:Q~O"for the year en
2014., as well as outpatient gross service charges of approximately $45,117,000 for the year encl~cl'' ~ihe 30, ~4.
Deductions from Revenue
Deductions from revenue are a combination of contractual allowances and provisions
computed clecluctions based on the difference between gross charges and the contractu
with third party government-based programs such as Medicare and Medi-Cal, and othe
Blue Shield and Aetna.
Since the District did not provide services to patients and reported no),
ent
there were also no clecluctions from revenue for the fiscal year. The§it'~f,~§Ul
revenue (in aggregate and as a percentage of gross patient services chari;{"s'
fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

t .
'"'":,~ctual allowances are
fUP,Q!1 rates of reimbursement

r~HMD-basecl payers such as

venues for the year ended 2 015,
'f].l[t:,¥Jli;,;;11natically with the clecluctions from
tely $56,868,000 and 69.0% for the

Net Patient Revenues
Net patient service revenues are the resulting difference be
patient service revenues were approximately $803,000 for the
year ending June 30, 2014.

·ass,µ_ ent charges and the clecluctions from revenue. Net
EfsfJune 30, 2015, as compared to $21,145,000 for fiscal

Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses were app_i;g?;:i)natel
fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. Tfi~'rt""
significant changes were:

the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, as compared to $32,598,000 for
iscal year ended June 30, 2014, was approximately $27,179,000. The

•

and wages, employee benefits and contract labor) clecreasecl from 2014 by
·imarily to the hospital closing and the laying off of staff.

•

approximately $4,194,000 clue primarily to the hospital closing and the winding clown of
14.
1¢ian fees and various other expenses decreased by approximately $5,515,000 clue primarily to the
"''''~
cl t11e winding clown of patient care activities.

The curre ;(,,!~,cal year saw a surge in community support for reopening an acute health care facilily for the community. Through
significant v81@tary donations of cash and services, a new hospital opened in October 2015 under the name of Sonoma West
Medical Center~ The District Board of Directors holds five (5) of eleven (11) seats on the hospital's Governing Board.
The District remains in Chapter 9 bankruptcy proceedings for the foreseeable future. However, it continues as a going concern
through its ability to levy a parcel tax, allowing it to continue to meet all of its regulatory covenants.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors
Palm Drive Health Care District
Report on Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Palm Drive He Ith Care D . , . the "District"),
which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2015, and
d statclli'e:nt
of revenues,
~F.W)~
expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then e
· e,lPnotes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statement
Management is responsible for the preparation and
accordance with accounting principles generally accept
design, implementation, and maintenance of ~Jtf§!:,.,,,;"1t,
4
presentation of financial statements that ar / re'e frorlf' '·
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

J!L!gJjl}} e financial statements in
ed States' of America; this includes the
,l.Jelevant to the preparation and fair
l~kfuisstatement, whether due to fraud or

""'

Our responsibility is to express an opuuon on t .. financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in acc;:g,rdance with auditing st~i1dards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards r';;'~~~e that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial stafEi," nts are fr c. rom material misstatement.
f

An audit involves p
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statem
'"'····· res selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment~£.Jc~1e risk ' "*A!'!"" ~l"'ffii?statement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making th· e risk'\~.$.sessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation
·· · ·e~§htation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
apµiiQJ:iliiateJn th
1m~t~nces, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the"'l'iit[cy7s't!t1t;fgµ, ;1 ,,.••t:t;,oi'.Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
~PP· '''''.''~teness'·'()4f''~'t'c6linting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
"ffi"'·
ement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
a the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

, n our op11110n, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the District as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
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Emphasis ofMatter Regarding Going Concern
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the District will Q.<L...11ue as a
going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the District has closed the:1tf6s,~ftaJ,
filed
.ff4J..Y,rb
'ef1#Jb!J;.,
for Chapter 9 bankruptcy, and has a net capital deficiency that raise substantial doubt,a,l;iolit its alr · to
continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are als d~cribecl in N
The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result fro
uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementwy Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States"'.<;tf!'!~merica
that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 4· be presentecJ."itd';§utf~!e.ment
financial statements. Such
d by the Governmental
information, although not a part of the basic financi, l•i~fateme '""~
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
reporting for placing the
financial statements in an appropriate operational, econ
xt. We have applied certain
limited procedures in accordance with auclitin ·
. erally accepted in the United States of
...:~ gT'$!<..}nethods of preparing the information
America, which consisted of inquiries of mami.g·,
for consistency with management's responsi@t1o our inqll'f:~,rs, tTf'fjbasic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit o
sic financiID7statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information bee ..'$.,the limi l''·)xocedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any air'"·

San Francisco, California
----~2016
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2015

2015

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
319,799
1,118,321

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted trust funds available for current debt service
Property taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Total current assets

NONCURRENTINVESTMENTS
359,802
1,791,978
2,551

Funds held by county for bond debt service
Funds held by trustee under bond requirements
Designated by the board or agreements for specific purposes

2,154·,331
1,538
10,824,729

Related party notes receivable
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total assets

$

14,650,037

$

7,095,319
1,309,993
368,321
327,099
635,037
1,383,889
750,000

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Estimated third party payor settlements
Unearned property tax revenues
Current portion of capital lease obligatio1
Current portion of bonds paya e

11,869,658

Total current liabilities

454,870
20,800,000

Capital lease obligations, 1v1'.t9f curre
"J,:~
Bonds payable, net of curren1t 'o · · n

33,124·,528
3,270,101
(21,744,592)
(18,474,491)
$

14·,650,037

See accompanying notes.
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015
OPERATING REVENUES
EHR incentive revenue
Medi-Cal supplemental reimbursement
Inter-governmental transfer revenue
Other operating revenue

$

1,154,510
381,992
181,921
116,278

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Professional fees
Supplies
Purchased services
Utilities and phone
Repairs and maintenance
Rents and leases
Insurance
Depreciation
Impairment of equipment
Other operating expenses

3,3,026
Sl,960
724,775
140,273
973,922
224,368
119,692
48,662
323,380
1,537,718
714,925
116,653
\~tri?

5,409,354

Total operating expenses
OPERATING LOSS

(3,574,653)

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND (EXPENSES)
District tax revenues
Investment income( expense), net
Interest expense
Other income

4,132,780
(962)
(1,368,879)
393,909
3,156,848

INCREASE IN DEFICIT

(417,805)

NET POSITION, beginnin

(18,056,686)

$

(18,474,491)

See accompanying notes.
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015
CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from patients and third-parties on behalf of patients
Cash received from operations, other than patient services
Cash payments to suppliers and contractors
Cash payments to employees and benefit programs

$

864,888
2,106,327
(4.,611,132)
(596,714)

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
District tax revenues
Grants, contributions and other
Net cash from noncapital financing activities

2,4-53,329

CASH FLOWS USED IN CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
District tax revenues
Purchase of capital assets
Principal payments on capital lease obligations
Principal payments on bonds payable
Interest payments on debt borrowings

2,073,360
(485,319)
(83,268)
(715,000)
(1,368,879)
(579,106)

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of (proceeds from) sale of investments
Interest and dividends received from investments

(26,802)
(962)
(27,764)

Net cash from investing activities

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(390,172)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginnin~,

709,971
$

319,799

See accompanying notes.
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2015

2015
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Impairment of imaging equipment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Patient accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Related parly notes receivable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Accrued interest
Estimated third party payor settlements
Unearned property taxes
Net cash from operating activities

$

(3,574,653)

8,634
(775,772)
(111,728)
(20,813)
(795,008)
27,74-6
$

(2,236,631)

See accompanying notes.
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- ORGANIZATION

Organization - Palm Drive Health Care District, (the "District") is a public entity organized under Local District Law as set forth in the
Health and Safety Code of the State of California. The District is a political subdivision of the State of California and is generally not
subject to federal or state income taxes. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors, elected from wiJhin the district
to specified terms of office. The DislTict is located in Sebastopol, California and operated a 37-becl acute care hos i <N'i~The District's
mission is to provide health care services primarily to individuals who reside in the local geographic area.
The District has signed a Master Services Agreement ("MSA") with Sonoma West Medical Center ("SWM
amended May 22, 2015. This agreement calls for SWMC to operate the hospital facilily on behalf of the
provide $1,000,000 to augment the operations of the hospital that SWMC will be operating. Specifi
maintain hospital properly, purchase or repair equipment and to subsidize charily care and progr
MSA creates a governing board which will oversee the operations of the hospital. This governin
District, with representation from SWMC and participating physicians.
Management has cletenninecl that the District will include SWMC as a component unit o
will begin on July 1, 2015. Management does not believe that the omission of SWMC from th
of 2015 has a material effect on the District. See the subsequent events Note 13 for, 10re info
with the hospital and SWMC.

~ll~,,.~

•:it;.:Ve inclusion of SWMC
titjitsfdf12Q15 and ending net assets
"'~1~~~fhappenecl after year encl

NOTE 2 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

~lf~~~~"

On July 1, 2015, the District began including SWMC in the resl]1ifc·... ..
AJ¥Mf"
on October 30, 2015, under the MSA as operated by Soq()gia West
Sonoma West Medical Center. On December 17, 2015, the"::""Ss ital receiv
approximately $600,000 in equipment for the hospital.
The District also provided $522,730
reopening of the hospital.

:as a component unit. The hospital was reopened

C~t~r. The name of the hospital was changed to

s Medicare certification. The District has purchased

,, ;{projects that that were necessary for licensure and the
"~)iV

SWMC has faced financial difficulties while o ... ting a hospjtal without being able to bill and collect from Medicare and certain
~#'#A_
%>0'1.iJ,-..
commercial payors. In January 2016 in accorcla!'1G,gjwith
· SA Article 5.4, the District provided SWMC a $600,000 tranche from
the property taxes received in D
On Feb'f'~"'
016, the District then loaned $400,000 to SWMC at 4% interest for
ceivable. The hospital has also sought outside gifts and other borrowings
90 clays and collateralizecl by SWM
to finance its operations during this t

Bankruptcy
4, e· · 1strict's financial circumstances had reached the point that the District was unable to pay all of
its debts ~;~~he
Board of Directors accordingly adopted a resolution on April 1, 2014, declaring a fiscal emergency
under ~~~µ'ornia
"~h;"
'·t~u;,y,de Sectio~1 53760.5 and a:ith~rizi.ng the Ch!~f Executive Officer to cause the District to seek relief
uncle,t~;.t;he U.S. Bankn1.13t~Y Cotle. On Apnl 7, 2014, the Drstnct fried a pet1t10n under Chapter 9 of the Banlm1ptcy Code. After a
maiJ~plmy ng};ige periolf~(~1-s potential objections, none were received and the Bankruptcy Court determined that the District is eligible
"'t:·?«'·!+~
"'!.!/"
for ter
·1-'"'i''Y Chapter 9 abd
confirmed the validity of the District's bankruptcy petition.
On April •;;,w,;/4, the District closed the hospital and its emergency room. Thereafter the District had issued Requests for Proposal
(RFP) from iti~~restecl parties who might participate with the District in either resuming operation of the hospital, or offering a
different scop~'~f medical services to the residents of the District. The District accepted a proposal from Sonoma West Medical Center
to reopen and operate an acute care communily hospital. A Managed Services Agreement was formulated and signed March 18, 2015.
With the approval of the Bankruptcy Court, in May-July 2014 the District rejected more than 200 contracts with suppliers and services
providers. This step ended current payments on these contracts, and gave rise to claims in the bankruptcy case by the counterparties
for contract rejection damages. These claims will be dealt with along with other creditor claims through the bankruptcy process.
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bankruptcy Court set October 8, 20H, as the deadline for all creditors of the District to file claims for debts of the District. There
have been 181 claims filed to date, asserting claims amounting to $27,206,080. The validity and amounts of these claims are under
review by the District. Through the bankruptcy process, invalid and/or overstated claims have been challenged by the District.
Committees representing general unsecured creditors, and former employees, have been appointed in the bankruptcy process.
To exit from bankruptcy, the District needs to present a plan for adjustment of its debts that meets criteria under
and seek its confirmation by the Bankruptcy Court. As of this elate a plan of adjustment has not been pres.
Court. It is anticipated that the bankruptcy plan will be completed and presented to the Bankruptcy Court in 2 ·
Management's plan - Management, in conjunction with District Board direction, continues to focus u . the bankruptcy p .· i;ss and
working with all creditor~ to develop .a p~an to submit to t'.1e Bankruptcy co~rt. This process will col\(_ife into1iiWf2015 and 2cJl6 fiscal
years. Management, by virtue of a D1stnct Board resolut10n, negotiated with SWMC to develop a co.1:iJp,relt.e.ns1ve plan and model to
reopen and manage the hospital. The MSA was signed March 18, 2015, that facilitated the re-openin~~~·e hospital on October 30,
2015, as Sonoma West Medical Center.

NOTE 4 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting standards  Pursuant to Government Accounting Standard El.d

fi~r

a11d Fi11a11cial Reporti11g Guida11ce Co11tained i11 Pre-November 30, 1989'C ·
Pro11ou11cements, the District's proprietary fund accounting and finan

pronouncements as well as codified pronouncements issued on or
Proprietary fund accounting - The District utilizes the pr9p.
recognized on the accrual basis and financial statements are"""'I~
p

'· ccounting whereby revenues and expenses are
y fund 1 :\"·'1i'
reel using the,se,conomic resources measurement focus.

t4111

Al
opformify with accounting principles generally accepted in the

Use of estimates - The preparation of the financial statements
United States of America requires management to make estimates Tnail'S§~mptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and
.,.,rt,.
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the da'te of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenditures during the relfa·.r.~ing period. Although management believes the estimates and assumptions are
reasonable, they are based upon informatiorl~'1ailable at the time the estimate or judgment is made and actual amounts could
differ from those estimates.
Cash and cash equivalents - Casi
liquid debt instruments witJLan origi .
limited by board designati '"'·'?:'· : b leg
Assets limited to
last business day
available. AssetsJi
"~-il;!i.fu.,
or purcha~~s of(
limited t " s·e con
Ca......

en s include deposits with financial institutions and investments in highly
ree months or less. Cash and cash equivalents exclude amounts whose use is

... are recorded at fair value, securities are generally valued at the last sale price on the
tfd'tecl on a recognized exchange or utilizing an industry standard pricing service, when
ntributor restricted funds, amounts designated by the Board of Directors for replacement
s, and other specific purposes, and amounts held by trustees under specified agreements. Assets
short term money market funds and cash held with local banking and investment institutions.

sset,9:/Capita . ·s,.ets consist of property and equipment and are reported on the basis of cost, or in the case of donated

ite11i~{101)
,tlf~'l!J;'asis of fair market value at the elate of donation. Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as
·';\':•"'·••C"•·•···

incurreCIS'\&.i{penditures which increase values, change capacities, or extend useful lives are capitalized. Depreciation of property
and equiflq1eµt and amortization of property under capital leases are computed by the straight-line method for both financial
reporting ai1'd~.~79st reimbursement purposes over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from 10 to 30 years for
buildings and il11provements, and 3 to 15 years for equipment and software.
-'{);~\(-~:\

;,c;,e'.·"~"'-..

The District evaluates prominent events or changes in circumstances affecting capital assets to determine whether impairment of a
capital asset has occurred. Impairment losses on capital assets are measured using the method that best reflects the diminished
service utilily of the capital asset. As of June 30, 2014, the District has determined that an information technology project was
impaired. Given that the pause in the construction of this software is significant in duration, and the departure of the team working
on this project, management believes that the existing project in process has impaired utility.
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Risk management - The District is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and medical malpractice.
Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters.
Net position  Net position of the District are classified as invested in capital assets, net of related debt, restricted
unrestricted net assets.
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt  Investec! in capital assets, net of related debt consist /
accumulated depreciation and reclucecl by the outstanding balances of any borrowings that are attr'b't
construction, or improvement of those assets.
Restricted net position - Restricted net position have limits on their use that are extern
through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or by laws or regulations of other governme1
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Unrestricted net position - Unrestricted net position are the remainder that don
assets, net of related debt or restricted.
,,~f~t~~~

Statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets - For purp9,fe,wbfd\~play,
ctions cleemecl by management to
be ongoing, major, or central to the provisions of health care service;;•'gr~ repo~t]cl as
ues and expenses. Peripheral or
incidental transactions are reported as gains and losses. These periptffi'.al acti.\(ftfes7 i11cludeYidistrict tax revenues, investment
~'i°,,.;.-F'd!&>
~,~"'fi?\~!,i,~.;i'.!f~~,ff;'fti~'f
income, interest expense, and grants, contributions and other and are re ···· '
' on"'bperatij:fg.
District tax revenues  The District receives the majority o
. ;t from property taxes. These funds are used to
support operations and meet required debt service agreen
ifli!ll;~s nonoperating revenue as the revenue is not
directly linked to patient care. Property taxes are levied b
aunty on .. istrict's behalf during the year, and are intended to
help finance the District's activities during the same year. An) ...~11.ts are levi~~ on the basis of the most current property values on
record with the County. The County has established certain cl'li't.a~~ijto l~;irWJifien, mail bills, and receive payments from property
owners during the year. Property taxes are considered delinquent btj;Jl:ii'ltday following each payment due date. For the year ended
June 30, 2015, district tax revenues included debt service on genef'aF'Obligation bonds of $430,838, debt service on parcel tax
revenue bonds of $1,642,522, and an opera"· levy of $2,057,491.
EHR incentive revenue  The District particip
· 1 elect~~ health record ("EHR") incentive programs. The District recognized
"C\tas included as an EHR incentive expense in the year ended June 30,
an accrued liability of $1,154,510 ·~· "une 30,
2014, as a result of a demand lett
.., rs for Medicare and Meclicaicl Services ("CMS"). During the year ended
June 30, 2015, CMS reversed its de
·'·~Y
_ 1, sful appeal from the District. The EHR incentive revenue of $1,154,510 is
recognized as a result of th·
file accrued liability.
::

time, the District receives grants from various governmental agencies and private

J'~i2ontributions from related foundation and auxiliary organizations, as well as from

tions. Revenues from grants and contributions are recognized when all eligibility
equirements are met. Grants and contributions may be restricted for either specific operating

District policies permit most employees to accumulate paid time-off benefits that may be realized as
Coqj'gensate / ,bsenc
pail'Fig,u(e- , · as a cas ·payment upon termination. Expense and the related liability are recognized as paid time-off benefits
when \i\~S:. . Compensated absence liabilities are computed using the regular pay and termination pay rates in effect at the
balance ~11~:,\&t elate plus an aclclitional amount for compensation-related payments such as social security and Medicare taxes
computed 1fsUigrates in effect at the elate of computation. The accrued vacation liability as of June 30, 2015, was $590,382.
''<??
WARN Act - The Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act (WARN) protects workers, their families, and communities
by requiring notification of 60 calendar clays in advance of mass layoffs. The District had such an event occur during 2014 and
accordingly has recognized a liability for payments to be made under the WARN act. Expense and the related liability are
recognized as salaries and wages using the regular pay rates in effect at the statement of net position date, plus an aclclitional
amount for compensation-related payments such as social security and Medicare taxes computed using rates in effect at the elate of
computation. The District accrued a WARN Act liability of $708,894 as of June 30, 2015, and it is incluclecl in accrued payroll and
related liabilities.
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
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Income taxes - The District operates under the purview of the Internal Revenue Code, Section 115, and corresponding California
Revenue and Taxation Code provisions. As such, it is not subject to state or federal taxes on income. However, income from the
unrelated business activities of the District may be subject to income taxes.
New accounting pronouncements 
GASB Statement No. 72  Fair Value Measurement and Application  The provisions of GASB Statement N
financial statements beginning after June 15, 2015. The District has not made an assessment of any gJta
upon this statement's implementation.

•v

GASB Statement No. 74  Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
GASB Statement No. 74· are effective for financial statements beginning after June 15, 20·
assessment of any changes that will occur upon this statement's implementation.
GASB Statement No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemploymen
provisions of GASB Statement No. 75 are effective for financial statements beginni
made an assessment of any changes that will occur upon this statement's implement

"~-~~·

GASB Statement No. 76 - The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted AccowitftJtJ'
provisions of GASB Statement No. 76 are effective for financial state.in'fffts
made an assessment of any changes that will occur upon this state1 "''''"''•
GASB Statement No. 77 - Tax Abatement Disclosures - Tl
statements beginning after December 15, 2015. The Dis
this statement's implementation.
GASB Statement No. 80 - Blending Requirements - T 1
statements beginning after June 30, 2015. The District has n.
statement's implementation.

• r Than Pensions - The
>The District has not

ate and Local Governments - The
me 15, 2015. The District has not

ssessment of any changes that will occur upon

GASB Statement No 80 are effective for financial
assessment of any changes that will occur upon this

NOTE 5 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A
~~

As of June 30, 2015, the District ha~J;~ep'O
cash equivalents, which were collat" ·
account that is federally insured.

institution of $319, 799. All of these funds are in the form of cash and
with the California Government Code ("CGC"), except for $250,000 per

Under the provisions of the C
anks and savings and loan associations are required to secure the District's deposits
by pledging goven
.C! era!. The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the District's
· ,·s.
deposits. Californi
,lcrwsfr\m12fa1 institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes
having a valu~:'·
Distfittls·total deposits. The pledged securities are held by the pledging financial institution's trust
departmen in
District.
'-'..i•''-it;{['1~!f¥!!i{'W4'{f,i'7

, ow investments in U.S. Government securities and state and local agency funds which invest in
Disti:L;v nvestn;ent 1
.f~·lo/}
/'K'ili'.\..
•
•
U.S1'Govern1;;iJ~t' secur
These mvestments, when present, are stated at quoted market values. Changes m market value
be~J,,
·;· are reflected as a component of investment income in the accompanying statement of revenues, expenses, and
position.
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NOTE 6- BOARD-DESIGNATED, RESTRICTED FUNDS AND OTHER LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

As of June 3 0, 2015, District investment balances and average maturities were as follows:
2015
Maturities
Less than 1

Fair-Value

Type
Short-term money market funds
Cash held by county
Total fair-value

$

2,637,615
635,037

$

$

3,272,652

$

Interest rate risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will aclve
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensiti ~· of its fai
interest. The money market mutual funds are presented as an investment with a matu
redeemable in full immediately.

to changes in market
because they are

off1~{y~ar

nt will not fulfill its obligations.
debt service requirements.

Credit risk - Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterp
Management believes that there is minimal exposure related to cash held b

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS

At June 30, 2015, capital assets were comprised of the folio ·
Balance at
June 30, 2014
Nonclepreciable capital assets
Land and Janel improvements
Construction work in progress
Depreciable capital assets
Land improvements
Buildings and improverh'!lnts
~~~
Property under capital leas({"
Equipment and

$

485,319

5,876,900
485,319

485,319

6,362,219

$

$

Balance at
June 30, 2015

Decreases
$

$

7,846,172

(2,398,498)

34,493
4,565,376
3,201,901
5,447,674

15,647,942
(8,932, 789)

(2,398,498}
1,683,573

13,249,444
(8,786,934)

12,592,053

(1,537,718)
$

(l,052,399)

$

(714,925)

$

10,824,729

10n expe1 e related to capital leases totaled $808,900 for the year enclecl June 30, 2015. As of June 30, 2015,
accu
epreciation related to capital leases was $6,020. Equipment and software, related to capital leases, with a cost basis
of $1,4·3 •1,},1.~ and no net book value, were taken back by the lessor as of June 30, 2015. A piece of imaging equipment with a net
book value''5'Ji:$.714-,925 was taken back by the lessor and as such this was recognized as impairment of equipment for the year
enclecl June 30~~l015.
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NOTE 8 - MEDICAL MALPRACTICE AND WORKERS' COMPENSATION COVERAGE AND CLAIMS

The District has joined together with other providers of health care services to form Beta Healthcare Group ("Beta"), a public entity
risk pool (the "Pool") currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for its members. The District has
purchased an extended coverage period medical malpractice insurance policy from the Pool. It is a claims-occuri:ecl policy with
limits of $10 million per occurrence, $20 million in aggregate, and with a self-insured retention level of $0 p~i;f~Thim reporting
period that extends into perpetuity. This does not cover claims occurring after June 30, 2015, but it does ins '*"W' - claims made
after that elate, arising before that elate, when the hospital was operating. The Pool's governing agreeme~\~i
that the Pool
will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial carriers for claifqs'in
amounts.
The District also purchases workers' compensation insurance from Alpha Fund, a California s
pool, cleclicatecl to public and non-profit health care organizations. The District purchases worke ·
a claims-made policy with limits of $1 million per occurrence and $1 million in the annual aggre
excess insurance coverage up to $2 million per occurrence or statutory limits.
Based upon the District's claims experiences, the District has estimated that no accrual is
malpractice and workers' compensation costs.

eel .l!'ft)rkers' comp nsation
A¢iil/
ia,~psation insurance under
Ille District also purchases

e 30, 2015, for accrued

NOTE 9- BONDS PAYABLE

At June 30, 2015, bonds payable were as follows:

2015
Health Care District Insured General Obligation Bonds, ?.
s 2000; ii ~test
~•1Wf;if0:,_
'i'l~
rates ranging from 4.5% to 8.0%; principal clue each AiY~lf,,1; interest}jje
semi-annually each February 1 and August 1; final clue in 20:3. · · repay ,- · ts
through collection of County property taxes.
j

$

Parcel Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2005; interest ranging from 3.25%
principal due each April 1; interest clu~K~.~~ni-annually each April 1, and
October 1; final clue in 2024; secured by parc~I;f1,:r;2perty taxe/;;;;c,
~" ;~/.""-.

4,510,000

7,005,000

/{?f;?f-Y

Parcel Tax Certificates of Participation-C'COPs" ,
· .;rnJO; interest ranging
from 7.0% to 7.5%; principal clue e;~h1\ptj11; iI2teres/aii"e semi-annually each
'"'•'·'#~a1JJy&p;i-cel property taxes.
April 1, and October 1; final/\,clue in

10,035,000

Less current maturities ofbondS'ip

21,550,000
(750,000)

z'y '

<~~~v:A

cq,~>

"-';;'

$

20,800,000
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Debt service requirements for bonds payable are as follows at June 30, 2015:
General Obligation Bonds
Principal
Interest

Year Ending June 30,

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035

$

$

Bonds payable
Series 2000 General Obligation Bonds
Series 2005 Parcel Tax Revenue Bonds
Series 2010 Parcel Tax COPs
Capital lease obligations

175,000
185,000
200,000
210,000
220,000
l,325,000
l,775,000
420,000

$

4,510,000

$

232,703
223,510
213,390
202,530
190,930
749,744
323,892
l,890

Revenue Bonds and COPs
Principal
Interest

575,000
610,000
640,000

$

1,064,190
1,032,003

675,00~~

7,163
'
,230
2,519,587
863,487

715,0J:lDY
AEZ&"'

4,2~"q1poo

5 65~1000

3'.95~tf"'

$

2,138,589

12,349,614

Balance
June 30, 2014

Balance
June 30, 2015

$

4,675,000
7,330,000
10,260,000
1,922,027

$

4.,510,000
7,005,000
10,035,000
1,838,759

$

175,000
335,000
240,000
1,383,889

$

24,187,027

$

23,388,759

$

2,133,889

(798,268)

Current
Portion

NOTE 10  CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION

Description

Interest Rates

Capital leases - equipmen
net of interest

4.15% - 8.30%

June 30, 2015

Original Issue

$

3,314,670

$
$

June 30, 2014

$
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1,922,027

Increases

$

(83,268)

454,870
Outstanding
June 30, 2015

Decreases

$

1,838, 759
(l,383,889)

$

l,838,759

PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Debt service requirements for capital lease obligations are as follows:

Year Ending lune 30,

$

2016
2017
2018
Less interest

1,383,889
280,310

Less current portion

$

NOTE 11- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Palm Drive Health Care Foundation - The Palm Drive Health Care Fo elation, f 1):h'l'W' t 1e est County Health Care
Foundation (the "Foundation"), has been established as a nonprofit public1_!1"'
rpora~,i1 under the Internal Revenue Code
Section 501(c)(3) to focus on activities which contribute to the healthz,Status
idents\j~A Sebastopol and western Sonoma
County. The Foundation periodically accepts donations and raises fui(cts;'to su
~~~;:,;·~·.~·~·ct and makes distributions to the
.. accordance with any specific donor
District in amounts and for purposes determined by the Foundation's B~"~~;of,,
>
~ifill1,,.(.~l.;ii,if'
restrictions. The Foundation is not considered a component unit
e Disfrr: , ·
use management believes the resources of the
Foundation are not significant to the District.
During 2015, the Foundation changed its name to Sano
Sonoma West Medical Center (SWMC). See Note 1 and Not
party in 2015. SWMC continued with similar activities to what t

oundation, which is the sole corporate member of
ormation on SWMC. SWMC is considered a related
had done prior to the name change during 2015.

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINff'
ffk,

Litigation - The District may from · 1e-to-tim ,)i11volyf:!IDlh litigation and regulatory investigations which arise in the normal
course of doing business. While ti'
liabma~~A(~~ot now be determined due to uncertainties that exist, management
1
believes the ultimate resolution oft
"''"'"~""~"f~if11s will not have a material effect on the District's financial position.
Operating leases - The D1~trt leas
building and equipment rent'~?p,E)nse
11
succeeding years m
· o er ·" """considered materi

ous equipment and facilities under operating leases expiring at various dates. Total
1e year ended June 30, 2015, was $12,862. Future minimum lease payments for the
une 30, 2015, that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year are not

Regulatory
e health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governmifhts. Thesi;i <!W
·egulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such as licensure, accreditation,
gove~'nf'~'nt he,{llth ''c~~0pro m participation requirements, reimbursement for patient services, and Medicare and Medi-Cal
fra!,l,g/(and aby~}~I Rece11El.l('/\government activity has increased with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible
1
vioi'it''
'"''''• ~ud and a5~1se statutes and regulations by health care providers. The District is subject to routine surveys and
era!, state, and local regulatory authorities. The District has also received inquiries from health care regulatory
rding its compliance with laws and regulations. Although the District's management is not aware of any violations
of laws and
l,llations, it has received corrective action requests as a result of completed and on-going surveys from applicable
regulatory authorities. Management continually works in a timely manner to implement operational changes and procedures to
address all corrective action requests from regulatory authorities. Breaches of these laws and regulations and noncompliance with
survey corrective action requests could result in expulsion from government health care programs together with the imposition of
significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services previously billed. Compliance with such laws
and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or
unasserted at this time.
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NOTE 13 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The District maintains a 401(a) clefinecl contribution retirement plan (the "401(a) Plan") on a calenclar year-encl that covers all
employees by a collective bargaining agreement ancl all non-benefitecl employees who are 21 years of age and have completecl one
year of credited service. The Plan provides for contributions up to $40,000 or 100% of eligible participants' annual compensation,
if less. The District's contribution is cliscretionary. Eligible employer contributions are 100% vestecl.
The District sponsorecl a 457(b) clefinecl contribution retirement plan (the "457(b) Plan") on a calendar Y(;)~rfen,,;; at coverecl all
0
employees not participating in the 401(a) Plan who are 21 years of age ancl have completed three 116ilib of''e'. loyment. In
September 2014, the District terminatecl the 457(b) Plan.
There were no contributions to either retirement plan cluring the year ended June 30, 2015.
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1

Palm Drive Health Care District, a California local health care district ("Palm Drive" or

2

"Debtor"), debtor in this case (the "Bankruptcy Case") under the United States Bankruptcy Code

3

proposes this Palm Drive Plan For Adjustment Of Debts Dated May 3, 2015 (the "Plan"), pursuant

4

to the provisions of Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code. The Disclosure Statement that accompanies

5

this Plan contains a discussion of the financial condition of Palm Drive and a description of the Plan.

6

Palm Drive commenced this voluntary case under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code on April 7,

7

2014. Confirmation of the Plan is the culmination of the Chapter 9 process for the adjustment of

8

Palm Drive's debts. Creditors should thoroughly review both the Plan and the accompanying

9

Disclosure Statement before deciding whether to accept or reject the Plan.

10

Definitions used in the Plan are provided in the following Article I.

11

ARTICLE I

12

DEFINITIONS

13

Unless the context requires otherwise, the following definitions apply in this Plan:

14

1.1

"Administrative Claim" means a claim for any cost or expense of administration of

15

a kind specified in Section 503(b) of the Bankruptcy Code that is entitled to priority over general

16

tmsecurecl claims m1cler Section 507(a)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code, as limited by Section 901(a) of

17

the Bankruptcy Code, including, without limitation, (a) any actual or necessary costs and expenses

18

of preserving the property of the Debtor incurred on or after the Petition Date and through and

19

including the Effective Date of the Plan, (b) any cure amounts that must be paid in connection with

20

the assumption of any executory contract or unexpired lease of Palm Drive under Section 365 of the

21

Bankruptcy Code, (c) timely-filed 503(b)(9) Claims, and (d) compensation for fees and reimbursable

22

expenses for legal and other services of professional persons, to the extent both (i) consented to by

23

the Debtor and (ii) approved as reasonable by the Bankruptcy Court under Section 943(b)(3) of the

24

Bankruptcy Code.

25

1.2

"Administrative Claims Bar Date" means Bankruptcy Court, the date established

26

by the Confirmation Order as the last clay to file proof of an Administrative Claim, which date will

27

be forty-five (45) calendar clays after the Effective Date, after which elate any Administrative Claim

28

not timely filed will be forever barred, and Palm Drive will have no obligation with respect thereto;
-1
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1 provided, however, that no filing of proof of an Administrative Claim will be required if such
2

Administrative Claim was incurred (a) in accordance with an order of the Bankruptcy Court or (b)

3

with the written consent of Palm Drive.

4

1.3

"Allowed Administrative Claim" means all or any portion of an Administrative

5

Claim that has either been (a) allowed by a Final Order or (b) has not been objected to within the

6

time period established by the Plan or by an order of the Bankruptcy Court.

"Allowed Claim" means a claim against Palm Drive, other than an Administrative

7

1.4

8

Claim, as to which:

9

(a) A proof of claim was (i) timely filed not later than the Claims Bar Date

10

established by order of the Bankruptcy Court in the Bankruptcy Case, or any other applicable claim

11

filing deadline, or (ii) deemed filed and allowed under Sections 924 and 925 of the Bankruptcy

12

Code, or (iii) filed late with permission of the Bankruptcy Court after notice and an opportunity for

13

hearing appropriate in the circumstances; and

14

(b) Such claim is not a Disputed Claim, or, if a Disputed Claim, such claim has been

15

allowed in whole or in part by a Final Order, provided that any such claim shall be an Allowed

16

Claim only to the extent stated in any such Final Order. Unless otherwise provided in the Plan or

17

ordered by the Bankruptcy Court, no distributions shall be made under the Plan in respect of the

18

disputed portion of any Disputed Claim until there is a Final Order specifying the allowed amount of

19

such claim.
No disputed portion of any claim shall be considered as an Allowed Claim if an

20
21

objection to the allowance of such claim is made by Palm Drive or another party in interest within

22

the time set by the Plan or the Bankruptcy Court, and such objection to claim has not been denied by

23

a Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court.

24
25
26

1.5

"Allowed Secured Claim" means that amount of an Allowed Claim which is secured

by a lien or subject to offset within the provisions of Section 506(a) of the Bankruptcy Code.
1.6

"Allowed Unsecured Claim" means any Allowed Claim that is a general unsecured

27

claim, including a Rejection Claim or an Employee Claim, but does not include Allowed Secured

28

Claims, Allowed Administrative Claims, or Priority Claims.
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1.7

"Avoiding Actions" means any rights, claims or causes of action (and any litigation

2

thereon) which may be brought by or on behalf of Palm Drive under any section contained within

3

Chapter 5 of the Bankruptcy Code, or under related state or federal statutes or common law,

4

applicable in a case under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code, expressly including preference claims,

5

regardless of whether such action has been commenced prior to the Effective Date.

6

1.8

"Avoiding Actions Claim Bar Date" means, with respect to any person asserting

7

claims arising from the avoidance of a transfer under chapter 5 of the Bankruptcy Code, the first

8

business clay that is at least thirty (30) calendar clays after entry of the order or judgment authorizing

9

avoidance of the transfer.

10

1.9

"Ballot" means the ballot forms distributed to each holder of an impaired claim that

11

is entitled to vote to accept or reject the Plan, on which form the holder may cast its vote in respect

12

of the Plan, and which must be actually received by Palm Drive on or before the Ballot Deadline in

13

order to be counted.

14

1.10

15
16

"Ballot Deadline" means the deadline established by the Bankruptcy Court for the

receipt by Palm Drive of executed Ballots.
1.11

"Bankruptcy Code" or "Code" means Title 11 of the United States Code, as it was

17

in effect on the date of filing of the Plan, as amended by any amendments applicable to this

18

Bankruptcy Case, and also includes Sections 157, 158, 1334, 1408-1412, and 1452 of Title 28 of the

19

United States Code.

20

1.12

"Bankruptcy Court" or "Court" means the United States Bankruptcy Court for the

21

Northern District of California, Santa Rosa Division, having jurisdiction over this Bankruptcy Case,

22

and any other courts or panels of courts having competent jurisdiction over the Bankruptcy Case or

23

appeals from orders entered in the Bankruptcy Case.

24
25
26

1.13

"Bankruptcy Rules" means the rules of practice and procedure in cases under Title

11 of the United States Code, as promulgated under 28 U.S.C. § 2075.
1.14

"Chapter 9" means Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code.

27
28
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1

1.15

"Claims Bar Date" means October 8, 2014, the deadline date for filing proofs of

2

claim, other than Administrative Claims, by creditors against Palm Drive, established in the

3

Bankruptcy Case by court order and notice to creditors.

4

1.16

"Claims Objection Deadline" means, unless extended by the Banhuptcy Court

5

upon an application filed by Palm Drive, the elate that is the later of (a) the first business clay that is

6

at least 120 calendar clays after the Effective Date, and (b) the first business Day that is at least 120

7

calendar days after the elate on which a proof of claim in respect of a claim has been filed. For the

8

avoidance of doubt, the Claims Objection Deadline may be extended one or more times by the

9

Bankruptcy Court.

10

1.17

11
12

"Confirmation" means the entry by the Bankruptcy Court of an order (the

"Confirmation Order") confirming the Plan.
1.18

"Creditors' Committee" means the Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors

13

appointed by the Office the United States Trustee in the Bankruptcy Case, with any subsequent

14

changes of membership prior to the Effective Date of the Plan.

15

1.19

"Debtor" means Palm Drive Health Care District, the debtor in the Bankruptcy Case.

16

1.20

"Disputed Claim" means any claim, proof of which has been filed or deemed filed

17

against the Debtor, as to which (a) such claim is listed as disputed, contingent, or unliquidated, or for

18

zero or no amount, on the List of Creditors filed by Palm Drive under Section 924 of the Bankruptcy

19

Code, or (b) an objection or adversary proceeding has been timely filed and has not been withdrawn

20

or disposed of by a Final Order of the Bankruptcy Court.

21

1.21

"Disputed Claims Reserve Account" means a non-segregated account, designated

22

on the books and records of Palm Drive and maintained and administered by Palm Drive, for the

23

purpose of holding cash payments attributable to Disputed Claims pending their resolution as

24

allowed or disallowed.

25

1.22

"District" means Palm Drive Health Care District.

26

1.23

"Effective Date" means the business clay designated as such by Palm Drive that is

27

not later than fifteen (15) calendar days following the entry of the Confirmation Order, unless such

28

order is stayed by order of a court with original or appellate jurisdiction over this Bankruptcy Case,
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1

in which event such date shall be the first business day on or after the eleventh calendar day after

2

such stay expires.

3
4

1.24

"Employees Committee" means the official committee of former employees of Palm

appointed in the Bankruptcy Case.

5

1.25

"503(b)(9) Claim" means a claim of a vendor to Palm Drive that provided goods to

6

Palm Drive that were received during the 20 days before the commencement of the Bankruptcy

7

Case, i.e., from March 18 through April 6, 2014.
1.26

8
9

"Final Order" means an order of the Bankruptcy Court as to which the appeal period

has expired without an appeal having been timely taken or, if an appeal is timely taken, such order

1O has been affirmed on appeal and any time for further appeal or petition has expired without any such
11

further appeal or petition having been filed.

12
13

1.27

"General Unsecured Claim" means an Unsecured Claim, including any claim

arising from the rejection of an unexpired lease or other Executory Contract.

14

1.28

"Hospital" means the public hospital operated on Palm Drive' s behalf in Palm

15

Drive's facilities by SWMC (or any successor to SWMC as the Board of Directors may designate,

16

within the provisions of California health care district law).

17

1.29

"List of Creditors" means the list of creditors filed by Palm Drive in the Bankruptcy

18

Case under Section 924 of the Bankruptcy Code as it has been amended in its entirety by Palm Drive

19

[Docket No. 159, filed August 21, 2014].

20
21

1.30

between Palm Drive and Sonoma West Medical Center as of March 18, 2015.
1.31

22
23

"MSA" means the Management and Staffing Services Agreement entered into

"Petition Date" means April 7, 2014, the date on which Palm Drive commenced the

Bankruptcy Case.

24

1.32

"Plan" means this Palm Drive Plan For Adjustment Of Debts Dated May 3, 2016,

25

and filed by Palm Drive with the Bankruptcy Court, including any modification(s) or amendment(s)

26

thereto.

27
28

1.33

"Priority Claim" means any Allowed Claim entitled to priority pursuant to Section

507(a)(2) of the Bankruptcy Code.
-5
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1

1.34

"Rejection Claim" means an Allowed Unsecured Claim arising from Palm Drive's

2

rejection of an unexpired lease or executory contract pursuant to the Plan or pursuant to a prior or

3

subsequent order of the Bankruptcy Court.

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12

1.35

"Series 2000 GO Bonds" means the Palm Drive Health Care District Insured

General Obligation Bonds Series 2000.
1.36

"Series 2005 Revenue Bonds" means the Palm Drive Health Care District Parcel

Tax Revenue Bonds - Series 2005.
1.37

"Series 2010 CO's" means the Palm Drive Health Care District Certificates of

Participation (2010 Parcel Tax Secured Financing Program).
1.38

"SWMC" means Sonoma West Medical Center, the non-profit management entity

engaged by Palm Drive to operate the Hospital in Palm Drive's facility, under the terms of the MSA.
1.39

"Unclaimed Property" means any distribution that cannot be delivered to, or is not

13

accepted by, the holder of an Allowed Claim, and shall include, without limitation, checks (and the

14

funds represented thereby) that are returned as undeliverable without a proper forwarding address,

15

are not cashed, or are not delivered because of the absence of a proper address to which to deliver

16

the distribution. Distributions shall conclusively be deemed Unclaimed Property if any of the

17

foregoing conditions remains satisfied forty-five (45) calendar days after the attempted distribution.

18
19
20

1.40.

"Unsecured Claim" means any claim that is neither a Secured Claim nor entitled to

priority under the Bankruptcy Code or an order of the Bankruptcy Court.
1.41

A capitalized term used in the Plan that is not defined in the Plan shall have the

21

meaning assigned to such term in the Bankruptcy Code, the Bankruptcy Rules, or the California

22

Health & Safety Code, if defined in those sources, unless the context plainly requires otherwise.

23

ARTICLE II

24

DESIGNATION OF CLASSES OF CLAIMS AND INTERESTS

25
26

The claims against Palm Drive are designated and classified as provided below for purposes
of the Plan.

27

2.1

Class 1: The Secured Claims of holders of the Series 2000 GO Bonds.

28

2.2

Class 2: The Secured Claims of holders of the Series 2005 Revenue Bonds.
-6
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1

2.3

Class 3: The Secured Claims of holders of the Series 2010 COPs.

2

2.4

Class 4: The claims of former employees of Palm Drive.

3

2.S

Class SA: All General Unsecured Claims of $100,000 or less in amount, including

4

s
6
7
8

9
10

executory contract Rejection Claims, other than claims in Classes 4, SB, and 6.
2.6

Class SB:

All General Unsecured Claims greater than $100,000 in amount,

including executory contract Rejection Claims, other than claims in Classes 4, SA, and 6.
2.7

Class 6: Convenience class (holders of general unsecured claims that are $10,000 or

less in amount).
2.8

IMPAIRMENT: Classes 2, 3, 4, SA, SB, and 6 are impaired under the Plan. Class 1

is not impaired under the Plan.

11

ARTICLE III

12

TREATMENT OF UNCLASSIFIED CLAIMS

13
14
lS

Allowed Claims that are unclassified pursuant to Section 1123(a)(l) of the Bankruptcy Code
shall be treated as follows:
3.1

Allowed Administrative Claims: Except to the extent that the holder of an Allowed

16

Administrative Claim has agreed in writing to different treatment of such claim or the Bankruptcy

17

Court orders disbursement at another time, the holder of an Allowed Administrative Claim will

18

receive cash in the allowed amount of such claim within thirty (30) calendar days after the

19

Administrative Claims Bar Date, or, if such Administrative Claim becomes an Allowed

20

Administrative Claim at a later date, then not later than twenty-one (21) calendar days after the date

21

an order allowing such Administrative Claim becomes a Final Order. Allowed Administrative

22

Claims includes timely-filed and allowed S03(b)(9) Claims. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any

23

Administrative Claim incurred in the ordinary course of Palm Drive's activities post-petition

24

(including without limitation any claim of an employee or contract laborer for post-petition

2S

compensation and benefits) shall be paid in the ordinary course in accordance with the existing terms

26

for such obligation.

27
28
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1

Any claim of the counsel for the Creditors' Committee shall be allowed at the amount

2

determined as reasonable by the Banhuptcy Court, after application and review, but in any event not

3

to exceed $SO,OOO.

4

S

No claim of counsel for the Employees Committee shall be allowed as administrative
expense or otherwise.

6

ARTICLE IV

7

TREATMENT OF CLASSIFIED CLAIMS AND INTERESTS

8
9
10
11

The classified claims designated in Article II of the Plan will receive the treatment specified
in this Article IV. Classes 2, 3, 4, SA, SB, and 6 are impaired under the Plan. Class 1 is not
impaired under the Plan.
4.1

Class 1 Claims -

Secured Claims of Series 2000 GO Bonds: The holders of allowed

12

Secured Claims of the Series 2000 GO Bonds shall retain, unaltered, the legal, equitable, and

13

contractual rights to which such claim is entitled according to the existing terms thereof.

14

4.2

Class 2 Claims -

Secured Claims of Series 200S Revenue Bonds. The holders of

lS

allowed Secured Claims of the Series 200S Revenue Bonds shall retain, unaltered, the legal,

16

equitable, and contractual rights to which such claim is entitled according to the existing terms

17

thereof, except that payment of principal will be deferred for two years from the current repayment

18

schedule, and the terms shall be modified to provide for a reserve solely of the next one semi-annual

19

payment due. When principal payment is resumed, payments will be in the ammal amounts called

20

for under the bond terms adjusted for the deferral period, and the maturity date of the Series 200S

21

Revenue Bonds will be two years later than the current maturity date. Interest will be kept current

22

on these Bonds throughout, including during the principal deferral period.

23

All reserves of any category or nature held by the indenture trustee under the terms of the

24

Series 200S Revenue Bonds, other than the rolling one next-payment reserve, shall be released to the

2S

District fifteen (1 S) business days after the Effective Date.

26

4.3

Class 3 Claims - Secured Claims of Series 2010 COPs. The holders of allowed

27

Secured Claims of the Series 2010 COPs shall retain, unaltered, the legal, equitable, and contractual

28

rights to which such claim is entitled according to the existing terms thereof, except:
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1

(a) Payment of principal will be deferred for two years from the current repayment

2

schedule. When principal payment is resumed, payments will be in the annual amounts called for

3

under the bond terms adjusted for the deferral period, and the maturity date will be two years later

4

than the current maturity date. Interest will be kept current on these COPs throughout, including

S

during the principal deferral period.
(b) Interest rates payable on the Series 2010 COPs will be reduced by two percent

6
7

(2%) from the rates currently provided under the terms of these instruments.
(c) All reserves of any category or nature held by the indenture trustee under the

8
9

terms of the Series 2010 COPs, other than a rolling one next-payment reserve - including without

10

limitation funds held by the indenture trustee for the Series 2010 COPs in the Reserve Fund

11

established and maintained under Article VI of the Trust Agreement dated as of May 1, 2010- shall

12

be released to the District fifteen ( 1S) business days after the Effective Date.

13

4.4

Class 4 - Former Employees. Allowed claims of former employees (unless they fall

14

into, or choose to opt into, Class 6 below) will receive fifty percent (SO%) distribution of the allowed

lS

amount of their claims, payable in two equal installments. The first installment will be paid six

16

months from the Effective Date. The second, final installment will be paid 12 months from the

17

Effective Date

18

4.S

Class SA - General Unsecured Claims $100,000 or Less. Allowed General

19

Unsecured Claims of $100,000 or less, including executory contract Rejection Claims other than

20

claims in Classes 4, SB, and 6, will receive distribution of forty percent (40%) of the allowed amount

21

of their claims, paid in two equal installments, with the first installment 90 days from the Effective

22

Date and the second, final installment on the first anniversary date from the Effective Date.

23

4.6.

Class SB - General Unsecured Claims Greater Than $100,000. Allowed General

24

Unsecured Claims, including executory contract Rejection Claims, other than claims in Classes 4,

2S

SB, and 6, will receive distribution of sixty percent (60%) of the allowed amount of their claims,

26

paid in five equal installments, with the first installment paid on the second anniversary elate from

27

the Effective Date and the subsequent four installments on the succeeding anniversary dates from the

28

Effective Date.
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1

4.7

Class 6 - Convenience Class. Holders of allowed General Unsecured Claims that are

2

$10,000 or less in amount will receive distribution of fifty percent (SO%) of the allowed amount of

3

these claims 90 clays after the Effective Date. Creditors in Classes 4 and SA who have claims larger

4

than the Convenience Class amount may, at their option, reduce their claim to the Convenience

S

Class amount and receive the SO percent distribution in the same manner as other members of the

6

Convenience Class.

7

ARTICLE V

8

EXECUTORY CONTRACTS

9
10

Palm Drive's executory contracts and unexpired leases are treated as follows:

S.l

All pre-petition executory contracts or leases not previously assumed or rejected, or

11

otherwise dealt with by Bankruptcy Court order, shall be deemed rejected as of the Effective Date of

12

Plan. The provisions of this subsection of the Plan shall not affect any prior orcler(s) of the

13

Bankruptcy Court approving assumption or rejection of any specific contracts or leases, or the

14

disposition of any motion to assume or reject executory contracts or leases which motion is filed and

lS

served not later than the hearing on Confirmation of the Plan

16

S.2

Rejection Claims are classified as Class SA or SB claims, depending on whether they

17

are $100,000 or less, or higher than $100,000. Any Rejection Claim which becomes an Allowed

18

Claim will receive the treatment provided for claims in Class SA or SB as applicable. Within thirty

19

(30) clays following service of notice of the Effective Date of the Plan, any party asserting a

20

Rejection Claim with respect to any executory contract or lease rejected pursuant to Section S. l

21

above, and which has not already filed a Rejection Claim, must file with the Bankruptcy Court, and

22

serve on counsel for Palm Drive, a proof of claim and documentation supporting such Rejection

23

Claim, or be forever barred from asserting any such claim or receiving any payment on account of

24

such claim.

2S

ARTICLE VI

26

MEANS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THE PLAN

27

The Plan will be implemented as follows:

28

6.1

Continued Governance of Palm Drive; Palm Drive Property and Revenues
-10

ACTIVE 40294425V I 05/04/2016

C

e: 14-10510

Doc# 259

Filed: 05/04/16
22

Entered: 05/04/16 19:34:36

Page 12 of

(a)

1

As of and after the Effective Date, the duly elected Palm Drive Board of

2

Directors, as constituted from time to time, shall will continue to govern the Palm Drive Health Care

3

District. Palm Drive will administer, control, manage, and operate the property and revenues of the

4

District in accordance with the Plan, the District's governing documents, applicable California law,

5

and other applicable laws.
(b)

6

Palm Drive will continue to receive those tax revenues collectible from

7

residents of the District for its benefit pursuant to laws and official measures in effect as of the

8

Petition Date, subject to the debt service obligations to which portions of such revenues are

9

dedicated except as modified by this Plan.
(c)

10

Palm Drive will exercise control and oversight over the Hospital through the

11

MSA with SWMC (or any successor to SWMC as the Board of Directors may designate, within the

12

provisions of California health care district law). The Governing Body established under the MSA,

13

a subcommittee of Palm Drive' s Board of Directors, is the mechanism through which Palm Drive

14

will exercise its oversight of Hospital operations.
(d)

15

Palm Drive will provide financial support to SWMC for facilities maintenance

16

and other purposes as provided by the MSA, to the extent provided therein, provided, however, that

17

Palm Drive, consistent with the terms of the MSA, will not be responsible for any operating losses or

18

debts of SWMC, and Palm Drive's financial support to SWMC will not impair Palm Drive's ability

19

to meet all distributions to creditors required under the terms of this Plan.

20

(e)

In addition to operating, through SWMC, the Hospital, Palm Drive will

21

continue to engage in community-based health services. Palm Drive may do so directly through

22

programs of its own, or indirectly through cooperation with and financial supp01i for other agencies

23

and entities active in Palm Drive's territory.

24

6.2

Payment of Administrative and Priority Claims: From cash on hand, Palm Drive will

25

pay promptly all payments under this Plan required to be made in c01mection with the Effective

26

Date, including:
(a) All Administrative Claims required to be paid on or about the Effective Date,

27
28

unless the holder of any such claim agrees in writing to a later payment elate. Palm Drive will pay
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1

any subsequently allowed Administrative Claims in full promptly after a Final Order allowing such

2

claim, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the holder of any such claim.
(b) Allowed Priority Claims, including allowed 503(b )(9) Claims, required to be paid

3
4

on or about the Effective Date.

5

6.3

Payment of Distributions on Classified Claims: In its annual budget process, and any

6

supplemental budgeting decisions as may be necessary, Palm Drive shall provide for payment of the

7

distributions to the classes of claims provided under Article IV of this Plan, according to the

8

treatment of those classes as provided therein. In making such distributions, Palm Drive will make

9

appropriate calculations, and provide for appropriate reserves in the Disputed Claims Reserve

10

Account as provided in Section 6.11 (cl) below. Palm Drive will act as disbursing agent under the

11

Plan with regard to all payments and distributions to be made to creditors or other parties in interest

12

hereunder, without bond.

13

6.4

Objections to Claims: Palm Drive is authorized to review and object to claims.

14

Subject to making the payments required by Article IV of the Plan, and the funding of the reserve

15

required by Section 6.11 (cl), Palm Drive is authorized to enter into compromises to allow and satisfy

16

Disputed Claims, and to sell, liquidate, or abandon any claim or cause of action of Palm Drive

17

against any third party.
6.5

18
19

the Plan, Palm Drive:

20
21

Post-Confirmation Powers of Palm Drive: Subject to the other express provisions of

(a) is authorized to determine whether Palm Drive will pursue any claims or causes
of action available under applicable law (including A voiding Actions); and
(b) if it determines that any such claim or cause of action should be pursued, to

22
23

commence, prosecute, or compromise such claim. Any recovery on such claim or cause of action

24

shall be considered property of Palm Drive, and treated as any other assets under the terms of the

25

Plan.

26

6.6

(a) Annually, Palm Drive will file with the Bankruptcy Court a post-confirmation

27
28

Post-Confirmation Reporting

status report ("Report"), the purpose of which is to explain the progress made toward full
-12
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1

administration of the confirmed plan of reorganization. The first Report will be filed for the portion

2

of the calendar year from the elate of confirmation to the encl of the period. Subsequent reports will

3

be filed at the expiration of each calendar year thereafter until entry of a final decree closing the

4

Chapter 9 Case. Reports will be filed with the Bankruptcy Court not later than forty-five (45) clays

5

after the expiration of the reporting period.

6

(b) The Report will include a statement of receipts and disbursements, with the

7

ending cash balance, for the :reporting period. The Report will also include information sufficiently

8

comprehensive to enable the Bankruptcy Court to determine: (1) whether the order confirming the

9

Plan has become final; (2) whether payments under the Plan have commenced; (3) whether

10

payments required under the Plan are current; and (4) whether all motions, contested matters, and

11

adversary proceedings have been finally resolved.

12

(c) A copy of each Report will be served promptly on such persons or entities as

13

have made a request for service of such Reports in writing with the Bankruptcy Court ("Post-

14

Confirmation Notice List"), with copy of such request served on Palm Drive and its counsel not later

15

than the clay on which it is filed with the Bankruptcy Court.

16

(d) At such time as Palm Drive deems appropriate, consistent with applicable law

17

and rules, but only after payments required by Sections 4.4, 4.5, 4.6, and 4.7 of this Plan, and the

18

funding of the Disputed Claims Reserve Account required by Section 6.11 (d), Palm Drive will file

19

an application for entry of a final decree in this Bankruptcy Case, and shall serve the application on

20

the Post-Confirmation Notice List, together with a proposed final decree. Palm Drive will prepare

21

and file any status report that may be required by the Bankruptcy Court in connection with the

22

issuance of a final decree. Parties on the Post-Confirmation Notice List will have twenty-one (21)

23

clays within which to object or otherwise comment upon application to the Bankruptcy Court for

24

entry of the final decree.

25

6.7

Other Post-Confirmation Powers: Palm Drive is authorized to do or cause to be done

26

all things necessary and appropriate to administer and execute the Plan, consistent with the terms of

27

the Plan, the Confirmation Order, and the Bankruptcy Code and the Bankruptcy Rules to the extent

28
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1

applicable. Palm Drive shall have full power and authority to execute and deliver any and all

2 documents necessary or appropriate to carry out the Plan.
6.8

3

4

Creditors' Committees: On the Effective Date, the Creditors' Committee and

the Employees Committee will be dissolved. Post-confirmation, the former members of these

5 committees will enjoy all defenses and immunities available under the Bankruptcy Code. Palm
6 Drive releases any and all claims, rights, and causes of action that it may hold against either
7

Committee or any Committee member arising as a result of any action taken or omitted to be taken

8

by either Conm1ittee or any of its members in connection with or related to the solicitation of votes

9

on the Plan, the confirmation of the Plan, or any action otherwise within the scope of the duties and

10

powers of the Committee or any Committee member, whether granted under the Bankruptcy Code,

11

under applicable court order, or otherwise, except to the extent that such claims or causes of action

12

arise as a result of willful misconduct by the Committee or any Committee member acting as such,

13

as the case may be. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of this Subsection 6.8 are not

14

intended to, and shall have no effect on, the allowability (or lack thereof) of any creditor claim held

15

by any member of a Committee, or the status or result of any objection to such creditor claim held by

16

any member of a Co1mnittee.

17

6.9

Avoiding Actions: All Avoiding Actions available to Palm Drive are preserved after

18

the Effective Date, and may be prosecuted post-confirmation by Palm Drive, subject to the following

19

prov1s10ns:
(a) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (b) below, any action to recover on an

20

21

Avoiding Action must be commenced in a court of competent jurisdiction not later than six (6)

22

months after the Effective Date, or it will be barred.
(b) The deadline set forth in paragraph (a) above for commencing an action may be

23
24

extended by:

25

(1) Written agreement of the proposed defendant; or

26

(2) Order of the Bankruptcy Court, made on a showing of good cause after

27

motion served before the expiration of the deadline (including any previously extended deadline) on

28

the proposed defendant; provided, that in the event the Bankruptcy Court denies any timely brought
-14
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1

motion to extend the deadline, the deadline shall nevertheless be extended until fourteen (14)

2

calendar days after the date of entry of the order denying the requested extension.

3

6.10

Unclaimed Property: If a distribution to the holder of an Allowed Claim remains

4

unclaimed for forty-five (45) days following the attempted distribution, Palm Drive shall use

5

reasonable diligence to attempt to locate such claim holder. If after reasonable diligence, such claim

6

holder still cannot be located, such distribution shall be conclusively deemed waived by the holder of

7

the claim.

8

6.11

(a) Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (b) immediately below, any objection

9
10

to claims must be filed no later than one-hundred twenty (120) days after the Effective Date.
(b) The deadline set forth in paragraph (a) above for objecting to any claim may be

11
12

Disputed Claims:

extended by:

13

(1) Written agreement of the holder of the claim; or

14

(2) Order of the Bankruptcy Court, made on a showing of good cause after

15

motion served before the expiration of the deadline (including any previously extended deadline) on

16

the holder of the claim; provided, that in the event the Bankruptcy Court denies any timely brought

17

motion to extend the deadline, the deadline shall nevertheless be extended until fourteen (14)

18

calendar days after the date of entry of the order denying the requested extension.
(c) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Plan, the disputed portion of a

19
20

Disputed Claim shall not receive any distribution, unless and until the status of an Allowed Claim is

21

attained for such disputed amount.

22
23

(d) Palm Drive will maintain and administer, by designation on its books and
records, a non-segregated Disputed Claims Reserve Account, subject to the following provisions:

24

(1) In the event that a claim is disputed and has not become an Allowed

25

Claim as of the elate of any distribution to creditors, an amount of cash sufficient to pay the

26

applicable distribution to the Disputed Claim if allowed in the full amount for which it is asserted

27

shall be designated in the Disputed Claims Reserve Account.

28
-15
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(2) If and when a Disputed Claim becomes an Allowed Claim by entry of a

1
2

Final Order so ruling, the appropriate portion of the funds designated in the Disputed Claims

3

Reserve Account with respect to such claim shall be paid to the holder of the Disputed Claim as soon

4

as practicable thereafter.

5

(3) Funds attributable to the disallowed portion of Disputed Claims which are

6

disallowed in whole or in part by a Final Order shall be released from the Disputed Claims Reserve

7

Account.
(4) The Final Order which either allows or disallows a Disputed Claim shall

8
9
10
11

also specify and order the amounts that are to be disbursed from the Disputed Claims Reserve
Account.
6.12

Administrative Claims Bar Date: Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (a) and

12

(b) immediately below, requests for payment of all Administrative Claims which are due on or about

13

the Effective Date (specifically including requests by professionals for compensation or expenses in

14

connection with services performed before the Effective Date) must be filed with the Bankruptcy

15

Court and served on Palm Drive not later than thirty (30) calendar days following the Effective Date,

16

or be forever barred and Palm Drive will then not have any further liability therefor.
(a)

17

The bar date for filing a request for payment of an Administrative Claim may

18

be extended by written agreement between the claimant and Palm Drive, or by Bankruptcy Comi

19

order by request for good cause, on notice to Palm Drive, filed and served prior to the bar date.

20

(b)

The bar date established in this Section 6.12 does not apply to post-petition

21

ordinary trade payables or other obligations incurred in the ordinary course of Palm Drive's post-

22

petition activities, which claims will, pursuant to Section 3 .1 of this Plan, be payable in the ordinary

23

course in accordance with the existing terms otherwise applicable to such obligations.

24
25

6.13

Preservation of Claims and Objections: Nothing in the Plan is intended to, nor will it,

limit in any way the ability of Palm Drive to:

26

(a) exercise the rights and powers conferred upon it by applicable bankruptcy law,

27

including but not limited to the pursuit of A voiding Actions and the prosecution of objections to

28

claims (whether or not their holders have accepted the Plan),
-16
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(b) pursue recovery on any and all other causes of action held by Palm Drive prior to

1
2

Confirmation under otherwise applicable non-bankruptcy laws, or

3

(c) exercise the rights and powers of governance and take other official actions

4

through Palm Drive's Board of Directors and officers; 12rovided that all such powers and actions are

5

exercised in all respects in compliance with the provisions of the Plan and the Confirmation Order,

6

and 12rovided further that no claims, causes of action, rights, avoiding powers, other powers of Palm

7

Drive, or objections to any claims against Palm Drive whatsoever are released, waived, deemed

8

adjudicated, or allowed by confirmation of the Plan except as expressly provided in the Plan or the

9

Confirmation Order.

10

ARTICLE VII

11

INJUNCTION AND CUSTODIA LEGIS

12

7.1

Confirmation of this Plan constitutes an injunction prohibiting any person from taking

13

any act, commencing any suit, or enforcing any right, including the right to a judicial or non-judicial

14

foreclosure of any lien, which has the effect of asserting, liquidating, or enforcing any claim

15

provided for herein against any property or revenues of Palm Drive, and prohibiting any person from

16

taking any act, commencing any suit, or enforcing any right which has the effect of asserting,

17

liquidating, or enforcing any claim provided for herein against Palm Drive except as provided

18

hereunder.

19

7.2

All of the property of Palm Drive shall be retained by Palm Drive as of and from the

20

Effective Date, free and clear of all claims and interests of creditors, subject to the provisions of the

21

Plan, and shall be under the control and direction of, and shall be administered by, Palm Drive.

22

7.3

Entry of the Confirmation Order acts as a discharge of any debt of Palm Drive that

23

arose prior to Confirmation to the extent provided by Section 944(b) of the Bankruptcy Code,.

24

Neither Palm Drive nor its Board of Directors or officers shall have any liability to any creditors

25

other than to make the distributions expressly provided for under the Plan.

26
27
28
-17
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1

ARTICLE VIII

2

RETAINED JURISDICTION

3

After Confirmation, the Bankruptcy Court shall retain jurisdiction pursuant to Section 945 of

4

the Bankruptcy Code and this Plan to enforce the provisions, purposes, and intent of this Plan or any

5

modification hereof, including without limitation, matters or proceedings relating to:

6
7

8.1

adjustment, treatment, or liquidation of claims and objections thereto;

8
9
10

Allowance, disallowance, reconsideration, estimation, compromise, settlement,

8.2

Allowance of claims and requests for payment of administrative expenses of the

8.3

Resolution of controversies and disputes, including disputes regarding interpretation

Debtor;

11

of the Plan and the Confirmation Order, and the correction of any mistake, defect, or omission

12

regarding interpretation or enforcement of the Plan and the Confirmation Order;

13

8.5

14

Bankruptcy Code;

15

8.6

16

Modification(s) of the Plan pursuant to Section 1127(d) or Section 942 of the

Adjudication of any actions brought by post-confirmation by Palm Drive to enforce

any right or recover any claim created, granted, or preserved under this Plan;

17

8.7

Ent1y of orders in aid of implementation of this Plan;

18

8.8

Such other matters for which jurisdiction is provided under the Bmtlauptcy Code, the

19
20

Plan, or the Confirmation Order; and
8.9

Entry of a final decree closing the Bankruptcy Case.

21

ARTICLE IX

22

EFFECT OF CONFIRMATION OF THE PLAN

23

Upon Confirmation, pursuant to Section 944( a) of the Bankruptcy Code, the provisions of the

24

Plan shall be binding upon Palm Drive, any person or entity acquiring property under the Plan, and

25

any creditor, whether or not the claim of such creditor is impaired under the Plan and whether or not

26

such creditor or interest holder has accepted the Plan.

27

28
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1

ARTICLE X

2

NON-SUBSTANTIVE MODIFICATION OF PLAN

3

Palm Drive may, after such notice as the Bankruptcy Court determines to be appropriate,

4

modify the Plan prior to the Effective Date, if the Bankruptcy Court determines that such

5

modification does not materially and adversely affect or impair the interest of any holder of a claim

6

who has not accepted such modification. Such modification shall be deemed accepted by all holders

7

of claims or interests who have previously accepted the Plan.
[The remainder of this page is intentionally lefi blank.]
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1

ARTICLE XI

2

CRAMDOWN REQUESTED

3

Palm Drive requests that, if a class of impaired claims does not accept this Plan by the

4

requisite majorities, confirmation nevertheless proceed under Section 1129(b) of the Bankruptcy

5 Code.
6

PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Debtor

DATED: May 3, 2016

7

8
Isl Jim Jvfaresca
Jim Maresca
President of the Board of Directors

By:

9
10
11

FOX ROTHSCHILD LLP

12
13
14
15

By: Isl Dale L. Bratton
Michael A. Sweet
Dale L. Bratton
Attorneys for Debtor
Palm Drive Health Care District

16

17

18
19
20
21

22
23

24
25
26
27

28
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ASSUMPTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH DISTRICT PLAN PROJECTIONS

1.

Class 1 - Series 2000 GO Bonds : Unimpaired; paid according to existing pre

bankruptcy terms.
2.

Class 2 - Series 2005 Revenue Bonds: Principal payments deferred for two

years; interest kept current during deferral period; all reserves held by indenture trustee other
than rolling next one-payment-due reserve released to District upon Plan confirmation.
3.

Class 3 - Series 2010 COPs: Principal payments deferred for two years; interest

kept current during deferral period; all reserves held by indenture trustee other than rolling next
one-payment-due reserve released to District upon Plan confirmation; interest rates reduced
by 2% from existing pre-bankruptcy rates.
4.

Class 4 - Former employees: Receive 50% on allowed claims, paid in two equal

installments; first installment six months after Plan effective date; second installment 12 months
after Plan effective date.
5.

Class 5A - General Unsecured Claims $100,000 or less: Receive 40% on allowed

claims, paid in two equal installments, first installment 90 days from the Plan effective elate,
second installment on the first anniversary date from Plan effective date.
6.

Class 5B - General Unsecured Claims Greater than $100,000: Receive 60% on

allowed claims, paid in five equal installments, first installment on second anniversary from Plan
effective date, subsequent four installments on the succeeding anniversary dates from Plan
effective elate.
7.

Class 6-Convenience Class (Unsecured Claims $10,000 or less in amount):

Receive 50% on allowed claims 90 clays after Plan effective elate; claims in Classes 4 and 5A
may reduce their claims to this amount and "opt-down" to this class to receive this early payout;
assumed that significant number of small trade creditors will choose to opt clown.
8.

ESTIMATES: The amounts in these Projections, including total amounts to be

paid to each class over the life of the Plan are estimates only, and are subject to change
depending on such factors as whether there are claims in any class that are subject to objection as
to amount, classification, or priority. By way of example only, there are claims filed as secured
that are plainly not secured, and claims filed as priority that are plainly not priority.
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District Bankruptcy Plan Projections

Tax Revenue Analysis

I

2016

I

2018

I
2019

2020

I

I

I

5,751,9361

3,266,9361

2,680,8191

I

I

I

416,988 I
336,3681
434,9251
4,563,6551

422,7381
315,2001
516,775 I
2,435,1361

422,5381
315,2001
516,7751
1,849,2191

421,6181
664,1681
661,0941
1,928,9621

i

I

I

I

:

II

I

850,0001
50,oooi

850,0001
01
II

Net Available Cash
I

i

i

I

01
01

I
I

2022

I

3,689,8491
1,009,0301
2,680,8191

Debt Service on 2000
DebtService on 2005
Debt Service on 2010

I

2021

I

I

3,689,849
422,913
3,266,9361
01
ol

Release of Reserves
Receipts from pre-petition AR
Other Income
Gross Available Cash

Post-petition ongoing
Post-petition bankruptcy

2017

3,874,8491
422,913 I
3,451,9361
2,300,000!
oi
'

Net Tax Receipts

District Expenses

I
i

'

Gross Tax Receipts
Withholding for next debt service

I

I

I

2015

3,689,849
1,023,037
2,666,812
0
0

3,689,849
1,048,884
2,640,965
0
0

3,689,8491
1,048,8841
2,640,9651
0
ol

I
2,666,812

3,689,849
1,048,884
2,640,965

2,640,965

I
2,640,9651

2,640,965

I

I

i

424,9581
667,198
678,7361
1,893,110

427,3281
664,2681
797,5241
1,800,7291

428,8901
664,2681
797,5241
1,799,1671
I

I

I

i

I

I

I

550,0001
ol
'

550,0001
0

550,000
0

350,0001

350,0001
ol

1,000,000
150,0001
1,499,6381

1,000,000
150,000
896,549

500,000
150,000!
901,079\

150,0001
904,0471

I

I

I

01

I

Deferred maintenance, ongoing
maintenance, equipment & charity care I
ACA Population Health services

i
1,000,0001
100,0001
2,803,6551

Available for pre-petition claims

I

Unsecured Claims Distributions

I

Trade Class >100k
Trade Class <100k
Employee class
Convenience class
I
Total Unsecured Claims Distribs.

ol
238,1261
409,578 I
75,727
723,431

:

I

240,000,

Case: 14-10510

1,000,000
150,000
2,066,875

I
I

I

2,080,224

Doc# 260-5

I

I

796,199
0
0
0
796,199

796,1991
01
ol
01
796,1991

1,270,676

703,439 I

01
238,1261
409,5781
01
647,7041
1,917,6561

500,0001

I

796,199
0
0
0
796,199

796,199

100,350

104,8801

i

I

:

Ending cash balance

1,000,oool
100,0001
2,565,360 I
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107,928

3,980,915
476,252
819,156
75,727
5,352,050
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ATTACHMENT 7

1SllilJ2t
HEALDSBURG
DISTRICT HOSPITAL

;f;1;1d9t119 Health
May 11, 2016

Mark Bramfitt, Executive Officer

Sonoma Local Agency Formation Commission
575 Administration Drive, Room 104A

Santa Rosa CA 95403
RE: Request for Financial Information

Dear Mr. Bramfltt:

response to your letter dated April 28 requesting financlal Information, I am pleased to provide the
data you have asked for to assist with your financial anl'!lysis.
In

•

For the most recent fiscal year with complete and/or audited information, the North Sonoma
Cour'lty Healthcare District dba Healdsburg District Hospital received $3,357,254 in parcel levy
taxes. There iHe 22,677 parcels assessed within the District, and the amount paid per parcel is

$150.
•

response to your inquiry regarding revenue, the unaudited amount received during the time
period beginning January 1, 2015 anr;I ending December 31, 2015 Is $99,934,716 In gross
revenue, and $40,210,165 in net revenue for the same time period.
In

Should you have any questions about the information provided above or need any clarification, please

do not hesitate to contact me.
Thank you.

Sincerely,

Nancy Schmid, CEO
North Sonoma County Healthcare District dba Healdsburg District Hospital

NSC~i.ID
NOl\1'1-1 50MOMA COUNTY HEALTHCARE DISTl\ICT

1375 University Avenue, Healdsburg, CA 95448 • Phone: 707.431.6500 • Facsimile: 707.431.6588 • nschd.org

ATTACHMENT 8
SONOMA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
575 ADMINISTRATION DRIVE, ROOM 104A, SANTA ROSA, CA 95403
(707) 565-2577 FAX (707) 565-3778
www.sonomalafco.org

June 9, 2016
Ms. Alanna Brogan, Executive Director
Palm Drive Health Care District
612 Petaluma Avenue
Sebastopol, CA 95472

Re: Request for Information to Support Municipal Services Review
Dear Ms. Brogan:
The Sonoma Local Agency Formation Commission will be drafting a Municipal Service Review of the
Palm Drive Health Care District, and is seeking information from the District to support our analysis.
Attached is a list of our initial questions; although we will endeavor to limit impact on your limited staff
resources, we may submit additional questions as we draft our report.
We would appreciate receiving your response as soon as possible. We intend to have a public review
draft of the report, which will be made available for comment by affected agencies and interested
parties, completed by July 3th.
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. We truly appreciate your support in this
matter.
Sincerely-

Mark Bramfitt
Executive Officer

SONOMA LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
575 ADMINISTRATION DRIVE, ROOM 104A, SANTA ROSA, CA 95403
(707) 565-2577 FAX (707) 565-3778
www.sonomalafco.org

Request for Information from
Palm Drive Health Care District
June 9, 2016

1.

Has the District completed the capital management plan that projects future expenses for
maintenance of the Districts real property that was underway in 2013? (Please provide a copy if
so; if not, please explain.)

2.

Does the District have a capital management plan for equipment purchases, leases, and

3.

Please provide a listing of board members and terms served since the District was formed, and

maintenance?
the geographical location that each board member resided in at the time of service (City, town
or street is sufficient).
4.

Is the District currently performing an appraisal of District-owned real property? If so, what is
the intended use or purpose of the appraisal?

5.

Does the District plan to, or is it considering a plan to encumber the real property in any way in
the next twelve months?

6.

Do current District board members have current Form 700 disclosure forms on file with the
California Fair Political Practices Commission?

7.

Have District Board members completed Ethics Training meeting the requirements of AB 1234,
Chapter 700, Stats. Of 2005, and are certificates of completion available at the District's offices?
If not, please explain.

8.

Have District Board members completed any training programs related to compliance with the
Brown Act?

9.

Please forward any public records, including meeting minutes, related to discussions regarding
establishment of the governance structure described in Article 1 the Management and Staffing
Services Agreement entered into by the District and Sonoma West Medical Center.

10. What plans, if any, does the District have to borrow funds against unencumbered tax revenues
in the next twelve months?
11. What is the current asset value of property, plant, and equipment owned by the District?
12. Please provide documentation regarding the $400,000 loan to SWMC made by the District this
year.

RECEIVED
O<ttl;-t>rfJ ifo 1G

DSON~A
LAFCO
LOCAL AGENCY

PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE

FORMATION COMMPSSION

DISTRICT

Response to LAFCO Questions Related
1.

Has the District completed the capital management plan that projects future expenses for
maintenance of the District's real property that was underway in 201.3 {please provide a copy if
so; if not please explain.
The capital management plan from 2013 was not completed. The current plant maintenance
Director/Chief Engineer is working on one but it will not be ready in time for this review.

2.

Does the District have a capital management plan for equipment purchases, leases and
maintenance?
Capital Equipment - Under the Management and Staffing Services Agreement signed in 2015,
SWMC is obligated to determine their capital equipment needs and present them to the
District board. They have presented a list of desired capital equipment but it needs to be
prioritized and that has not been done yet.
Building Maintenance - We do have plans for building maintenance. The roof needs to be
replaced in the next 2 years.
We did have CASP survey and are working on a complete plan of correction related to this.
The SWMC plant maintenance staff has begun to make some of the corrections as they work
in the areas of need.
Lease -There is no plan related to leases.

3.

Please provide a list of board members and terms served since the District was formed, and the
geographical location that each board member resided in at the time of service.
Please see the attached document

4.

Is the District currently performing an appraisal of District owned property? If so, what is the
intended use or purpose of the appraisal?
The District is not currently performing an appraisal. The last appraisal was obtained in 2000.
The District may choose to update that appraisal in the next 6 months if the benefit justifies
the cost, but right now, there is no immediate purpose or intended use for such an appraisal.

5.

Does the District plan to, or is it considering a plan to encumber the real property in any way in
the next 12 months?
There are absolutely no plans to do this.

6.

Do current District board members have current Form 700 disclosure forms on file with the
California Fair Political Practices Commission?
The County, not the FPPC, is the code reviewing body and filling officer for the District, and it
maintains the Form 700's. As required, these forms were submitted to the County by the
District on or before April 1, 2016.

7.

Have District board members completed the Ethics Training meeting the requirements of AB
1234, Chapter 77, Stats. of 2005, and are certificates of completion available in the District's
offices. If not, please explain.
Yes, the District Board members completed the training and certificates are available.

8.

Have District board members completed any training programs related to compliance with the
Brown Act?
Yes, once within 6 months of their election, and thereafter once every 2 years, in accordance
with AB 1234.

9.

Please forward any public records, including meeting minutes, related to discussions regarding
the establishment of the governance structure described in Article 1 of the Management and
Staffing Services Agreement entered into by the District and Sonoma West Medical Center.
Please see attached

10. What plans, if any, does the District have to borrow funds against the unencumbered tax
revenues in the next 12 months?
The District does not plan to borrow funds against any tax revenues in the next 12 months.
11. What is the current asset value of the property, plant and equipment owned by the District?
As noted above, an appraisal has not been done since 2000. At that time the property value
was $6,300,000.
12. Please provide documentation regarding the $400,000 Joan to SWMC made by the District this
year.
The loan documents are attached. You will note that the $400,000 was due to be repaid on
May 5, 2016. The District notified SWMC that they had defaulted on the note. The PDHCD

board members authorized the Dist~ict Executive Director to renegotiate the terms of the loan
with SWMC at the 6/6/2016 Board meeting. Those negotiations are in process and will be
presented at the July 11, 2016 Board meeting.

Palm Drive Health Care District Board Members
Terms Served

Year

Board member

Geographical Location

2000

Barbara Graves

Sebastopol

2000-2004

Dan Smith

Sebastopol

2000-2004

Dana Kueffner

Bodega Bay

2000-2004

Glenn Minervini-Zick

Sebastopol

2000-2004

Mary Szsecsey

Occidental

2000-2004

Barbara Graves

Sebastopol

2000-2004

Dan Smith

Sebastopol

2000-2004

Dana Kueffner

Bodega Bay

2000-2004

Glenn Minervini-Zick

Sebastopol

2000-2004

Mary Szsecsey

Occidental

2000-2004

Robert Gillen

Sebastopol

2001-2004

B;:irbara Graves

Sebastopol

2000-2004

Dana Kueffner

Bodega Bay

2000-2004

Resigned 2002

Mark Sell

Sebastopol

2002-2006

Appointed 2002

Mary Szsecsey

Occidental

2000-2004

Naomi Fuchs

Sebastopol

2002-2006

Robert Gillen

Sebastopol

2001-2004

Barbara Graves

Sebastopol

2000-2004

Mark Sell

Sebastopol

2002-2006

Mary Szsecsey

Occidental

2000-2004

Naomi Fuchs

Sebastopol

2002-2006

Robert Gillen

Sebastopol

2002-2004

Barbara Graves

Sebastopol

2004-2008

Mark Sell

Sebastopol·

2002-2006

Mary Szecsy

Occidental

2000-2004

Naomi Fuchs

Sebastopol

2002-2006

Robert Gillen

Sebastopol

2002-2004

Ezbon Jen

Bodega Bay

2004-2008

Irma Cordova

Sebastopol

2004-2008

Mark Sell

Sebastopol

2002-2006

Naomi Fuchs

Sebastopol

2002-2006

Robert Gillen

Sebastopol

2004-2008

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

. Resigned 2001
Resigned 2001
Appointed 2001

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

Ezbon Jen

Bodega Bay

2004-2008

Irma Cordova

Sebastopol

2004-2008

Mark Sell

Sebastopol

2002-2006

Naomi Fuchs

Sebastopol

2002-2006

Robert Gillen

Sebastopol

2004-2008

Ezbon Jen

Bodega Bay

2004-2008

Resigned 2007

Frank Mayhew

Sebastopol

2004-2008

Appointed 2007

Irma Cordova

Sebastopol

2004-2008

Linda Johnson

Sebastopol

2004-2008

Nancy Dobbs

Sebastopol

2007-2008

Appointed 2007

Naomi Fuchs
Robert Gillen

Sebastopol

2006-2010

Resigned 2007

Sebastopol

2004-2008

Frank Mayhew

Sebastopol

2008-2012

Irma Cordova

Sebastopol

2004-2008
2004-2010

Linda Johnson

Sebastopol

Nancy Dobbs

Sebastopol

2008-2008

Robert Gillen
Stephen Murphy

Sebastopol

2004-2008

Sebastopol

2008-2008

Dan Smith

Sebastopol

2008-2012

Frank Mayhew

Sebastopol

2008-2012

Linda Johnson

Sebastopol

2006-2010

Nancy Dobbs

Sebastopol

2007-2010

Steven Murphy

Sebastopol

2008-2012

Chris Dawson
Dan Smith

Sebastopol
Sebastopol

2010-2014
2008-2012

Frank Mayhew

Sebastopol

2008-2012

Linda Johnson

Sebastopol
Sebastopol

2006-2010

Sebastopol

2010-2014
2008-2012

Chris Dawson

Sebastopol

2010-2014

Dan Smith

Sebastopol

2008-2012

Nancy Dobbs
Stephen Murphy

2011

Appointed 2008

Appointed 2010

Resigned 2010

Resigned 2011

Sebastopol

2008-2012

Jared Dreyfus

Sebastopol

2010-2014

Deceased 2011

John Canova M.D.

Sebastopol

2011-2014

Appointed 2011

Mark lnnman

Sebastopol

2011-2012

Appointed 2011

Nancy Dobbs

Sebastopol

2010-2014

Chris Dawson

Sebastopol

2010-2014

Frank Mayhew
John Canova M.D.

Sebastopol

2008-2012

Sebastopol

2011-2014

Frank Mayhew

2012

Resigned 2008

2013

2014

Mark lnnman
Nancy Dobbs

Sebastopol

2011-2012

Sebastopol

2010-2014

Chris Dawson

Sebastopol

2010-2014

Jim Maresca

Gureneville

2012-2016

Marsha Sue Lustig

Sebastopol

Nancy Dobbs

Sebastopol

2012-2016
2010-2014

Sandra Bodley

Sebastopol

2012-2016

Chris Dawson

Sebastopol

2010-2014

Resigned 2011

Jim Horn

Forestville

2014-2014

Appointed 2011

Gureneville

2012-2016

Nancy Dobbs

Sebastopol
Sebastopol

2012-2016
2010-2014

Sandra Bodley

Sebastopol

2012-2016

Dennis Colthurst

Sebastopol

2014-2018

Dr. Richard Powers

Sebastopol

2014-2018

Jim Maresca

Gureneville

2012-2016

Marsha Sue Lustig

Sebastopol

2012-2016

Sandra Bodley

Sebastopol

2012-2016

Dennis Colthurst
Dr. Richard Powers

Sebastopol

2014-2018

Sebastopol

2014-2018

Jim Maresca
Marsha Sue Lustig

Gureneville

2012-2016

Sebastopol

2012-2016

Sandra Bodley

Sebastopol

2012-2016

Jim Maresca
Marsha Sue Lustig

2015

2016
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PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE

P:707.823.3586
F:707.823.3728

DISTRICT

612 Petaluma Avenue, Sebastopol, CA 95472

June 15, 2016

Mr. Raymond Hino, CEO, Sonoma West Medical Center
Mr. Dan Smith, President Sonoma West Medical Center Board of Directors
Sonoma West Medical Center
501 Petaluma Avenue
Sebastopol, CA. 95472
Dear Ray and Dan,
On February 5, 2016 the Palm Drive Health Care District (PDHCD) granted a loan to Sonoma West
Medical Center (SWMC) for $400,000 at a 4% annum interest rate from February 5, 2016 until the
loan was paid back. The terms of the loan included that it would be paid back in 90 days. lfthe loan is
not paid back on maturity the entire amount of money becomes due and payable. Also, the interest
rate on the unpaid balance increases to the lesser of 10% or the maximum legal rate.
The date of maturity on the loan was May 4, 2016. No payment has been made on this loan. I am
informing you that SWMC is in default of the Joan agreement. The PDHCD stated this at their regular
meeting on June 6, 2016. This letter is meant to confirm their determination on this.
·'

The PDHCD also authorized me, Alanna Brogan, ED to renegotiate the terms of the loan.
I met with Stewart Goldberg Monday June 13, 2016 to initiate this discussion. I need to have the loan
agreement renegotiated by June 24, 2016. I ask for your assistance in expediting this process.
Sincerely,

Alanna Brogan, MS, PHN, RN
Executive Director
Palm Drive Health Care District
612 Petaluma Avenue
Sebastopol, CA. 95472
work: 707.823.3596
Cell: 707.548.6675
E-mail: abrogan@pdhcd.com
CC: Stewart Goldberg, Treasurer Sonoma West Medical Center Board of Directors

BUSINESS LOAN AGREEMENT
This Business Loan Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into by and between Palm Drive
H~th Care District ("District") and Sonoma West Medical Center, Inc. ("Borrower") as of February

~ 2016 (the "Effective Date"), with regard to the following:
Recitals

A. District is a California healthcare district formed in accordance with California's Local Health
Care District Law (California Health & Safety Code sections 32000 et seq.). District owns an
acute care hospital in Sebastopol, California ("Hospital").
·

B. Borrower is a California Corporation thatoperates the Hospital pursuant to the terms of a
Management and Staffing Services Agreement dated May 22, 2015 ("MSA").Pursuant to the
MSA, revenue received from accounts receivable generated·from operation of the Hospital are
paid into a bank account ("lock box") and then disbursed to Borrower to reimburse its direct and
reasonable costs of operation.
C. Due to unavoidable delays in obtairuing necessary billing numbers and accreditations, payments
on accumulated accounts receivable have been delayed, resulting in a need for short term bridge
financing.
D. District currently has cash in the amount of $400,000.00 that is available to provide the needed
bridge financing, and is willing to make a short term loan to Borrower on the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of any financial accommodations given, or to be given or
continued ("Credit") by District to Borrowerpursuant to the Straight Note signed contemporaneously
herewith, and any extensions, renewals or replacements thereof ("Document(s)"), Borrower hereby
represents, warrants, and agrees as follows, unless District waives compliance in ·writing:
Agreement
l.

Recitals.
The forgoing Recitals are true and correct.

2.

Purpose of Credit.
Borrower shall continue to perform its obligations under the MSA and operate the Hospital in the
manner it is presently operated ("Business") and shall utilize the Credit only for the purpose of paying
operating expenses of the Business.
Security for Credit. As security for amounts owing in respect ofthe Credit, District and
3.
Borrower agree to modify the terms of the MSA to the extent required for District to control the lock
box, and to allow District to withhold payments from the lock box that wouldotherwise be due to
Borrower in order to satisfy Borrower's payment obligationsunder the terms of the Documents. Upon
District's request, Borrower shall execute and deliver to District any documents deemed necessary or
desirable by District to perfect the security interest granted hereby.
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4.

Representations and Warranties; Additional Covenants.
(a) Borrower is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
laws of the State of California, with its principal place of business at 6800 Palm Ave., Suite
K,Sebastopol, California 95472. Borrower has the lawful power to own its properties and to engage in
the business it conducts.
(b) Borrower has full power and authority (corporate and other) to borrow the sums provided.for
under the Credit, to execute, deliver, and perform this Agreement, the Document(s), and all othei:
instruments and agreements made in connection herewith and with the Credit (the Document(s) and
other instruments and agreements hereinafter called "Related Documents").
·
(c) All actions by Borrower, its directors, stockholders, members, or partners, as applicable that
are necessary for the authorization execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement, and of the
Related Documents have been duly taken.
.(d) The officers or representatives of Borrower executing the Agreement and the Related
Docm:i:J.ents are duly and properly in office or acting as representatives and are fully authorized to
execute the same.
(e) The Agreement has been duly authorized, executed, and delivered by Borrower, and is a
legal, valid, and binding agreement of Borrower, enforceable against it in accordance with its tenns, and
the Related Documents have been so authorized and, when executed and delivered, shall be similarly
valid, binding and enforceable against the parties thereto.
(f) There is no charter, bylaw, or capital stock provision of Borrower, and no provision of any
indenture instrument, or agreement, written or oral, to which Borrower is a party or which governs the
actions of Borrower or which is otherwise binding upon Borrower or Borrower's property, nor is there
any statute, rule or regulation, or any judgment, decree, or order of any court or agency binding on
Borrower or Borrower's property which would be contravened by the execution, delivery or performance
of this Agreement, or of the Related Documents.
(g) There is no action, suit, or proceeding at law or in equity or by or before any governmental
instrumentality or other agency now pending, or, to the lmowledge of Borrower, threatened against or
affecting Borrower, or any prop~rties or rights of Borrower, which, if adversely determined, would
materially impair the right of Borrower to carry on the Business substantially as now conducted or
would materially adversely affect the financial condition of Borrower.

(h) No event bas occ1ured and is continuing or would result from the extension of any part of the
Credit which constitutes an Event of Default as described in Paragraph 5, or which, on the lapse of time
or notice or both, would become such Event of Default.
(i) Borrower shall not issue, purchase or retire any of its shares or interests, reorganize, merge or
be the subject of a change of control, or otherwise alter or amend its capital,managementor Business
structure. In the event that Borrower receives or makes a proposal to engage in any of the transactions
described in this sub-paragraph, Borrower shall in1lllediately infonn District thereof in writing.

G) In the ev~nt that Borrower receives an offer to purchase its assets, or to merge or otherwise
reorganize with another party, District shall have a right of :first refusal to engage in the proposed
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transaction before consideration is given to accepting tl1e offer received. Similarly, ifBoffower wishes
to initiate a transaction involving a sale, merger or other reorganization, District shall have the right of
first refosal to consider the transaction before deciding whether it will consent to Borrower initiating
such discussions with others, which consent may be withheld in the District's sole discretion.

5.

Events of Default and Acceleration.
On the occurrence of any of the following events or circumstances, District at its election may
terminate any or all commitments and other obligations of District to Boffower and declare all amounts
outstanding in respect of the Credit to be inlmediately due and payable without demand or notice to
Boffower:
(a) Any failure on the part of Borrower to pay any amounts owing in respect of the Credit when
due, or any breach or default by Borrower of or under any term, condition, provision, wmanty; or
representation made herein or in any of the Related Documents; or
(b) If Boffower becomes insolvent, is generruly not paying its debts as such debts become due,
suffers a material adverse change of financial condition, or defaults with respect to any order, judgment,
injunction, decree, writ or demand of any court or other public authority; or
(c) If District in good faith believes that the prospect ofpayment or performance in respect of the
Credit or the Related Documents is impaired.
All amounts outstanding in respect of the Credit shall be in default, and immediately due and
payable in foll, and all commitments and other obligations of District to Borrower shall be terminated,
without declaration, demand or notice to Borrower if Borrower:
(a) Makes an assignment for tl1e benefit of creditors; or
(b) Is the subject df any voluntary or involuntary case commenced under the federal Banlcruptcy
laws, as now constituted or hereafter amended, or any other proceeding under other applicable laws
regarding banlcruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, adjustment of debt or other forms of relief for debtors
in any jurisdiction; or
(c) Consents to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or sinillar official for
substantially all of its property or permits a decree ordering such appointment to remain in effect and
unstayed for 60 days; or
(d) Is the subject of any dissolution or liquidation proceeding; or
(e) Has issued against it or its property any writ of attachment, execution, or other legal process
involving an amount or risk deemed material by District; or

(f) Has filed or recorded against it or its property any notice of levy, notice to withhold, or other
claim for taxes other than real property taxes not yet delinquent involving an amount deemed material
by District.
The events described in this paragraphs shall be defaults notwithstanding the terms of any of the
Related Documents.
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6.

Collection Costs.
IfDisbict incurs any legal fees or other expense in protecting or enforcing its rights hereunder or
under any of the Related Documents, in addition to any other sum which Borrower may be required to
pay, Bon-ower shall pay to Disbict the amount of such legal fees or other expense.

7.

l\1isceUaneous.
This Agreement benefits Disbict's successors and assigns and binds Borrower's heirs, legatees,
personal representatives, and successors. Borrower may not delegate or assign any ofits obligations
hereunder and may not assert against any assignee of Disbict any claim or defense it may have against
Disbict. The Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. Titles preceding any
paragraph of the Agreement are for convenience only and are not a part of the Agreement. The
Agreement shall continue as long as any amounts owing in respect of the Credit remain unpaid. No
consent or waiver under, or modification of, this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing. No
waiver of any breach or default shall be deemed a waiver of any breach or default thereafter occurring.
Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, all accounting terms shall be construed in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied.

e,--

In WTINESS WHEREOF, Borrower has executed thisAgreernent on this_'-...\ day of February, 2016.
BORROWER

DISTIUCT
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STRAIGHT NOTE

$400,000.00

Sebastopol, California

For value received,Sonoma West Medical Center, Inc., a California corporationpromises
to pay to Palm Drive Health Care District, or order, at its business office located at 612 Petaluma
Ave, S~topol, California, the sum of four hundred thousand dollars ($400,000.00) on
.
~
'2016, with interest at the rate of 4% per annum from date written belowuntil
paid. All interest and principal shall be paid upon maturity in lawful money of the United States
of America. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, as defined in the Business Loan
Agreement signed contemporaneously herewith, the entire amount owed hereunder shall become
immediately due and payable, and the interest rate op. the unpaid balance shall increase to the
o;?
lesser of 10% or the maximum legal rate. If payment is not made at ma~~-~}:111~ersigned
promises to pay all costs of collection and reasonable attorneys 1 fees. o/""'fV.M.'-w'1J .MY qt!~' ,..-

/!::.

Sonoma West Medical Center, Inc.,
a California corporation
6800 Palm Ave., Suite K
Sebastopol, CA 95472

By~
DS·th,CEO

r.

,~ ,7/./lfl 'fE.,D
\

7S

/JA ,,M iG~'.rrJ ~y

'

'1:!-1- 6.1-1 (.
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!PALM DRIVE HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
SONOMA WEST MEDICAL CENTER
AMENDMENT OF MANAGEMENT
AND STAFFING SERVICES AGREEMENT
This Amendment to the Management and Staffing Services Agreement ( 11Agreement11)
is made and entered into and effective as of the 22nd day of May, 2015, by and between
Sonoma: WestMedical Center, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
("SWMC11 ), and Palm Drive Healthcare Dismct, a California local health care district (the
"District"), with reference to the following facts:
RECITALS
A. The District and SWMC entered into the Agreement as ofMarch 18, 2015, pursuant to
which S\VMC provides management and staffing services in connection with the
reopening and operations ofthe District's Hospi1;a]..

(

B. The District and SWMC wish to amend the Agreement to reflect that the parties do not
anticipate that a future change in operator or owner of the Hospital would occur
without applicable State licensing processes if SWMC becomes the li.censed operator
ofthe Hospital.
C. Except as set forth in this Amendment, no other modifications are being made to the
Agreement, and the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree to amend the Agreement as set forth below.
Section 8.3 presently reads, "Tennination Upon Transfer ofLicense, In the event
the Hospital License is transferred to SWMC, this Agreement shall terminate on the date on
which SWMC becomes the licensed operator ofthe Hospital. " This provision is hereby
deleted and replaced with new Section 8.3, as foilows:
Section 8.3. Termination Upon Change of Operator. In the event SWMC becomes
the licensed operator ofthe Hospital, this Agreement shall terminate.

1

(

IN WTI:'NESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized officers of the parties have executed this
Amendment as ofthe date first written above.

PALM DRIVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Its:

Chief Executive Officer

President, Board of Directors
SONOMA wEST MEDICAL CENTER

By:
Its:

Chief Executive Officer

By:
Its:

c
2

ATTACHMENT 9
(

JVJ!ANAGEMENT AND STAJF'IFING
SERVICES AGRE:ElVIENT
This Management Services Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into as of
the 18thday of March, 2015, by and between Sonoma West Medical Center, a California
nonprofit public benefit corporation C'SWMC"), and Palm Drive Healthcare District, a
California local health care district (the "District"), with reference to the follo11'1ing facts:
RECITALS
A. The District o-wns that certain licensed thi1iy-:seven (3 7) bed acute care hospital
commonly known as Palm Drive Hospital (the "Hospital") located at 501 Petaluma
A venue, Sebastopol, California.
B. The District ceased operations at the Hospital on April 27, 2014.
C. SWMC is a California nonprofit corporation that has employed or contracted with
individuals who have the experience and training necessaTy to recommence operations
at the Hospital.
D. The Pruiies intend that the Hospital be reopened to bring quality health care services
to the community served by the District.
E. Throughout the provisions ofthis Agreement the terms "I-Iospital" and "District" are
used. Both terms are used to reference one entity. The tenn "Hospital" is used in
relation to the facilities, and services provided at the facilities, owned and operated ·
by the District, while the term "District" is m:ed to refer specifically to the legal
entity, a local gqvemmental agency, that owns the Hospital.
AGREEMENTS
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, covenants, conditions and
promises herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of
which is hereby acknowledged, the paiiies hereto agree as follows:
ARTICLE

I

HOSPITAL GOVERl'UNG BOARD
1.1 Appointment. A subcornmittee of the Board of Directors of the District (the "District
Boai·d") shall be established with overall administrative and professional responsibility for the
Hospital, to serve &s the governing body of the Hospital, as that term is used in Sec. 70000 et
seq. of Title 22 of the California Code ofRegulatiorn (respecting licensure ru1d ~regulation of
acute cai·e hospitals). Such subcommittee is referred to herein as the "Hospital Governing
Board."
1.2 Composition. The Hospital Governing Boai-d shall be composed of thirieen (13)
members appointed in accordance with the bylaws ofthe District and with the following:
a) Five (5) District representatives, who shall be the current members of the

District Board serving ex officio;
b) Five (5) members who reside within the geographic boundaries of the
District nominated by SWMC and approved by a majority of the remaining
members of the Hospital Governing Board, each of whom shall serve two
year tenns; and
c) One (1) member who resides within the geographic boundaries of the
District and is elected by a majority of the ten members described in (a) and
(b) above. This "at large" member shall serve two year te1TI1s:; and
d) Two (2) representatives of the medical staff of the hospital nominated by
the Medical Executive Committee and approved by a majority of the
Governing Body other than the medical staff representatives. The medical
staff representatives shall serve one year terms.
1.3 Authority Related to Hospital Operations. Notwithstanding the authority delegated to
SWMC under Article 2 hereof, the Hospital Governing Board shall retain operational control of
the Hospital tlu-ough exercise of all power and responsibilities required to be reserved to
the board of directors of a licensed general acute care hospital by the State of California and
the JCAHO, or other recognized accreditation agency, which cam1ot, under law, JCAHO
standards, or the standards of such other recognized accreditation agency, be properly delegated.
The Hospital Governing Board specifically has the authority to approve the Hospital's medical
staff bylaws, rules and regulations and fair hearing plan as required under the District Bylaws,
and to make all decisions related to appointment or reappointment to medical staff membership
or the granting of cJinical privileges, or related to the denial, revocation, suspension or other
adverse decision with respect to such membership or clinical privileges, as set forth in the
District Bylaws and the medical staff bylaws of the Hospital. The Hospital Governing Board
shall be ultimately responsible for the quality of medical care in the Hospital, as set f01th in the
District Bylaws and the medical staff bylaws of the Hospital.
1.4 Policies and Procedures. The Hospital Governing Board shall have the power
and authority to establish or amend the policies and procedures referenced in Section 2.1
hereof, in accordance with the District Bylaws and subject to the limitations set fmth in
Section 1.6 hereof.
1.5 Power to Commit the Hospital and District. To the extent permitted by applicable
law, the Hospital Governing Board from time to time shall establish policies that specify
lin1itations on t11e authority of tl1e Chref Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, or any other
officer to conunit the Hospital to the expenditure of sums in excess of a dollar amount
established by the Hospital Governing Board, subject to any approval required to be made by the
District Board pursuant to Section 1.6 hereof. In addition to having the final authority and
responsibility for the conduct of the Hospital as specified in §§70000 et seq. of Title 22 of the
California Code of Regulations, the Hospital Governing Board shall have the following specific
authority:
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a)

Development of capital and operating budgets for the Hospital;

b) Approval of appointment of the I-fospital CEO, the Chief Financial
Officer of the Hospital, and the Chief Nursing Officer, subject to the approval of the Disb:ict
Board as required by the Health Care District Law;
c)
Amendment of the Hospital 1s quality improvement plan and oversight of
the Hospital s quality improvement committee;
1

d)
Agreement; and

Establishment of annual goals and objectives for implementing this

Disposal of Hospital assets or the inctmence of debt outside the
e)
of business.
wers Delineated in the District B laws. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Distric
d reserves to itself the power and authority delineated in the District Bylaws and
such other powers as may be specified by the Health Care District Law as being reserved to the
board of a California local health care district. Further, the District shall retain ultimate
professional and administrative responsibility for the services rendered during the course of this
Agreement, as required Wlder Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations. In furtherance
of such reserved power and authority, the following actions shall not be tal<:en unless approved
by the District Board:
A change in the Hospital's mission statement;
A change in the Hospital's charity care policy;
A change in the Hospital's name (it is the intent of the District to chai1ge the
facility's "d.b.a." name to "Sonoma West Medical Center";
d)
/e)

The establishment of any affiliates of the Hospital or the District;
The incurrence of any new debt or encumbrance by th~ Hospital or the

District in fill amount in excess of $100,000;
f)

The adoption and amendment of the Hospital's institutional master plan;

g)

The disposal or transfer of District Assets with a value in excess of $50,000;

h)

The closure of the Hospital;

i)

Approval of any amendment of this Agreement;

/j)

The appointment and removal of the Hospital CEO; and

k)
A change in the use of District tax revenues or alteration of the budget
established at the commencement of this Agreement pe1iaining to the District Board's

3

administrative affairs, aml subject to Section 5.4.

ARTICLE

II

RESPONSIBILITIES OF SWMC
2.1 A1;rnointment as Manager. The District hereby appoints SWMC and delegates to
SWMC the responsibility and commensurate authority to provide the services necessary and
appropriate to manage all aspects of the Hospital's operations ("Services") in accordance with
tem1s and conditions of this Agreement and with the strategic plans, budgets and policies and
procedures that the Hospital Governing Board (a) determines are appropriate for the
governance of Hospital and its provision of care to the communities it serves and (b)
adopts from time to time. The District shall, during the tenn of this Agreement, give
SWMC full access to the Hospital, its records, of-:fices and facilities, as reasonably required for
SWMC to can-y out its duties hereunder.

2.2 Description of Specific Services to be Provided. Without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, during the term of this Agreement, induding any extensions and renewals
hereof, S\VMC shall provide the services described in this Section 2.2 as required for the
operation of the Hospital, and such other services as SWMC may determine would
result in reduced costs and/or improved organizational effectiveness.
a)
Implementation of Business Plan. Implementation of the Sonoma
West Medical Center Business Plan, dated as of March 5, 2015 and, consistent
therewith, items b) to o) below.
b)
Budgets. SWMC shall develop an annual capital and operating
budget for the Hospital prior to the commencement of SWMC's fiscal yeai-, which budgets shall
be subject to the approvals specified in Aiiicle 1 hereof, including budgeting adjustments in the
allocation of District tax revenues not reserved for District Board administrative needs and set
forth in the allocation for same established at the commencement of this Agreement.
c)
Physician S1rntegy. SWMC shall develop and inlplement a physician
integration strategy for the Hospital and shall be responsible for maintaining good physician
relations with the Hospital's Medical staff.
d)
Information Teclmology. SWMC shall implement information teclmology
softwarn and services to be own~d or licensed and operated by the Hospital to assure the
Hospital's infom1ation systems suppo1iing patient care, medical management, finance, and
operations are fonctioning properly as required for ef-:ficient management of the Hospital. Except
as provided in Section 2.2 (e) below with regard to the HarmoniMD EHR Platform, upon the
expiration or te1mination of this Agreement, for the benefit of continued Hospital operations,
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SWMC shall assme that District shall be entitled to continued use of all licenses and other
entitlements commensmate with ownership and operation of the information tedmology systems
for a period of at least 1wo years beyond temunation or the expiration of this Agreement.
SWMC shall assure that all maintenance and update services orclinmily available from
Infomrntion Technology vendors will continue to be available to the Dist1ict and the Hospital
after expiration and tennination of this Agreement.
e)
HarmomM:ffEHR Platfo1m. The parties aclrnowledge that the llmn10111MD
platfom1 is a cloud based software system that is hosted by EHRI Inc. and as such no mvnership
rights to the software or software license are granted to SWMC or the District. The parties
fmiher aclmowledge that the use of the software is being donated to SWMC by EHRl Inc. for
use on behalf of the Hospital for a period of five (5) years m1cl that this donation includes all
hostingi implementation, product suppmi, upgrades, and technical service as spelled out in the
attached Software as Service agreement between EBRI Inc. and SWMC. As indicated the rights
to the use of the Ham1oniMD pla1fonn will transfer to the successors or heirs of the hospital
operations. If this Agreement is tenninated prior to the expiration of the five (5) year donation
period, SWMC will assme that the donated usage will continue for a period of two (2) years
following tennination, but not exceeding the original five year period of donated utilization of
the HarmoniMD platfo1m. In the event of such termination, SWMC shall assign its interests in
the Software as Service agreement to the Hospital.
f)
Construction and Property Management. SWMC shall provide
construction management and prope1iy management services to the Hospital, consistent
with the Hospital's needs.
g)

Financial Services.

1.
SWMC shall prepare or cause to be prepared monthly financial
statements for the Hospital, including balance sheet, income statements and
statements of changes in net assets, cash flow projections and an accounting of
SWMC's Management Costs. Monthly financial statements for the prior period
shall be presented to the Hospital Governing Board at its regularly scheduled meetings
and shall be made available to the District upon request.

2. ·
SWMC shall provide direction and oversight for all financial,
accounting and bookkeeping functions appropriate to the operations of general acute
care hospitals, including but not limited to maintenm1ce, custody and supervision of
business records, papers, documents, ledgers, journals and reports relating to the
business operations of the Hospital, the establishment, administration and
implementation of accounting procedures, controls, fonns and systems, the preparation
of financial reporis, the plarn1ing of the business operations of the Hospital, the
payment of accounts payable and collection of accounts receivable, and the
administration of the Hospital payroll. All financial rep01is to the Governing Body
shall include specific references to the Hospitals accounts payable status and any
changes in the coverage or scope of the Hospital's insurance coverage. In the event
accotmts payable status exceeds 60 clays in payments, SWMC shall prov1de a plm1 for
.approval by the Governing Body for bringing accounts payable sta111s under 60 days .
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3.
SWJVIC shall arrange and provide support for m1 annual audit of
the Ho~;pita1 s financial statements through auditors selected by the Hospital
Governing Board. The annual audited financial statements shall be presented to the
Districi: Board for review and approval.
1

4.
SVf.l\1C shall prepase or cause to be prepared on behalf of the
Hospital all federal and California information and other retmns m1d other forms and
-------~d-ocmn(:;rrttjeu-ltee-ti-vel-y,-11-R:ei:l:lnts171ffJ.tti:recl-te-be-Ji-lecl-vvi+h-the-ll:lternn-l-Revenu~-------

Service or the California Franchise Tax Bom·d. Any taxes owed shall be a Hospital
Expense, as that tem1 is used in Section 5.3 of tills Agreement.
h)
Managed Care Contracting. The Hospital shall participate fully in
payor contract;, including marketing, contract review and analysis, and negotiation with third
paiiy payors.
i)
Materials Management. Consistent with the Hospital's operating needs,
SWMC will manage Hospital materials and supplies and shall seek to paiiicipate in any
beneficial group pmchasing organizations in which the Hospital is eligible to take pmi.
j)
Communications. SWMC shall provide mai·keting and public relations
services to the Hospital. SWMC shall also assist the Hospital with internal communication
involving staff m1d Medical staff.

k)

Human Resources.

Non-Physician Personnel. SWMC shall provide, on behalf of
Hospital, such non-physician personnel and staffing as may be reasonably necessmy to
enable operation of the Hospital and its facilities "Suppmi Personnel." Such Support
Persomtel may be SWMC employees or independent contractors.
1)

2)
Recruiting. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement,
SWMC shall recruit, employ or otherwise retain, maimge and, with respect to non
medical services, supervise the Suppmi Persmmel as necessmy for the proper ai1d
efficient operation of the Hospital ai1d its facilities.
3)
Employee Policies and Procedures. SWMC's general employee
practices and procedures, as well as the policies and procedures of the hospital that are
not inconsistent therewith, shall be applicable to Suppmi Persom1el.
4)
Employees ai1d Independent Contractors. All Support Personnel
shall be employees or independent contractors of SWMC. SWMC shall be responsible
for the payment of all SWMC Employee Liabilities. Hospital shall have no liability
whatsoever under this Agreement or otherwise for any SWMC Employee Liabilities.
SWMC shall defend, indemnify and hold hannless the Hospital and District against
any claim, cause of action, loss, cost ai1d expense arising in connection with or
resulting from SWMC Employee Liabilities. At Hospital's request, SWMC shall
provide Hospital with certificates or other evidence satisfact01y to Hospital that
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.SWMC has satisfied its obligations with respect to SWMC Employee Liabilities.
"SWMC Employee Liabilities" shall mean SWJ\1C's responsibility for payment to
Supp01i Persom1el of all compensation, including base salary and benefits, including
health, dental and life insurance. SWMC shall also be solely responsible for all
compensation, federal and state withholding taxes, vacation pay, sick leave, benefits,
social secmity, health insurance, worker's compensation insurm1ce, disability or
Uilemployment insurance, employee benefits of m1y lcind and other applicable taxes and
contributions to government mandated employment related insmm1ce m1d similar
progran1s for or related to Support Persom1el m1d m1y other employee or agent of
SWMC.
5)
Management of Personnel. SWMC shall hire, tenninate and
. talce appropriate disciplinary action against all Suppmi Personnel in compliance with
SWMC's employment policies and in compliance with State & Federal laws. SWMC
will periodically review Supp01i Persmmel performance with the Governing Body to
receive the Governing Body's input as to its satisfaction with Supp01i Personnel
perfonnance, but in all circumstances SWMC shall hire, terminate and take appropriate
disciplinary action against all such Supp01i Persom1el.
6)
Human Resomces Depmiment. SWMC shall manage the
Hospital's human resources department, providing guidance and supervision in the
areas of labor and compliance with federal and California laws affecting personnel.
SWMC shall establish policies regarding staffing levels, work hours and shifts, wages,
salmies and compensation, retention, promotion and demotion, the awarding of
bonuses m1d salm·y adjustments, and other matters affecting the terms and conditions of
the employment of personnel at the Hospital.
1)
Risk Services. SWMC shall mmmge the Hospital's risk services department,
providing direction and supervision over the management of risk and loss prevention at the
Hospital, and the management of claims or potential clain1s. TI1e Hospital shall participate in
programs of insurance or self-insurance as deemed necessary m1d reasonable by SWMC,
including general 81ld professional liability, directors' 81ld officers' liability, prope1iy,
employment practices liability (EPL) and worker's compensation liability, with S\V1VIC as a
named or additional insured.
m) Suppmi for District 02erations. SWMC shall provide administrative
support for the functioning of the District, including clerical and finm1cial services, the cost
of which to SWMC shall be paid from funds generated by District tax revenues
allocated to the budget for District administration. SWMC shall further ensure that
:facilities at the Hospital reasonably required by the District for its meetil1gs and storage of
District property m·e available to the District at all times during the tenn of this Agreement.
n)
SWMC Insurance. SWMC shall comply, at its expense, with applicable
workers' compensation laws with respect to its own employees through maintenance of an
insured pro gram.
o)
Maintenance of Property. SWMC shall mmmge m1d maintain the Hospital
m1d the Hospital Facilities, in good condition. Where approval of the District Board is
7

necessaTy pmsuant to Section 1.6(e), SWMC shall advise the District Board if and when
equipment, f-Lmiishing and fixtures require replacement or upgrading in the ordinaxy course of
the Hospital's business. For the purposes of this Section, Hospital Facilities shall include all
exterior areas of the Hospital and the parcel on which it is located including, without limitation,
all landscaping and trees, parking meas, appurtenant structmes and the exterior of the Hospital
itself.
ARTICLE
MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
3 .1 Chief Executive Officer. SWMC shall be responsible for employment of the Chief
Executive Officer of the Hospital (the 11 Hospital CEO"). The Hospital CEO shall be responsible
for overall, day-to-day management of the Hospital, and shall develop a management team for
the Hospital. All di.rectors and managers employed by the Hospital shall report, directly or
indirectly, to the Hospital CEO. SWMC shall present a candidatv for the position of Hospital
CEO to the Hospital Governing Board, and appointment of the Hospital CEO shall be subject
to the ·approvals specified in Aliicle I hereof. The Hospital CEO shall be accountable to the
Hospital Governing Board. The Hospital. Governing Board shall paiiicipate in the annual
performance review of the Hospital CEO . Pmsuant to the Health Care District Law, the CEO's
maximum contract.ual term shall be four (4) yeai·s, and may be periodically renewed for
additional four year terms.
3.2 Chief Financial Officer. SWMC shall be responsible for employment of the Chief
Financial Officer of the Hospital (the "Hospital CFO"). The Hospital CFO shall be accountable
to the Hospital CEO and the Hospital Governing Body. The Hospital Governing Body shall
participate in the aimual perforn.1ance review of the Hospital CFO.
3.3 Review of Senior Management. SW1Y1C shall also be responsible for
employment of qualified individuals to serve as Chief Nursing Officer and in other senior
management positions. Where appropriate, individuals may serve in more than one such
role. In conducting annual evaluations of the performance of the Chief Nursing Officer
and other senior management at the Hospital, the Hospital CEO will receive input
from the Hospital Governing Board.
ARTICLE

IV

COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND BOARD POLICY
4.1 Compliance with Legal Reguirements. SWMC shall prepare or cause to be
prepmed all materials and follow all procedures necessary to maintain: (a) ce1ii.:fication of the
Hospital as a provider of services under Titles XVIII (Medicare) and XIX
(Medicaid) of the Social Security Act; (b) State licensure of the Hospital as a general acute
caxe hospital w1der all applicable laws; ( c) all other licenses and pennits required to operate
the Hospital ai1d provide services therein; (d) accreditation of the Hospital by the appropriate
accrediting orgailization; ai1d (e) the Hospital's compliance with the California Local Health
Care District Law, Health & Safety Code§§ 32000 et seq., or any successor law thereto (the
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"Health Cme District Law") and all other laws applicable to the operation of the
Hospital. SWMC shall do nothing to jeopardize the Hospital's Medicare, Medi-Cal and other
third-party reimbmsement anangements. In all respects, SWMC shall comply with all legal
requirements in the perfonnance of its obligations m1der this Agreement.
4.2 Confidentiality of Patient Records. SWMC shall maintain the confidentiality of
all files and records of the Hospital in complifmce with all applicable legal requirements,
disclosing the same only as required or pem1itted by law. The Parties ·will execute
appropriate Business Associate Agreements in compliance with the Health Insmance
Pmiability and Accmmtability Act of 1996 and regulations promulgated therem1der by the
Dep81irnent of Health and Hmnan Services (collectively, "HIPAA").
ARTICLE

V

COMPENSATION FOR MANAGEMENT SERVICES
5 .1 Management Fee. In consideration of the management services provided by SWMC,
SWMC shall receive pass through reimbmsement from Hospital Revenue of all of its direct and
reasonable costs necessary to the provision of its management services to the Hospital lmder this
Agreement (its "Management Costs").
5.2 Hospital Revenues. "Hospital Revenue" shall mean and include: (a) all gross
revenue from the provision of any and all hospital services provided on or after the
Commencement and during the tem1 the anangement, determined on an accrual basis in
accordance with GAAP consistently applied; (b) 311y and all disproportionate share payments or
credits from Medicarn or Medicaid; (c) any 311d all quality assmance and supplemental Medi
Cal payments made by the California Depmtment of Health Cme Services to District or SWMC
after th~ Commencement Date pmsuant to Section 14167 et seq. or Section 14169 et seq. of the
California Welf31·e and Institutions Code, including supplemental payments or funds available
to State "non-designated public hospitals;" (d) any 811d all HITECH or mefillingful use
payments; (e) any and all distressed hospital fund payments; (f) any AB 915 Outpatient
Supplemental Funds; (g) any 811d all rent payments from any use of space in or at the Hospital;
and (h) any all revenue of any other type or any other source related to the operation of the
Hospital on and after the Commencement Date, and (i) any District tax revenues allocated to
support general Hospital operations pursuant to Section 5.4 below.
5.3. Hospital Expenses. Pmsuant to its management responsibilities SWMC will assure
that all Hospital Expenses incw.Ted in connection with the operation of the Hospital on or after
the Co~1m.encement Date and during the tenn of the Agreement am paid, including without
limitation its Management Costs, and any expenditures approved by the District Board pursu311t
to Section 1.6(e) (collectively, the "Hospital Expenses") from Hospital Revenue to the extent it
is available to cover Hospital Expenses, and if not available, from funds committed pmsu311t to
Section 5.4 below. Hospital Expenses shall not include any cost or expenses resulting from or
:relating to any of the following: (a) any Retained Liabilities as defined herein; (b) any
perfonnance or non-perfo1111811ce by the District of any of its obligations; and (c) any fee,
charge, assessment or Tax due or payable as a condition to or otherwise in co1111ection with
District operations other thfil1 the operations of the Hospital.
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5.4. District Tax Revenue. For the initial tenn of this agreement the DisLTict will
augment Hospital Revenue with One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per year from ammal tax
revenues, \Vhich will be paid in tranches at the time parcel taxes are received by the district in
April, July m1d December of each year for five yems and subject to the m11ount of such funds
availabie. It is tmderstood by the pmiies that these funds may be spent to repa'i- and maintain the
hospital property, purchase and repair medical equipment, m1d subsidize chmily care and
progran1s that benefit the community.
5.5. S\lf.MC Funding of Losses. Notwithstm1ding 5.4 above, the District shall not be
responsible for, m1d shall not be required to contribute fonds to make up for, any shortfall in
Hospital Expenses if Hospital Revenue is inadequate to pay Hospital Expenses, including
SWMC Management Costs. SWMC shall beaT all obligations and risks ofloss, and shall cover
and pay for, in a timely mmmer consistent with industry standm·ds for accounts payable,
payables al1Ci all actual losses, incuned as a result of the operation of the Hospital on and after
the Commencement Date.
5.6. No Assw.nption of Liabilities. Nothing in this mTangement is intended or shall be
construed to constitute SWMC' s assumption of any liabilities of District a) existing prior to the
Commencement Date including, without limitation, any clain1s asserted in Di~:trict' s bankruptcy
proceedings and/or any secured debt of District, b) related to the operation of1l1e Hospital prior
to the Commencement Date, c) related to District's operations which do not mise out of the
operation of the Hospital, and d) that are not specificq.lly identified in this Agreement as being
assumed by S\VMC (collectively, the "Retained Liabilities").
ARTICLE

VI

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE DISTRICT

The truth, accuracy and completeness of the District's representations,
warranties and covenants contained in this Agreement shall be conditions precedent to the
obligations of SWMC to enter into and perform its obligations under this
Agreenient. As an inducement to SWMC to enter into this Agreement and to consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, the District hereby represents, vvarrants and
covenants to SVlMC as to the follo\ving matters, and, except as otherwise provided herein,
shall be deemed to malce all of the following representations, waiTanties ai1d covenants again as
of the Cmmnencement Date:
6. l Orgai1ization and Good Standing. The District is a local health care district of the
State of California duly orgmlized and existing under the Health Care District Law. The DisiTict
has the full power and authority to canyon its businesses as they are now being conducted,
and to enter into and perform its obligations under this Agreement.

6.2 The District's Authority. The District has the full right, power, legal capacity m1d
authority to execute, deliver and cmTy out the terms of tllis Agreement and all do cuments and
agreements necessary to give effect to the provisions of this Agreement and to
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consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. The Hospital Governing Board, when
appointed, shall be a duly constituted conu11ittee of the District Bomd, ·with full power ru1d
authority to cany out the duties of the District Bomd delegated to it. All actions required
to be taken by the District to authorize the execution, delivery and perforn1ru1ce of this
Agreement, all documents executed by the District necessary to give effect to this Agreement,
ru1d all trnnsactions contemplat,~d hereby have been duly ru1d properly taken or obtained or will
be duly and properly taken or obtained by the District prior to the Commencement Date.
6.3 Validity and No Breach. This Agreement is, and all other agreements
required to be delivered or performed in connection herewith will be, the lawful, valid and
legally binding obligations of the District, enforceable in accordance with their te1ms, subject
to bru1krnptcy, insolvency, moratorimn or similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors'
rights generally or the implementation of ru1y of the ten11S of this Agreement.

ARTICLE

VII

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SWMC
The truth, accuracy and completeness of SWMC's representations, wruTanties and
covenants contained in this Agreement shall be conditions precedent to the obligations of the
District to enter i:nto and perform its obligations under this Agreement. As an inducement to
the Di~;trict to enter into this Agreement and to consununate the trru1sactions contemplated by
this Agreement, SWMC hereby represents, warrants and covenants to the District as to the
followLng matters, and, except as otherwise provided herein, shall be deemed to malce all of the
following representations, wan:ru1ties ru1d covenants again as of the Commencement Date:
7.1 Organization and Good Standing. SVv'MC is a nonprofit public benefit
corporation, duly organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of
California, and has applied for exemption from taxation as an organization described in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of the United States of America. SWMC has
the full power and authority to carry on its businesses as they are now being conducted, and to
enter into and perfonn its obligations under this Agreement.
7.2 SWMC's Authority. SWMC has the full right, power, legal capacity and authority
to exeeute, deliver and carry out the terms of this Agreement and all documents
and agreements necessary to give effect to the provisions of this Agreement ru1d to
consummate the 1rnnsactions contemplated hereby. All actions required to be talcen by SWMC
to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, all documents
executed by SWMC necessru-y to give effect to this Agreement, and all transactions
contemplated hereby have been duly and properly taken or obtained or will be duly ru1d properly
taken or obtained by SWMC prior to the Commencement Date.
7.3 Validity and No Breach. This Agreement is, and all other agreements
requi:recl to be delivered or performed in com1ection herewith will be, the lmmul, valid ru1d
legally binding obligations of SWMC, enforceable in accordru1ce with their terms, subject to
banlrniptcy, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditors'
11

iights generally or the implementation of any terms of this Agreement.
ARTICLE VIII

TERlvI AND TERMINATION

8. 1 Term. The tenn of this Agreement (the "Term") shall commence on March 18, 2015
(the "C9n11nencement Date," and continue for a period of five (5) years, unless sooner
te1minated as provided herein. So long as SW1VIC is not in default of its obligations under this
Agreement, SWMC shall have the right to extend the Te1m of this Agreement for two (2)
additional tem1s of five (5) years each (each, a "Renewal Tenn") by providing District with at
least one hundred eighty (180) days prior written notice prior to the expiration of the Initial
Tenn or Renewal Tenn then in effect of SWMC's intent to exercise such option. Any such
renewal will be subject to District approval, such approval not to be mrreasonably withheld.
8.2 Termination for Cause. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 12.15 of this
Agreement, either paiiy may terminate this Agreement at any time for "cause," as defined in
this Section 8.2, upon delivery of written notice as hereinafter provided.
-8.2. l Termination bv District. District shall have "cause" to teiminate:
a)
If SWMC shall apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee
or liquidator of SWMC or of all or a substantial part of its assets, file a voluntaiy petition for
bankruptcy or admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they come due, make a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors, file a petition or an answer seeking reorganization or
arrangement with creditors or to take advantage of any insolvency law, or if a creditor of SWMC
files an involuntary petition under any state or federal reorganization, insolvency, arrangement,
bankruptcy or other debtor relief provision, and such petition is not dismissed within sixty (60)
days; or
b) If SVl'MC shall default in the performance of any material covenant,
agreement, tem1 or provision of this Agreement, including without limitation Section 5.5 on the
funding of loses, and such default shall continue for a period of sixty (60) days after 'Written
notice to SWlvIC from District stating the specific default; or

If SWMC shall intentionally engage in any fraudulent practices or repeated
c)
negligence, omissions or intentional acts that materially affect the business or reputation of the
Hospital, including but not limited to conduct that evidences a willful disregard for patients
treated at the Hospital; or
If SWMC fails to maintain the certifications, accreditations, and licenses for
d)
the Hospital as delineated in Section 4.1.
8.2.2 Tem1ination by SWMC. SWMC shall have "cause" to tern1inate this Agreement:
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a)
If District shall default in the perfonnance of any material covenant,
agreement, term or provision and such default shall continue for a period of sixty (60) days after
written notice to District from SWMC stating the specific default; or
If Hospital or any portion thereof shall be damaged or destroyed, or if any
b)
material assets of the Hospital shall be rendered incapable of normal operation, by fire or other
casualty and if Hospital fails to commence repairing, restoring, rebuilding or replacing any such
damage or destruct1011 willim ninety (90) days after sucIJ:1'ireOr other casualty, or fails to
complete such work within a reasonable period of tin1e; or
c)
If District shall apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee
or liquidator of District or of all or a substantial paii of its assets, file a new voluntary petition in
baiikrnptcy or admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they come due, make a general
assignment for the benefit of creditors, file a petition or an ai1swer seeking reorganization or
anangement with creditors or to take advai1tage of any insolvency law, or if a creditor of District
files ai1.involu11tai·y petition under any state or federal reorganization, insolvency, aiTangement,
banlcru.ptcy or other debtor relief provision, and such petition fa not dismissed witb.ii.1 sixty (60)
days it being understood ai1cl agreed that District's cunent bai1kruptcy proceedings shall not
constitute cause under this Section 8.2.2; or
d)
If District shall fail to make any payments or keep any material covenants
owing to SWMC within ten (10) calendar days of the date on vvhich payment is due provided,
however, that the failure to make a payment due to a subordination agreement vlith a third party
shall not give rise to a right to te1minate the Agreement; or
e)
If District shall fail to make any payments owing to any third party that
would cause District to lose possession of the Hospital's buildirrg, equipment or prope1iy.
8.3 Te1mination Upon Transfer of License. In the event the Hospital License is
transferred to SWMC, this Agreement shall te1minate on the date on which SWMC becomes the
licensed operator of the Hospital.
8.4 Obligations Upon Tennination of Agreement. In the event of ai1y te1mination,
SWMC shall:
a)
Cooperate and assist in the'. orderly ai1d efficient transfer of all phases of the
administration of the Hospital to any new administrator or mairn.gement fo:m; provided, however,
that S\\'.MC shall be entitled to reasonable and customaiy fees for SWMC's transition services;
and
Suuender to District all documents ai1d records in SWJ\1C's possession
b)
relating to the operation of the Hospital.
c)
Cooperate in the effective and efficient transition of filly employees that vvill
become employees of the District to suppo1i continued Hospital operations.
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d) Assure that all Hospital and District assets remain in the possession of the
District and that all donated assets utilized by the I-Iospital dming the tenn of this agreement
remain in the possession and Ol".'nership of the District.
e)

To the extent applicable, fulfill its obligation under Section 2.2(e) to assign

to the Hospital SWI\![C's interest in the Software as Service agreement.
8. 5 Effect of Illegality. In the event that any federal, state or local law or regulation
ctmently existing or hereinafter enacted, or any final and nonappealable construction or
interpretation of such law or regulation by a court of competent jurisdiction, licensing
or regulatory body, governmental agency, deprn.iment, political subdivision, commission,
tribunal or other instrumentality of any government, whether federal, state or local, or
enforcement of such laws or regulations hereafter occurs, which makes substantial
performance oftbis Agreement illegal, this Agreement shall be tenninated on the effective date
on which the new law, regulation or constrnction, interpretation or enforcement of an
existing law or regulation niakes illegal the substantial performance of this Agreement;,
provided, however, that the prn.iies shall negotiate in good faith, exercising commercially
reasonable best effmis, to enter into a written modification of this Agreement to make
substantial performance of this Agreement legal in view of such event.
ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION
9.1. Indemnification of SWMC. To the extent not covered by insur_ance as provided
above, District shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless SWMC and SWMC's officers, agents,
subcontractors and employees from and against liability for any and all costs (including corni
costs), expenses, fees (including reasonable attorneys' fees) and payments by, and losses and
damages that arise out of, or me in any way connected with, the negligent ot intentional acts or
omissions of District, its di.rectors, employees, members, officers or agents (excepting SWMC),
or any Retained Liabilities, unless such act or omission is caused by the negligence or willful
misconduct of SWMC or one of its managers, members, officers, employees, subcontractors or
agents.
9.2. Indenmification of District. To the extent not covered by insurance, SVv':MC shall
defend, indemnify and hold harmless District, its managers, members, officers, agents, and
employees from and against liability for any an.cl all costs (including court costs), expenses, fees
(including reasonable attorneys' fees) and payments by, and losses rn.1d damages that arise out of,
or aTe in any way connected with, the negligent or intentional acts of SWMC or its officers,
agents, employees or subcontractors in the performance of SWMC's duties under this Agreement
unless such act or omission is caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the District or
its employees, managers, members, officers or agents.
9.3 Limitation on Applicability of This Aiiicle. The provisions of the preceding sections
of this Aliicle IX are intended to apply only to claims and liabilities that are not covered by or
exceed the limits of insurance coverage and for which liability has not been otherwise allocated
by agreement of the parties. Nothing contained in this Article IX is intended or should be
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construed to create any liability to or rights of recovery or subrogation on the part of any
insurance canier or cmy other third party against either of the parties or to affect the allocation
of responsibility among insurance carriers or other persons who may have responsibility :for
satisfaction of all or any part of any claim made against either pmiy.

RECORDS

10.1 District Ownership of Hospital Records. At all times during and after the tern1 of
this Agreement, all patient medical records, fimmcial, corporate and persom1el records and
information relating to the business and activities of the Hospital shall be and remain the sole
property of the District. Notvvithstanding the foregoing, at all times during the term of this
Agreement, SWMC shall have available to it all such records required for SWMC to provide
services and othenvise cany out its responsibilities hereunder.

10.2 Confidentiality of Records. SWMC and the District shall adopt
procedures to assure the confidentiality of SWMC's business records and the records relating to
the operations of the Hospital, including, but not linlited to, all statistical, financial and
personnel data related to the operations of the Hospital, which information is not otherwise
available to third patties publicly or by law, and each party hereto shall comply with all
applicable federal and state statutes and regulations relating to such records. Patient medical
records· and other privileged patient information shall not be disclosed or utilized by the parties
or their agents or employees except as required or permitted by applicable laws and regulations.
ARTICLE

XI

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT
The obligation of the parties to commence the perfonnance contemplated by this Agreement
shall be subject to the satisfaction of each of the follo•-ving conditions (which may be waived
specifically in writing by the party for whose benefit said condition is stated, in whole or in
part) on or after the Commencement Date:
11.1 Appointment of Hospital Governing Bomd. The District shall have appointed
the initial ten (10) members (District I SW1v1C nominated) to the Hospital Governing Bomd
and taken all necessai·y fonnal action to delegate to the Hospital Governing Board all of the
District's power and authority necessaxy for the performance of this Agreement as
contemplated and to the extent authorized by the Health Care District Law m1d any other
applicable law. The Bylaws of the Hospital Governing Board shall provide that, so long as
this Agreement remains in effect, the Bylaws may be amended only upon receipt of the
prior written consent of S\VMC.
11.2 District Board Bylaws. The District sliall have adopted Arn.ended and
Restated District Board Bylaws that contain all provisions needed to reflect the District's
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obligations tmder this Agreement, including but not liniited to provision for the
establishment of the Hospital Governing Board as provided in Section 11.1. Said Amended
and Restated Bylaws shall provide that, so long as this Agreement remains il1 effect, no
amendments to the Amended and Restated Bylaws that would remove, reduce or impair
participation by the SWMC-norninated members of the Healthcare Governing Body
without the prior written conse11t of SVilMC.
11. 3 Corporate and District Ap_12rovals. The respective Boards of the parties shall
have approved the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, which approval may be
withheld in the sole discretion of such Boards.

11.4 Banlcruptcy Court. The U.S. Banlauptcy Court for the Northern District of
California, Santa Rosa Division, in Case. No. 14-10510, shall have been inf01med of the
District's intent to enter into this Agreement.

ARTICLE

XII

MISCELLANEOUS
12.1 Notices. All notices required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing
and delivered by hand or sent by registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or
sent by express courier or telecopier and confirmed by mail as aforesaid. The date of receipt
shall be deemed to be the date on which such notice has been received by the party to whom it
is addressed. Notice shall be delivered or mailed to a party to the attention of the persons
named below and at the following addresses or to such other persons or at such other places as
a party shall designate in writing.

56r',.\oMA- LJJ6f>\(rV\,£OtCPL Cct~teR...- ·\NC.
1
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To SWMC:

Palm Drive Health Care District
501 Petaluma Ave.
Sebastopol, California 95472
Phone:
Fax:
Attention: President, Board of
Directors

To the District:
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12.2 Inde12endent Contractors. SWMC's appointment and actions hereunder are in
the status of an independent contractor. SWMC and the District aclmowledge and agree that
one is neither the employee nor the employer of the other, and that they are not partners or
joint venturers. For all purposes, this Agreement shall be construed as creating only a
relationship pursuant to which SWMC may act as agent of the Hospital Governing Board.
12.3 Medicare Books and Records. SWMC agrees that, until the expiration of
seven (7) years after the furnishing of services pursuant to this Agreement, it will, if requested
by the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or the U.S. Comptroller
General or any of their designees, furnish to them copies of its books and records evidenc:iJ.1g
the nat1ll'e of the services performed and, if any services are performed under a
subcontract, SWMC shall require any such subcontractor to so agree as well.
12.4 Assignment; Successors and Assigns. Except as specifically provided
herein, SWMC shall not assign its rights and duties under this Agreement without the prior
W11-tten ·consent of the District. The terms, provisions, covenants, obligations and conditions of
this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of successors in interest
and assigns of the parties hereto; provided, however, that no assignment, transfer, pledge or
mortgage by or through a party in violation of the provisions of this Agreement shall vest any
rights in the assignee, transferee, pledgee or mortgagee.
12.5 Entire Agreement; Amendment. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all
prior and contemporaneous agreements, .understandings, negotiations and discussions,
whether written or oral, between the paiiies regarding said subject matter. No amendments,
changes or additions to this Agreement shall be binding upon the paiiies unless made in
W11-ting ·and signed by the parties hereto.
12.6 Captions._The captions used herein are for convenience ofreference only and
shall not be construed in any manner to limit or modify any of the terms hereof.
12. 7 Prevention of Performance. Neither party shall be liable to the other for any
delay or damage or any failure to act (other thai1 payment of money) as a result, occasioned or
caused by reason of federal or State laws or the rnles, regulations or orders of any public body
or official purpo1iing to exercise authority or control respecting the operations covered
hereby, or as a result of, occasioned or caused by strikes, action of the elements, acts of
God or other causes beyond the control of the paiiies, and delay as a result of the above causes
shaLl not be deemed to be a breach of or failure to perfom1 under this Agreement.
12.8 Waiver. The waiver of a perfonnance of any the obligation of any term or condition
of this Agreement shall not be effective unless in vvriting executed by the party to whom
perfonnai1ce is owed, and shall under no circumstai1ces be deemed to constitute a waiver of
subsequent perfonnance of the same, or a breach or subsequent breach of ai1y term or condition
hereof.·
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12.9 Severability. Subject to Section 9.1 hereof respecting disposition of the validation
action; In the event any provision of this Agreement is held to be Lmenforceable for
any reason, the unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of this Agreement, which
shall remain in full force and effect and enforceable in accordance with its terms.
12.10 Fmiher Assmmices. Both pmiies shall promptly and duly execute and deliver to
the other such frniher documents and assurances and take such actions as such party may
reasonably request in order more fully to carry out the intent mid purposes of this Agreement.
1211 Time of Essence. Time.is of the essence of this Agreement mid the
observance of each and every covenant and obligation made and created hereby .

.12.12 Counterparts. This Agreement maybe executed in mw number of
counterpBJis, each of which shall be an original, and all such counterparts together . shall
constitute but one and the same instrument.

12.13 Choice of Laws. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California applicable to contracts entered into and to
be performed wholly 1;vithin the State.
12.14 Attorneys' Fees; Costs of Legal Action. In the event a party to this Agreement
resorts to :legal action against the other to enforce the terms and provisions of this Agreement,
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover the expenses and costs· of such action, including,
without limitation, its reasonable attorneys' fees incuned in connection therewith.
12.15 Dispute Resolution. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, in the
event any disagreement, dispute or claim arises between SWMC m1d the District vvith respect
· to the enforcement or interpretation of this Agreement or miy specific tern1s and provisions set
forth in this Agreement, other than the right to terminate pursuant to Section 8.2 (collectively
referred to in this section as a "Dispute"), such Dispute shall be settled in accordance with the
follov,,i_ng :procedures:
a) Meet and Confer. In the event of a Dispute between the District and
SWMC, either pmiy may give written notice to the other party setting forth the nature of such
Dispute ("Dispute Notice"). The paiiies shall meet and confer to discuss the Dispute in good
faith within fifteen ( 15) days of the other paiiy's receipt of a Dispute Notice in an attempt to
resolve the. Dispute ("Meet and Confer Discussions"). Each party shall designate two (2)
representatives to participate in the Meet and Confer Discussions, and these
representatives shall meet at such date(s) and time(s) as are mutually convenient to the
representatives of each participant within the Meet m1d Confer Period (as defined below).
b) Mediation. If the paiiies are unable to resolve the Dispute within fo1iy
five (45) days following the date ofreceipt of the Dispute Notice by the District or SWMC ,
as applicable ("Meet and Confer Period"), then the parties agree to try in good faith to
settle the Dispute through nonbinding mediation under the Commercial Mediation Rules of the
Americm1 A.rbitration Association. A single disinterested third-pmiy mediator shall be selected
jointly by the District mid SWMC within ten (10) days following the end of the Meet and
Confer Period. If the District m1d SWMC are mmble to agree upon a mediator within such ten
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(10) day period, then a mediator shall be selected by the nearest chapter of the Commercial
Panel of the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its then current rules. The
District aml SWMC shall share equally the expenses of the mediator and the other costs of
mediation
c) Arbitration of Disputes. Any Dispute which cannot be resolved by the
parties within sixty (60) days following the end of the Meet and Confer Period will be
submitted to binding arbitration, which arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the
following provisions:
i) Venue. The arbitration shall be conducted in the County of Sonoma,
California, at such site as is mutually agreed by the pmiies
ii) Law. The governing law shall be the law of the State of California.
iii) Selection. There shall be a single arbitrator, selected in accordance
with the then current rules of the Commercial Panel of the American Arbitration Association.
The decision in writing of the arbitrator shall be final m1d binding upon the p81iies.
iv) Administration. The arbitration shall be administered by the
American Arbitration Association.
v) Rules. The rules of arbitration shall be the Commercial Arbitration
Rules of the American Arbitration Association, as modified by any other written instruments
that the parties hereto may agree upon at the time of the arbitration, except that the provisions
of the California Code of Civil Procedure ("CCP") Section 1283.05 are incorporated into m1d
made applicable to this agreement to m·bitrate, unless the parties agree othe1wise at such time.
For good cause shown and on order of the arbitrator, depositions may be taken and discovery
may be·obtained in accordance with CCP Section 1283.05.
vi) Award. The award rendered by arbitration shall be final anc;i binding
upon the parties hereto, and judgment upon the award may be entered in any co mi of
competent jurisdiction in the United States. The m·bitrator(s) may decide the dispute in
accordance with the applicable substantive law of California. An award shall be beyond the
power of the arbitrator(s) if the findings of fact m'e not supported by substantial evidence or the
award is based on an error of law. The award shall include written findings of fact, a summary
of the evidence and reasons m1derlying the decision and conclusions oflaw. As pmi of the
awm·d, the m·bitrator(s) may award reasonable and necessary costs actually incmred by the
prevailing pmiy, including that paiiy's shm·e of the m·bitrator's fees, costs and expenses, as well
as any administrator's fees. The arbitrator(s) may also include reasonable attorney's fees in an
award of costs if the arbitrator(s) find that the party against whom the foes are
assessed acted frivolously or in bad faith in its demand for, or pmiicipation in, the arbitration.
cl) Right to Terminate Preserved. The provisions of this Section
12.15 _shall not affect either party's right to terminatethisAgreementinaccordance
with Section 8.2. The Pmiies shall nonetheless.be bound by the tem1s of this Section 12.15 with
respect to mediation <md arbitration of any disputes asserting damages for breach by reason of
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such tem1ination.
12.16 Survival. In addition to any provisions which by their express term:;; survive
termination of this Agreement, the provisions of Aliicle IX hereof (Inclenmification) shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.
FN-W-:I-T-l'ffifrS-W-H.:EitEGF-;-the-r:r:rties-Innre-e:x:ecuted-this-Mmmgement-S-ervices~------

Agreement, by their duly authorized representatives, as of the date and year first above written.

PALM DRJVE HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Its: President, Board of Directors

SONOMA ~&\T ~DI('.AL CEN.\ER
By:

Its:

'~~q~
Chief Executive Officer

By:

Its: President, Board of Directors
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